


REYNOLDS CONSUMER PRODUCTS INNOVATES AND MANUFACTURES 
HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS THAT SIMPLIFY DAILY LIFE TO ENJOY WHAT 
MATTERS MOST. BUSY PEOPLE USE OUR PRODUCTS TO MAKE MEALTIME 
AND CLEANUP EASIER-AND DO MORE OF THE THINGS THEY VALUE. 

ABOUT THIS REPORT 
In our fifth annual report to stockholders, we provide an overview of the 202LJ performance of Reynolds Consumer 
Products Inc. (RCP) and our long-term business approach. This report covers the fiscal year of January 1, 202q, 
through December 31, 202Lt and includes all RCP operations. This report also includes our Environmental, Social, 
and Governance [ESG) scorecard in our commitment to annually report our progress against our goals. 
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Chairman's 
Message 

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS, 

As the newest member of the board of directors for Reynolds 
Consumer Products. I would like to congratulate our 
board, the company's leadership team, and most of all, 
the nearly 6,500 employees who have worked passionately 
to build a successful company. I'm pleased to report that 
in 202£1 the company has achieved their stated goals 
and is well-positioned to continue their strategy, which 
includes investing in future growth. productivity. and 
strong capital returns. 

RCP has iconic brands with Reynolds and Hefty, evidenced 
by 95% of U.S. households having at least one of the com­
pany's products in their homes and 70% having three or 
more. RCP continued its success in consistently growing 
share in the majority of the categories served, because of 
its ability to innovate, manufacture, and market products 
that are loved by consumers. 

The combination of deep consumer understanding, excellent 
service to customers and our integrated model to provide 
both branded and store brand products with a range of 
options is a competitive advantage that is unmatched by 
any other provider for these categories. 

Our culture leads with safety and values people and teamwork. 
We have developed a high-performing team that has 
been able to consistently innovate and win in the market. A 
focus on operational excellence. cost savings. and process 
improvements across all areas of the company contributes 
to the bottom line. 

We are pleased to share the company's 202£1 results in 
this report. which reflect this work with a significant 
increase in net income and earnings per share over 2023, 
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a healthy margin expansion, and a focus on additional debt 
reduction. I congratulate the team for their tremendous 
accomplishments. 

I am grateful to have received a warm welcome to this board 
in late 202q and, along with my fellow board members, look 
forward to providing guidance on the company's plans for 
future growth. I want to congratulate Scott Huckins on his 
promotion to Chief Executive Officer and Nathan Lowe to 
Chief Financial Officer. It is a pleasure to work with them. the 
RCP leadership team, and our board of directors. On behalf 
of our team, we thank Rich Noll, our previous Chairman, and 
Lance Mitchell. the company's previous CEO. for their long 
history of leadership and establishing a strong base on which 
to build additional success. 

I look forward to working with this knowledgeable and estab­
lished board of directors to continue to advise and guide 
RCP's strategy. I am confident that Reynolds Consumer 
Products is well-positioned to achieve our goals. 

Sincerely. 

Rolf Stangl 
Chairman 

Chief Executive 
Officer's Message 

DEAR RCP SHAREHOLDERS, 

I am very pleased to be sharing the infonmation in this annual 
report in our fifth year as a publicly-traded company. I was 
pleased to join Reynolds Consumer Products as an already­
strong company as CFO in 2023. As the newly-appointed 
CEO. I have had the opportunity to assess RCP's strengths 
and potential. I have been able to work closely with our 
veteran leadership team, who have aligned their combined 
300-plus years of experience to the same strategy. Our 
passionate and capable employees have demonstrated a 
culture of safety, teamwork and collaboration, with a deep 
commitment to innovation and productivity. 

Together. we make products people love. 

• Reynolds and Hefty are billion-dollar national brands, 
and when combined with top-quality store brand s, we 
have a broad offering to lead our large. stable categories. 

• We value operational excellence. Our manufacturing foot­
print is cost-competitive and U.S.-centric, positioned to 
provide excellent serv ice to our cu stomers. 

• Our customers are trusted major retailers across distribu­
tion channels, and we've worked to meet their needs and 
develop deep relationships over many years of partnership. 

• We continue to innova te to fill our pipeline w ith new 
products and product improvements that resonate with 
consumers, including more sustainable options for each 
of our product lines. 

• We value safety and are pleased to have earned a world-class 
safety record over the history of our company. In 202£1, 
we achieved a company-best total recordable incident rate 
of 0.69. Safety is a core principle in our culture and we 
w ill continue to develop new proce sses and engage our 
employees in a manner that focuses on keeping people sa fe. 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Our 202q earnings reflect our strong competitive position, 
strong cash flo ws. a deleveraged balance sheet. and the 
opportunity t o invest in a rang e of programs to improve 
growth, increase productiv ity, and produce more stable 
earnings growth. 

I have witnessed that our teams are already working together 
exceedingly well. Instead of starting from scratch, we will 
leverage the culture to focus on growth, productivity, and 
executing attractive investments in our business. I'm 
exceptionally proud of our team and the things we have 
already accomplished. I'm confident we are ready for more 
wins that will make our company even stronger. 

We are pleased to share a representation of our products 
and programs throughout this report and will continue to 
update investors on our programs through our quarterly 
earnings releases. 

I want to thank our employees for an excellent year in 202£1. 
On behalf of the RCP team, we thank our shareholders, 
our retail partners, and our consumers for your continued 
partnership and trust. 

Sincerely, 

Scott Huckins 
Chief Executive Officer 
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202LJ 

Financial Performance 

WASTE 6 STORAGE PRODUCTS 

$959M 
Hefty Waste & Sto rage 
Branded and store brand 
trash and food storage bags 

$596M 
Presto Product s 
Store brand food storage bags, 
trash bags, reusable storage 
containers, plastic wrap. and 
specialty business including 
Fresh-Lock" resealable 
closure systems. 
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25% 
TABLEWARE 

$918M 
Hefty Tableware 

COOKING PRODUCTS 

$l,2~7M 
Reynolds Cooking & Baking 
Branded and store brand aluminum foil. 
disposable aluminum pans, parchment 
paper. freezer paper, wax paper. butcher 
paper, plastic wrap, baking cups, oven 
bags and slow cooker liners 

Branded and store brand disposable and compostable 
plates, bowls, platters. containers, cups and cutlery. 

ADJUSTED EBITDA 

TOTAL NET REVENUES 
/nm/I/Ions 

$3,817 $3,756 $3,695 

2022 2023 2020 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

(diluted) 

$1.67 

2022 2023 2020 

+::, TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking Hefty Waste & Storage Hefty Tableware Presto Products 

$222M $272M $1~7M $130M 
Adjusted EB/TOA Margin 

18% 

-2% 
YaY Change 
(202q v. 2023] 

+18 % 
YaY Change 
(202q V 2023] 

28% 

NET INCOME 
/nm/I/Ions 

$352 

2022 2023 2020 

ADJUSTED DILUTED 
EARNINGS PER SHARE* 

$1.67 

2022 2023 2020 

16% 22% 

+18 % 
YaY Change 
(202q V. 2023] 

+18% 
YoY Change 
c202qv, 2023] 

ADJUSTED NET INCOME* 
/nm/I/Ions 

$352 

2022 2023 2020 

ADJU STED EBITOA* 
/nm/I/Ions 

$678 

2022 2023 2020 

+18 % 
YaY Change 
(202q V. 2023] 

+7% 
YoY Change 
c202q v. 20231 

•Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted DIiuted Earnings Per Share, and Adjusted EBITDA ore non-GAAP financial measures. For a discussion of our use of these 
non-GAAP fin one/a/ measures, and reconc/1/otJons of these non-GAAP finonc/o/ measures to the most directly comparable GAAP flnonc/o/ measures, see 
pages 32-33 of the Form 10-K far our fisaJI year ended December 31, 202'1, included in this annual report 
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Dur goal is to be the leading suppl ier 
of product s used for cooking, serving, 
cleanup, and storage in North America. 
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PRODUCTS PEOPLE LOVE 
WE LISTEN, LEARN, AND EVOLVE TO INNOVATE 

How do we find woys to innovate? We onolyze consumer trends ond osk consumers what's most 
meaningful to them. We tolk with our customers obout whot products ond price points ore in 
demand. Whether it's developing on entirely new product for today's cooking trends or discovering 
woys to moke o product more oppeoling ... we ore possionote about discovering oreos for growth. 
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Innovations 
Drive Growth 
REYNOLDS CONSUMER PRODUCTS IS COMMITTED TD 
DRIVING GROWTH THROUGH NEW PRODUCTS AND 
FEATURES, INCLUDING SUSTAINABLE PRODUCT OPTIONS. 

EVERY YEAR SINCE 2018 .. . AND AGAIN IN 202LJ .. . WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED OUR TARGET OF GREATER THAN 20% OF REVENUE 
FROM PRODUCTS LESS THAN 3 YEARS OLD. 

HERE ARE JUST SOME OF THE 
PRODUCTS PEOPLE LOVED IN 202LJ: 
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SIMPLIFYING GRILLING PREP WITH 
NEW HEAVY DUTY FOIL SHEETS 

Reynolds Wrap' Heavy Duty foil sheets simplify food prep, 
cooking, and storage with quick and easy dispensing. 
Consumer response to our regular-weight foil sheets was 
so successful, we extended into the more robust heavy 
duty version in 202q, which works great on the grilll 

Research has shown that Heavy Duty foil is great for 
making grilling packets, easily customizing them, and 
simplifying cleanup making your outdoor cooking 
experience more enjoyable I 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

OUR TR ASH BAGS ARE FLEXING 
WITH SUSTAINABILITY 

Consumers value sustainable products with 
the ease-of-use, strength, and reliability of our 
everyday products. 

That's why the Hefty team established a partnership 
with Plastic Bank• an organization dedicated to 
helping prevent coastal plastic pollution, while 
empowering coastal communities by providing 
economic opportunities in exchange for collected 
plastic. Hefty' Ultra Strong' is made with 35% 
Recovered Materials which includes 10% Coastal 
Plastic collected in partnership with Plastic Bank•. 
The bags also contain 25% reclaimed plastic as 
scrap material from our production process. The 
Hefty team knows every little step matters and 
will continue to bring sustainable options to the 
waste bag category. 

John Geno, professional wrest/er 
and actor, once ogoin teamed up 
with the Hefty' brand to launch 
the "Strength that's anything but 
ordinary" integrated marketing 
campaign for trash bogs. 2024 is 
his eighth year os the Hefty' 
brand spokesperson. 
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COMPOSTABLE SNACK & DIP TRAYS ':,"' "'"'" 

\ }. , .. , Iii ,,, 
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GRILL PANS MAKE IT 
EVEN EASIER! 

Made of heavy duty aluminum, Reynolds Kitchens• 
slotted aluminum grill pans make it simple to 
cook small items on the grill without the risk of 
food falling through the grates. 

The slotted pans allow the heat from the grill 
to caramelize flavorful grill marks on foods 
from asparagus to zucchini! Consumers love 
them for a "no skewers, no cleanup" life to spend 
less time prepping and cleaning and more time 
enjoying great food with friends and family. 

HEFTY" BRAND PARTY CUPS WITH 
POST-CONSUMER RECYCLED MATERIALS! 

The Hefty Tableware team is excited to 
offer more sustainable party cup options. 
Consumers are eager for convenient 
tableware options that are more sustainable 
and perform as well as tableware made 
from virgin source materials. Proudly 
manufactured in the USA, they use less 
virgin plastic, making them a more 
eco-friendly choice and promoting 
recycling efforts through end-market use. 

In limited distribution in 2D2q, our Hefty' 
Party Ont• "classic red" party cups are 
made with 20% post-consumer recycled 
(PCR) material, offering the same great 
quality and toughness as regular Hefty• 
party cups. Also new to the lineup are 
Hefty Eco save™ compostable party 
cups, shown on page 20. 

The Hefty' Party Perfect™ clear cups 
are made with 30% post-consumer 
recycled PET (rPET) material and are 
fully-recyclable [check locally]. These 
cups offer a premium look and enhance 
any drink, snack, or dessert. 

ECe>SAVE 
COM1'0STABLE EXTRA DEE1' BOWLS '' l' A·• {,1" ~ 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

HEFTY ECOSAVE™ TABLEWARE EXPANDS 
WITH NEW VERSATILE SHAPES & SIZES 

In 202£1, the Hefty• Tableware business unit launched 
three new Hefty ECDSAVE™ SKUs: the Snack 6 Dip Tray, 
the Charo la Tray, and Extra Deep Bowl. 

Nearly 90% of participants indicated strong purchase 
intent during in-home usage test results for both the 
Snack 6 Dip Tray and Extra Deep Bowls for ease of use 
for a wide range of everyday meals and snacking. The 
Charola Tray also received favorable consumer feedback 
due to its size and versatility. These new items join the 
high quality Hefty ECDSAVE" tableware portfolio that 
delivers the strength and durability the Hefty' brand is 
known for. Consumers also appreciate that the heavy-duty 
tableware is microwave-safe, made without added PFAS1, 

and BPI-certified compostable'. 

1 PFAS or per-ond polyfluoroolkyl substonces ore o group of chem/cols used to make fluoropolymer 
coatings ond products that resist heat, oil, stains, grease, ond water. Source: CDC.gov. 

2 Commerclol/y compostoble only. Foci/it/es moy not exist in your oreo. Not suitable for home composting. 2021'.l INTEGRATED REPORT // Page 11 



CONSUMERS LOVE RECYCLED 
REYNOLDS WRAP" FOIL! 

We've heard from consumers that they value sustainable 
products-and we know that aluminum is "infinitely recyclable." 

To raise awareness of the availability of our Reynolds Wrap• 
100% recycled foil and to set it apart, we updated the box to 
improve the connection to environmental interests, including 
a new carton board that complies with the highest market 
standards and new graphics, including FSC certification. 

EASY 
OPEN 
BOX Relliiialds !WraP "l"t.sv PREP EASY COOK. EASY CLEAN. 'r. 
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HEFTY" TRASH BAGS EXTEND GROWTH 
WITH NEW FABULOso· SCENT 

Consumers love the joyful scents of Fabuloso•11 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

In 202£1. we added a new refreshing scent to the Ultra Strong"' trash bags lineup-Citrus 
& Fruits-joining the popular Lavender and Lemon scents. Hefty' Ultra Strong' trash 
bags with Fabuloso' scents achieved another strong year of growth in 202q with over 
$209 million in retail sales2• a 23% increase in dollar sales versus the prior year. The 
Hefty• brand continues to find growth areas that resonate with consumers and drive 
purchases, while maintaining dependable strength and quality. 

1Fobu/oso• and associated designs are trademarks of Ca/gate-Palma/Ive Campany and are used underllcense. 

iHaft'y waste bags, TTL Hefty Fabulasa SKUs, Clrcana, MULD+, 52 weeks anding 12/29/24. 

HEFTY" PRESS TO CLOSE FOOD 
STORAGE PORTFOLIO EXPANSION 

The expansion of the Hefty• Food Storage 
portfolio with press to close bags continued 
to drive growth for the Hefty' brand in 202q_ 

An omni-channel campaign drove consumers 
to the shelf to try Hefty' XL Sandwich bags, 
which hold £10% more than regular sized 
sandwich bags at a great price I Hefty• Press 

to Close bags feature double zippers for a 
secure seal and expandable bottoms for easy 
filling. In 2025, the Hefty' brand plans to grow 
this product line and expand distribution to 
more retailers. 
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TRANSFORMING OUR BUSINESS 

Our "BOUNDLESSJJ 
Journey Continues 
TO HELP FUEL GROWTH AND CULTIVATE COST EFFICIENCIES, 
OUR BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION PROGRAM, KNOWN AS 
"REYVOLUTION," CHAMPIONS, RESOURCES AND TRACKS 
INITIATIVES AT THE PROJECT LEVEL. 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

THE PROGRAM IDENTIFIES, PRIORITIZES, ANO RESOURCES HIGH-VALUE INITIATIVES 

Reyvolution strengthens our topline through disruptive growth and innovation, and supports 
margin expansion via improvements to our cost structure through investment in multiple high-value 
initiatives. Our Boundless Center of Operational Excellence is o great example of just one of 
our initiatives tracked under the program. Key focus areas include how we hire/develop/retain 
hourly employees, automation, intelligent factory, procurement, productivity, and more. 

We not only look at what we do now, but what we wont to achieve in the future, and how to do it in 
the best way. We actively engage employees to make continuous improvements that contribute to 
profitable growth. 

Several 2024 highlights from this program include: 



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, ANO GOVERNANCE [ESG] 

202~ ESG Approach, Metrics, 
and Scorecard 

ESG SCORECARD PROGRESS 
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TARGET 

SUSTAINABLE PRODUCT OFFER INGS 
Offer sustainable options in each product line across our portfolio 
by end of 2025. 

SUSTAINABLE PACKAGING 
Use recyclable or reusable packaging for all of our branded products 
ond moke ovoiloble for private-lobe/ products by end of 2025. 

PRODUCT CIRCU LAR ITY 
Increase the use of recycled aluminum, recycled plastic and 
renewable plastic 200% by end of 2030 from our stated baseline'. 

SAFETY 
Strive for zero incidents. 

PAY EQU ITY 
Continue our commitment to maintaining pay equity. 

GREENHOUSE GAS EM ISSIONS 
Reduce emissions 25% by 2030 from 2021 baseline. 

PLASTICS RECOVERY ANO REUSE 
Divert hard-to-recycle plastics from landfills by expanding 
ovoilobility of the Hefty ReNew™ program.' 

WASTE TO LANDFILL 
Achieve waste diversion from landfill certification for manufacturing 
facilities by end of 2025. 

1 International & Canada product lines not Included. 
~ A sustainable product is o product that is recyclable, reusable, compostable, made with recycled 

content or made with raw materials derived from renewable resources. 

' International, Canada & B2B products not included. 
4 Primary and secondary packaging. 

~ TABLE OF CONTENTS 

OUR APPROACH 

Environmental and social issues affect not only the communities in which we operate, but also the long-term sustainability 
of our business. We are committed to adhering to all laws and regulations while continuously reviewing the viability of our 
practices, investments, and products. In 202LJ, RCP continued to make progress on the ESG framework we created in 
2021. Our ESG framework is intended to drive our long-term growth, and deliver value to our shareholders, customers, 
employees, and other stakeholders. 

METRICS 

% of U.S. product lines' with ot least one 
sustoinob/e product offering' 

% of U.S. consumer branded products' thot 
hove recyclable or reusable pockoging' 

% change in recycled aluminum use, recycled 
and renewable plastic material purchases 

Toto/ Recordable Rote 

Poy Equity 

% change Scopel and 2 GHG emissions 

Amount of hard-to-recycle plastics diverted from 
landfills through the Hefty ReNew'" program 

Number of U.S. households with access to both 
curbside recycling and the Hefty ReNewrM program 
and % of households participating in those markets 

2O21.J PERFORMANCE 

91% 

99% 

66% increase 

0.69 

Achieved 

5.9% reduction 

6.0M lbs' 

2.3M HHs'·' 
2% HHs'·' 

Certification in 
progress 

5 Recycled and renewable plastic usage based on 2021 material purchases. Recycled aluminum 
usage based on 2024 production forecast due to unusual business conditions In 2021. 

6 Pay Equity will be updated July 2025; data reflects plus or minus 3%. 
7 The Hefty ReNewl'/,4 program was known as Hefty• Energybag• prior to 2023. 
9 From program Inception {late 2016) to year end 2024. 
9 Based on estimated U.S. households with access to curbside recycling, using public resources such as the 

U.S. Census Bureau, The Recycling Par tnership and the Sustainable Packaging Coalition organizations. 

OBJECTIVE TIMING 

100% 2025 

100% 2025 

200% increase 2030 

0 

100%6 

25% reduction 2030 

40M lbs 2030 

27M HHs 
10% HHs 

Waste diversion 2025 
certification 
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TRANSPARENCY 

STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT 

LEADERSHIP 
ANO RESOURCING 

We commit to transparent communication about our governance, operations, and products. 
We will disclose material metrics and progress against goals annually. Our intention is to 
continuously evaluate and adopt our framework and initiatives as needed. 

We are committed to adhere to all laws and regulations and will continue to engage with 
stakeholders as we work to implement our ESG framework. We seek their input through 
direct communication, investor conferences, shareholder meetings, trade association 
partnerships, community partnerships, customer engagement, and employee feedback. 
In addition, we will continue to engage with industry peers and experts. As a result, our 
strategy will continue to evolve over time. 

Our efforts ore led by Rochel Bishop, President, Hefty Toblewore Business Unit, ond our 
director of sustainability, combined with o senior manager and cross-functional steering 
committee. Together. they help formally embed our ESG framework ond goals ot oil levels 
of the organization in alignment with the company's strategic goals. The team draws 
on additional internal and external experts to apply standards, align definitions, gather 
and analyze doto, and stay informed on trends and changes in the industry. In addition, 
the team has assembled specialized working groups to drive progress toward achieving 
our targets. 
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SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS 
Offer sustoinoble options 
across our portfolio 

SUSTAINABLE PACKAGING 
Utilize recyclable pockoging for 
our branded products 

PRODUCT CIRCULARl1Y 
Increase use of recycled resin and 
aluminum for product production 

SAFE1Y 
Strive for zero incidents 

PAY EQU11Y 
Continue our commitment to 
maintaining pay equity 

COMMUNl1Y COLLABORATION 
Create enthusiasm for consumer 
recycling and composting 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
Reduce emissions by 25% by 2030 

PLASTICS RECOVERY 
Expand ovoilobility of the 
Hefty ReNew'" program 

WASTE TO LANDFILL 
Achieve zero waste to landfill 
for manufacturing 
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New Innovations in 
Sustainable Products 
We're listening to consumers who wont to choose products with excellent 
performance, on attractive price, and that ore also better for the environment. 

NEW SUSTAINABLE PRODUCT OPTIONS AND CAPABILITIES 

In 202Lt we continued to add new sustainable product options and increase the number of products that are either recyclable, 
compostable, or are made with recycled or plant-based materials to our product categories. This includes additional research 
into developing more types of sustainable tableware, including Hefty ECO SAVE™ Compos table Party Cups our first-ever 
compostable red party cups, made to perform as well as their namesake. 
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In 202q, we extended our Hefty ECO SAVE™ line with new options. We've also expanded the availability of waste bags and food 

bags with post-consumer recycled materials. 

Our Albany, Oregon, manufacturing location, also known as Atacama Manufacturing Inc., which was acquired in 2023, serves 
as both a production facility and an in-house innovation center for sustainable materials and product development capabilities. 
This center of expertise allows us to investigate and test production scalability of new products made with recycled, renewable, 
or plant-based materials. 

With PFAS being an increasing concern for the environment, we champion product safety and compliance. In 202LI, all 
RCP products intended for use with food, including food storage bags and tableware products, are formulated without PFAS. 

The company partners with many trade and industry organizations for their expertise, including the Aluminum Association 
Biodegradable Products Institute Plastics Industry Association and the Sustainable Packaging Coalition . 

RCP continues to provide materials to The New Norm (TNN) an innovative start-up with novel technology to recycle materials 
into yarn and knit fabric into specialty garments. To date, TNN has recycled material equivalent to 10,000 Hefty■ party cups 
and demonstrated their technology at both lab and pilot scale. To date, TNN has successfully recycled party cups, extruded yarn, 
knitted fabric, and launched a capsule of 30 knit garments that sold out through their website, with plans to scale up in the future. 
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INNOVATIVE PLASTICS RECOVERY 
PROGRAM FOR CONSUMERS 

The 
Hefty ReNew™ 
Program 

THE HEFTY RENEW™ PROGRAM, 
A COMPLEMENT TO CURRENT 
RECYCLING EFFORTS, COLLECTS 
HARD TO RECYCLE PLASTICS 
AND DIVERTS THEM AWAY 
FROM LANDFILLS . 

The program is easy and convenient. In participating communities. 
residents purchase the Hefty Re New™ orange bags at their local 
retailer or online to collect their hard to recycle plastics. Once the 
orange bag is full, residents simply place the bag directly in their 
existing recycling bin or at their local recycling drop-off location. 
The material recovery facility then collects the bags and separates 
them from other recyclables. From there, the Hefty Re New™ team 
transfers the materials to partners that have the capabilities to 
convert them into new and useful products like park benches 
and lumber. 

In 202£1, we expanded this program to new markets that included 
multiple regions in Ohio, portions of Lake County, Illinois, and Tucson, 
Arizona. The program continues to operate in participating communities 
in Georgia. Idaho. Nebraska and Tennessee and. with the 202£1 additions. 
is now available to 2.3 million households with curbside recycling. 
Since the program's inception in 20161, the program has diverted over 
3,000 tons of hard-to-recycle plastics from landfills. For other 
updates on the program, visit Hefty Renew.com. 

1Tha Hefty RaNaw™ program was known as Hefty• Enargybag• prior to 2023. 
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/l(effv/ 
ReNeVtl 

f::> TABLE OF CONT ~s 

RESOURCES LIKE PARK BENCHES 
The orange bags are sorted at your local recycling center and 
acceptable contents are sent to a taclllty to be converted Into 
resources like park benches. lumber, and drainage materlals. • 

"Particular rasourcH may vary by 11•011raphy. 

I 
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EMPLOYEE HEALTH ANO SAFETY 

Safety: Our Top Priority 
OUR GOAL IS ZERO INJURIES BECAUSE IT MEANS THAT EVERY TEAM MEMBER WHO COMES TD 

WORK WILL BE ABLE TO RETURN HOME AS HEALTHY AND WHOLE AS WHEN THEY ARRIVED. 

WE BELIEVE TH AT ZERO IN JURIES IS ATTAIN ABLE. 

In 202q, we had zero fatalities and achieved another 
best-in-class incident rate, adding to our already 

impressive year-over-year safety performance with an 
outstanding total recordable incident rate of 0.69 that 
is an improvement from prior year and far exceeds the 
benchmark oil.□. In addition, four plants and 11 warehouses 
completed 202q with zero recordable incidents. Fort he 
company overall. we reduced recordable injuries by 12% 
and worked to reduce 75% of our top-identified risks. 

To accomplish this. we have robust safety policies and 
programs and work to raise awareness among all employees. 
Safety is an integral part of our innovation processes-we 
Hbuild in" safety to each and every one of our processes. 
choosing our equipment with careful attention to how to 
best protect people. 

Our overall safety practices are governed by our company-wide 
safety policy, supplemented by additional local policies specific 

to the processes and equipment unique to each site. All 
employees, contractors, and visitors are required to report 
all incidents in a timely manner to ensure appropriate care is 
received and that the incident is investigated thoroughly to 
identify root cause[s] and ensure effective corrective and 
preventative measures are implemented. 

We record safety activities and events and track training 
and compliance requirements through a centralized safety 
management system. We evaluate and track performance 
using corporate and site-specific scorecards composed of 
leading and lagging indicators. Results are reviewed as an 
organization each month and communicated at all levels. 
All employees and contractors participate in safety training 
before beginning work in our facilities. We also communicate 
environmental, health, and safety policies and protocols 
during monthly safety awareness training with employees 
throughout the year. 
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EVERY EMPLOYEE HAS THE AUTHORITY AND IS ENCOURAGED 
TO STOP ANY ACTIVITY THAT PRESENTS A SAFETY RISK 

We recognize safe behavior with positive reinforcement and reword employees for participating 
in proactive safety initiatives that increase awareness, mitigate hazards, and reduce risk. 

Throughout 2024, we expanded employee- fed safety committees through our Boundless 
operational excellence program to engage employees in identifying top safety risks, 
mitigating them, and reinforcing positive behaviors to extend our safety- first culture. 

OUR INITIATIVES FOCUS ON TOP AREAS OF RISK, INCLUDING PREVENTING 
SLIPS, TRIPS, AND FALLS, AND ERGONOMIC- RELATED INJURIES AND ILLNESSES. 

Not only do we conduct general aware­
ness training on a regular basis for 
compliance and prevention, but we 
also provide focused training as 
needed in response to increased risk, 
such as busier production cycles, and 
according to weather conditions, such 
as preventing heat-related illness 
during the summer and avoiding slip 
and fall incidents during the winter. 

One of the top reasons for injuries and 
illness are ergonomic hazards that lead 

ta musculaskeletal disorders [MSD)­

typically joint, tendon, and ligament 

pain. Due to the manual activity of 
many jab tasks, MSDs can develop 

from repetitive and strenuous motions 
and exertions. To reduce the risk of 
ergonomic injuries, we have expanded 
the review and assessment of repetitive 
and strenuous movements and 
exposures in our processes. We then 
mitigate ergonomic hazards with 
automation, lift-assist devices, work 
acclimation.job rotation, stretching 
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programs, training on proper lifting 
techniques, and early reporting. 

Additionally, we promote and encourage 
health benefits offered by the company 
for work-related and non-work-related 
health conditions. We offer a no-cost 
virtual physical therapy program open 
to all employees, designed to prevent 
musculoskeletal issues, promote 
flexibility, and reduce stiffness or 
discomfort from physical activity. 
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TO PROTECT EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND EXPOSURE TO POTENTIAL HARMFUL EFFECTS 
IN THE WORKPLACE, WE ALSO EMPLOY ACTIVE POLICIES IN THESE AREAS: 

We assess what Personal Protective Equipment [PPEJ is required in each work area to prevent injuries, designed for 
both immediate or longer-term prevention. PPE requirements with the appropriate level of protection are assessed at 
each facility and according ta jab-specific hazards; including safety shoes, safety glasses, hard hats, hearing protection, 
and different types of gloves. We restrict loose clothing and non-standard tools that could lead to injuries. 

We actively enforce hearing-conservation measures to prevent hearing loss. Risks are assessed and mitigated 
through noise surveys, noise-reduction projects, required use of hearing protection, and training. 

Key employees in each af our facilities are trained in first aid, use of AEDs (automated external defibrillator devices), 
and defined roles in the event of an injury or medical emergency, including calling 911 and providing assistance until 
additional help can arrive. 

We ensure that employees who may work near hazardous materials are properly trained, informed, and provided with 
the appropriate PPE. All materials and substances must have a Safety Data Sheet [SOS), properly labeled, inventoried, 
and kept in designated storage locations. We conduct industrial hygiene surveys as needed to ensure no serious 
exposure risk exists. 

Employees are required to wash their hands frequently and maintain clean work areas to protect not only the safety 
and hygiene af our products, but far their awn health and well-being. We encourage pea pie ta practice respiratory 
etiquette, stay home if they are not feeling well, and consult with their healthcare provider on any health concerns, 
including vaccination. 

ANNUAL SAFETY AWARDS 

One way we recognize our teams' commitment to safety is through our annual safety awards, which include: 

EXECUTIVE SAFETY RISK EHS EXCELLENCE IN 
COUNCIL AWARD REDUCTION AWARD EXCELLENCE AWARD SAFETY- WAREHOUSE AWARD 

Awarded to the team Awarded ta the Awarded to sites that achieve Awarded to our warehouse 
that embodies RCP's site that has zero, or a 20% or more reduction teams who have shown 
vision for health demonstrated in injuries, maintained above outstanding commitment 
and safety the biggest gains goo/ far all leading indicators, to safety excellence. In 
excellence through in reducing and that have not received 2024, this included 11 
its commitment to safety risks. non-compliance citations from of our 13 warehouses. 
a safety-first culture. an EHS government regulatory 

agency. In 2024, this included 
nine of our 18 plant sites. 

We believe that safety is not built on a series of one-time events but is built into our values and is a part of our culture. 

We continued to invest in safety in 2024 with a focus on strengthening roles, expectations, and accountabilities and 
developing an associate-led safety approach; mitigating ergonomic and slips, trips, and fall hazards; reinforcing safe 
behaviors; and a continued focus on proactive hazard identification and injury/illness risk mitigation. 
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People and Teams 
Drive our Business 
WE FOCUS ON BUILDING STRONG TEAMS 
ANO PROCESSES THAT ALIGN TO SUPPORT 
OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY. 
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WE VALUE OUR TALENTED WORK FORCE THAT IS PASSIONATE 
ABOUT COLLABORATION, TEAMWORK, ANO ACHIEVING OUR GOALS. 

"Creating products people love" is the backbone of everything 

we do. We leverage innovation and deep insights to serve 
both customers and consumers with the right products at 
the right prices. We are incredibly proud that our products 
are found in 95% of U.S. households. We don't just make 
our products; we also use them in our own homes to make 
family life a little easier. 

We launched "explore for more" as part of our vision to 

actively investigate more opportunities. We partnered 

with our customers to launch new products designed to 
find growth opportunities in our categories. 

Our commercialization expertise continues to expand 
with each new product launched. In 202LJ, we analyzed our 

innovation processes and added additional structure to drive 

best practices and alignment cross-functionally ... including 

the innovation, consumer research, operations, and marketing 

teams across our four business units. 
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202LJ PEOPLE AND 
CULTURE HIGHLIGHTS 

Our culture has always centered on treating people with respect and operating 
ethically. We promote collaboration in support of common goals through our 
"Together, we make great things happen" tog/ine. 
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Our employees are proud to share what matters most. .. family, 
education, teamwork, community service, accomplishments, 

and more. 

We believe "simplify daily life" also extends to the ways we 
work together. Feedback is important to our culture-we 
intend for our strategies, programs, and initiatives to 

evolve to focus on the ones that are most effective and 

meaningful to our employees. 

We ask for feedback through an employee ambassador 

program and our Boundless Center of Operational 

Excellence, and in many other ways. These discussions 
center on ways to help make our workplace safer, more 

supportive, and more productive. Employees tell us that 

our supportive culture and core values contribute to 

increased teamwork, engagement, and retention. 

Developing our culture is a shared responsibility by our 

leadership team and all our business units and functions, 

including Finance, EHS, Human Resources, Information 

Technology, Legal, Marketing, Sales, Operations, and our 

plant teams. 

!!f/J .. TOGETHER, 
~~ WE MAKE GREAT 
•#te~ THINGS HAPPEN 
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Recruiting and Retention 
WE VALUE OUR PEOPLE: AN ENGAGED, STABLE 
WORKFORCE IS ESSENTIAL TO OUR SUCCESS. 

The Talent Acquisition team's mission is to attract. select. 

and retain top-quality talent to support RCP's strategic goals. 

We strive to attract and retain a talented workforce that 
embraces our core values of safety, teamwork, and 
development. In 202q, RCP filled more than 2,lBq hourly 
positions and 213 salaried roles at our corporate offices and 

manufacturing facilities. For salaried roles, we filled 67 
successor roles internally with candidates nominated during 
the annual talent review and succession planning process. 

From a talent management standpoint, we continue 
to refine our processes and leverage our technology 

resources. In 202q, we expanded our HR data analytics 
capabilities to proactively address recruiting needs. We 
updated and modernized our applicanttracking system to 
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offer a streamlined, modem application process for candidates, 

including text messaging and translation support. It also 
streamlines internal processes, including workflow, to 

speed up scheduling, interviewing, and communications. 

RCP invests in the growth and development of its employees 
through our Learning Management System [LMS), which 
serves as a common technology platform to deliver and 

track critical on-demand employee training. The LMS is a 
cornerstone of our "Drive Your Career" platform, which hosts 

development tools, including resources for manager/employee 
feedback sessions, employee talent development profiles and 
individual development plans. online training courses. and 

information on how to participate in our mentorship and tuition 

reimbursement programs. 

In our manufacturing locations, we expanded our Leadership 

Development Training for supervisors, team leaders, and 
trainers, by providing over 5,300 hours of training. The 

sessions are proven to enhance new and experienced floor 

leaders' relationships with their teams leading to increased 
productivity. We advanced the new hire onboarding experience 

and job level progression process by training employees to 
standard work using new technology. The change includes 
language translation in several of our facilities. 

In 202q, we expanded our Early Careers program and our 
two-year rotational programs to develop technical, professional, 

and leadership skills of new employees in finance & 
accounting, engineering, operations, and supply chain roles. 

COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, 
AND WELLNESS PROGRAM 

In 202q, we began publishing the functional pay range for 
new job postings and provided comprehensive employee 

education on our compensation model based on pay 

transparency and pay equity. We recruit candidates who meet 

the qualifications for the role and continuously review validated, 

external market compensation data from multiple sources to 

ensure our pay rates are competitive and adjust as needed. We 

are committed to pay equity, which we achieved again in 202£1. 

Our comprehensive benefits package for U.S. employees 
is focused on supporting the health and well-being of our 

employees and their families. We offer a range of options 

including medical, dental, vision, prescription drug coverage, 
short- and long-term disability, q□l[k) retirement plan with 
a company matching contribution. vacation and holiday 

pay, parental leave•, our employee assistance program, 
and life insurance. 

•Offered to non-bargained employees 
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Our mentorship program is open to all salaried employees. 

Those who serve as mentors strengthen their leadership 
and coaching skills. Those who seek mentorship have 

the opportunity for individual coaching to build their 

competencies for personal and professional success. 

"Making Great Things Happen" is a powerful tool that provides 

employees a recognition portal to exchange impactful 
feedback, recognize accomplishments, and provide 

encouragement to colleagues. Employees can request 

feedback and digitally present recognition and badges 
to colleagues who have helped or inspired them. 

RCPHealthylite~) 
Wellness Program ~ 

Our wellness program for U.S. employees reinforces wellness 

through prevention, education, and encouraging screenings 

and healthy habits. Employees can earn points through 

various activities that support and promote physical, mental, 

and financial wellness, including company-provided health 
screenings. meeting health targets. preventative care such 

as annual physicals, dental cleanings, vision screenings, 

and vaccinations. Qualifying activities include options for 

educational sessions. exercise. volunteering. and more. 

Financial health options include attending educational 
sessions for LIOl(k] retirement and financial planning. 

In 2025, we introduced new voluntary elective benefits* for 

supplemental critical illness and accident insurance. We also 

expanded no-cost access to our virtual physical therapy 

program to include all employees regardless of if they elect 
health plan coverage. 
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Communities and 
Volunteerism 
OUR CONSUMERS AND OUR EMPLOYEES SHARE 
WHAT MATTERS IN THEIR COMMUNITIES. 

RESPONS IBLE DI SPOSAL 

Consumers share that recycling is important in their 
communities. They value more sustainable product 
options and have asked for straightforward information 
on recycling and composting for both products and for 
product packaging. 

The vast majority of our U.S. branded products carry 
How2Recycle and How2Compost standardized labeling 
as applicable-so consumers can easily understand 
recycling or composting options both at the time of 
purchase in-store and also at the time they are using 
the product. 

For products packaged in cartons, we value and prioritize 
packaging that is made from 100% recycled paperboard, 
which is widely recyclable. 

In 202q, we applied the Recycle Check QR code to select 
product packages, which is a program of The Recycling 
Partnershi p to reduce consumer confusion around 
recycling. Individuals can easily scan the code to read local 
or zip-code based recycling information that is specific to 
the recycling practices of their community for that product. 

Our Hefty.com and ReynoldsBrands.com consumer-facing 
websites each carry a dedicated sustainability section. On 
our websites, we provide clear information on sustainability 
claims in the product description, including when a product 
uses post-consumer recycled content and the recycling or 
composting information. We've also shared this information 
with our retail partners for ecommerce websites so consumers 
can easily find this information at the point of purchase either 
online or in-store. 

THE HEFTY' BRAND HAS PARTNERED WITH PLASTIC BANK' TO HELP PREVENT COASTAL PLASTIC POLLUTION AS SHOWN ON PAGE 9, 
HEFTY' ULTRA STRONG™ TRASH BAGS INCLUDE 10% COASTAL PLASTIC COLLECTED IN PARTNERSHIP WITH PLASTIC BANK' 
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FINDING WAYS TO REDUCE THE AMOUNT OF WASTE IN OUR 
OPERATIONS, INCLUDING MATERIALS AND ENERGY-IS PART 
OF OUR OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE CULTURE. 

OUR SCIENCE-BASED GREENHOUSE GAS [GHG) EMISSION REDUCTION TARGETS: 

• RCP commits to reduce absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG 
emissions 25% by 2030 from a 2021 base year. 

• The company also commits to reduce absolute scope 3 
GHG emissions from purchased goods and services 25% 
within the same timeframe. 

WE CONTINUED TO MAKE PROGRESS TOWARD ACHIEVEMENT OF OUR GOALS: 

• We continuously work to increase our consumption of 
recycled and renewable materials in producing our products. 
This includes reducing or recycling scrap generated during 
our production processes. We offer recycling in our facilities 
as available in each community. 

• In 202q, we joined the Flexible Film Recycling Alliance (FFRA) 
a new effort that aims to address the challenges associated 
with recycling flexible films and bags by bringing together 
industry stakeholders from across the supply chain. 
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PARTNERSHIP WITH FEEDING AMERICA 

SERVE UP /wpe 
ONE MEAL AT A TIME 

Reynold.-5maki,giteasy110helpintheliglv.againsth..-,ger. 
N'fReynoldsproductyoupurchasefrorn9/231109/l0/24willhelp 

FeedingAmerica•provideameal•toneighborsexperiencinghunger. 

-JI/ I FEEDING. .. .,,,,_ AMER CA 
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The Reynolds• brand is partnering with Feeding America• 
to help reduce hunger in the United States. As part 
of September 2024 Hunger Action Month, Reynolds 
participated in a cause-marketing campaign designed 
to engage the public to take action on the issue of hunger. 
During this time, Reynalds helped provide ane meal* far 
Feeding America with every purchase made at participating 
national retailers. All Reynolds Wrap• foil products and 
Reynalds Kitchens• products, Including parchment 
paper, slow cooker liners, foil pans, and more, were 
o port of the campaign to maximize support, which 
resulted in three million meals* donated in 2024. 
Since 2020, Reynolds has donated approximately 10 
million meals through Feeding America. The campaign 
was supported with promotions both in-store and 
broad reach media including magazine ads, digital 
ads, soc/al media ads, and our website with links 
leading to purchase. 

To enhance our individual participation in Hunger Action 
Month, employees were also encouraged to volunteer at 
their local food bank or to consider making a donation. 

•s1 helps to provide ot /aost tan mao/s secured by Faadlng Amar/co• on 
behalf of loco/ member food banks. 

SUPPORTING DISASTER RELIEF EFFORTS 
ANO EMPLOYEE VOLUNTEERISM 

RCP employees are encouraged to volunteer or donate 
to the charities and causes they are passionate about. 
Great examples of how our employees contribute to our 
communities include both collections and volunteering 
for food drives/food kitchens, blood donation, 
backpack/supply donations for back-to-school, hat/ 
sock/glove drives, holiday gift programs, to assisting 
directly for hurricane relief. 

In addition to employees directly providing hurricane 
relief in North Carolina, RCP supported donations of both 
tableware and trash bags to local support organizations 
to assist in relief efforts. 

In 202£1, our Malvern, Arkansas, facility and employees 
joined a local partnership to fund and install a swing 
set designed for wheelchair users at a local elementary 
school serving numerous children with disabilities. 

In 2024, RCP contributed over 1.4 million packages of 
hinged lid containers and plates to Feeding America for 
direct use in food kitchens in LIS states. 

In a long-standing partnership, RCP donated Hefty° bags 
to the American Red Cross for disaster relief, equipping 
their rapid response teams positioned in various regions 
in the U.S. that support weather-related disasters. 
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COMPLIANCE ANO BUSINESS ETHICS 

At RCP, it is important not only what we do, but how we do 
it. Key to our values is a strong culture of compliance and 
ethical behavior. 

In addition to our commitment to adhere to all state and 
federal laws, rules, and regulations, we expect all officers, 
directors, and employees of RCP to adhere to our Code of 
Bu siness Conduct. Topics include, but are not limited to, 
harassment and discrimination, conflicts of interest, 
anti-bribery, and antitrust. Failure to comply with the code 
and other applicable policies and procedures is subject to 
corrective action, up to and including separation of 
employment. Employees are trained annually on our code, 
with salaried employees certifying that they have read and 
agree to adhere to our code. We expect our customers, 
vendors, contractors, suppliers, and other partners to 
adhere to our code of conduct and also to report any 
suspected violations of our company ethics. RCP is 
committed to investigating all potential violations of 
the code fairly and reasonably. The company maintains 
a strict non-retaliation policy. 

We provide regular communications on how to anonymously 
report any violation to employees. The information on our 
code is available on the company website, intranet, and posted 
in all facilities. Our ethics hotline for reporting is available 2£1 
hours a day, seven days a week, by phone and internet and is 
staffed by an independent third-party provider. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

At RCP, we believe that strong governance practices are essential to providing long-term value for our shareholders, 
customers, team members, and communities. Our Bo ard of Directors has adopted corporate governance guidelines 
that serve as a framework for the governance of the company. 

On September 23, 202ll, Rolf Stangl was elected as Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors, following the resignation of 
Richard Noll as Director and Chairman of the Boord on September 18, 202ll. On October 30, 2024, Lonee Mitchell notified the Boord 
of Directors that he planned to step down as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a member of the Boord of Directors, 
both effective as of January 1, 2025. Mr. Mitchell will remain with RCP as an advisor until his retirement on July 31, 2025. 

Effective January 1, 2025, Scott Huckins was appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer and elected as a member of the 
Boord of Directors and Nathan Lowe was appointed Chief Financial Officer. 

As of Morch 1, 2025, our Boord of Directors consists of eight directors, four of whom ore independent based on Nasdaq rules for 
director independence. The Board is led by an independent non-executive chair. You can find more detailed information about our 
current Boord and Committee Charters on our website, ReynoldsConsumerProducts.com/ /nvestors. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Rolf Stangl 
Director and Chairman 
of the Boord of Directors 

Allen Hugli 
Director 

Greg Cole 

Director 

Christine Montenegro 
McGrath 
Director 

Helen Golding 
Director 

Ann Ziegler 
Director 

Marla Gottschalk 
Director 

Scott Huckins 
Director 

The Boord hos two committees: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Compensation, Nominating. and 

Corporate Governance Committee 

LEADERSHIP TEAM, INVESTOR RELATIONS, ANO CORPORATE SECRETARY 

Scott Huckins Rachel Bishop 
President and Chief Executive President, Hefty Tableware 
Officer as of January 1, 2025 Business Unit 

Rita Fisher 
Chief Information Officer 
and Executive Vice 
President, Supply Chain 

Mark Swartzberg 
Vice President, 
Investor Relations 

Nathan Lowe 
Chief Financial Officer 
as of January 1, 2025 

□avid Watson 
Legal Counsel and 
Corporate Secretary 
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Judith Buckner Christopher Corey 
President, Reynolds Cooking President, Presto 
& Baking Business Unit Products Business Unit 

Valerie Miller 
Executive Vice President 
Human Resources 

Lance Mitchell 
Executive Advisor 
as of January 1, 2025 

Stephan Pace 
President 
Soles Evolution Team 

Stephen Estes 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Lisa Smith 
President, Hefty Waste & 
Storage Business Unit 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form I 0-K contains certain statements that constitute "forward-looking statements" w ithin the meaning of the 
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 . In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as 
"may," "might," "will," "should," "expects," "intends," "outlook," "forecast," "position," "committed," "plans," "anticipates," 
"believes," "estimates," "predicts," "model," "assumes," "confident," " look forward ," "potential," "on track," or "continue," or the 
negati ve of these terms and other comparabl e terminology. These forward-looking statements, whi ch are subj ect to risks, uncertainties 
and assumptions about us, may include projections of our future fin ancial performance. our anticipated growth and recovery of 
profitability, management of costs and other disruptions and other strategies, and anticipated trends in our bus iness, including expected 
levels of commodity costs and volume. These statements are onl y predi ctions based on our current expectations and projections about 
future events . There are important fac tors that could cause our actual resul ts. level of activity. performance or achievements to differ 
materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, 
including those ri sks and uncertainti es discussed in Item IA. "Risk Factors." You should specifica lly consider the numerous ri sks 
outlined in the " Risk Factors" section. These risks and uncertainties include fac tors related to: 

changes in consumer preferences. lifestyle. economi c circumstances and environmental concerns; 
relationships with our major customers. consolidation of our customer bases and loss of a significant customer; 
competition and pricing pressures; 
loss of, or disruption at, any of our key manufacturing faciliti es; 
our suppliers of raw materials and any interruption in our supply of raw materials; 
loss due to an acc ident, labor issues, weather conditions, natura l disaster, or a disease outbreak, including epidemics, pandemics 
or s imilar widespread public health concerns; 
costs of raw materials, energy, labor and freight, including the impact of tariffs, trade sanctions and similar matters affecting our 
importation of certain raw materials; 
labor shortages and increased labor costs; 
our ability to develop and maintain brands that are criti cal to our success; 
economi c downturns in our target markets; 
our ability to acqui re bus inesses; 
impacts from inflationary trends; 
difficulty meeting our sales growth objectives and innovati on goals; and 
changes in market interest rates and the availability of capital. 

A lthough we beli eve the expectations refl ected in the forward-looking statements are reasonabl e. we cannot guarantee future results. 
level of activity. performance or achievements . Moreover. neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and 
completeness of any of these forward-looking statements. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any such forward­
looking statements, which speak only as of the date they are made. We are under no duty to update any of these forward-looking 
statements after the date of this Annual Report on Form I 0-K to conform our prior statements to actual results or revised expectations. 

Additional information about these fac tors and about the material fac tors or assumptions underlying such forward-looking statements 
may be found elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form I 0-K, under Part I, Item I A. "Risk Factors." 



PART I 

ITEM I. BUSINESS 

In this Annual Report on Form I 0-K, "Reynolds Consumer Products," "RCP," the "Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer to 
Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. was incorporated in the state of 
Delaware on September 26, 2011. 

We own or have rights to trademarks, service marks and trade names that we use in connection with the operation of our business. 
Other trademarks, serv ice marks and trade names appearing in this Annual Report on Form I 0-K are the property of their respective 
owners. Solely for convenience, some of the trademarks, service marks and trade names referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K are listed without the ® or TM symbols, but we will assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights to our trademarks, 
serv ice marks and trade names. 

Overview 

Our mission is to simplify daily life so consumers can enjoy what matters most. 

We are a market-leading consumer products company with a presence in 95% of households across the United States. We produce and 
se ll products that people use in their homes for cooking, serving, cleanup and storage. We se ll our products under iconic brands such 
as Reynolds and Hefty. and also under store brands that are strategically important to our retail partners. Overall. across both our 
branded and store brand offerings, we hold the #1 or #2 U.S. market share position in the majority of product categories in which we 
participate. Over 50% of our revenue comes from products that are #1 in their respective categories. We have developed our market­
leading position by investing in our product categories, championing the categories in partnership with our retail partners and 
consistently developing innovative products to meet the evolving needs and preferences of the modern consumer. 

Our mix of branded and store brand products is a key competitive advantage that aligns our goal of growing the overall product 
categories where we have offerings. Our retail partners also measure their success in category growth, which positions us as a trusted 
strategic partner. 

Our products are typically used in the homes of consumers among all demographics on a frequent basis and meet the convenience­
oriented preferences of consumers across a broad range of household activities. Our products help simplify dail y life by assisting with 
cooking. serv ing. clean-up and storage through a range of product offerings. Our diverse portfolio includes a wide range of products, 
including aluminum foil , parchment paper, disposable bakeware, trash bags, food storage bags and disposable tableware. Our products 
are known for their quality, which is recogni zed by our consumers and retail partners alike. Our Reynolds and Hefty brands have 
preeminent positions in their categories and carry strong brand recognition in household aisles. These factors generate consumer 
loyalty, which affords us the opportunity to develop and launch new products that expand usage occasions and transition our portfolio 
into adjacent categories. 
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We have strong relationships with a diverse set of retail partners including leading grocery stores. mass merchants, warehouse clubs, 
discount chains, dollar stores, drug stores, home improvement stores, military outlets and eCommerce retailers. Our relationships with 
our retail partners have been built on a long history of trust. Our portfolio of branded and store brand products allows our retail 
partners to manage multiple household aisles with a single vendor. Many of our products have had a prominent position on the shelves 
of major retailers for decades and have become an integral part of household aisles. We believe our strong brand recognition and 
customer loyalty lead to robust product performance. 

Our brands have #1 market share positions across nearly all our categories 

Category Brand Position 

Aluminum foil (U.S.) Reynolds WraP. JJJ g#q 
~~~ 

Aluminum foil (Canada) ALCAN. ~ #1 ~ 
~~~ 

Parchment paper ReynoldsKITCHENS' g#q 
~~~ 

Wax paper ReynoldsKITCHENS' g#q 
~~~ 

Slow cooker liners ReynoldsKITCHENS' g#q 
~~~ 

Oven bags ReynoldsKITCHENS' p1~ 
~~~ 

Freezer paper ReynoldsKITCHENS' ~ #1 ~ 
~~~ 

Party cups /H.efty/ g#q 
~~~ 

Foam dishes /Hefty/ g#q 
~~~ 

Slider bags /Hefty/ ~ #2 ~ 
~~~ 

Trash bags /Hefty/ ~ #2 ~ 
~~~ 

Source: Circana Dollar Sales MULO+ latest 52 weeks ended December 29, 2024 and Nielsen MarketTrack latest 52 weeks ended 
December 28, 2024. 



Our Segments 

We manage our operations in four reportable segments: Reynolds Cooking & Baking, Hefty Waste & Storage, Hefty Tableware and 
Presto Products. 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking: Through our Reynolds Cooking & Baking segment, we sell both branded and store brand 
aluminum foil , disposable aluminum pans, parchment paper, freezer paper, wax paper, butcher paper, plastic wrap, baking cups, 
oven bags and slow cooker liners. Our branded products are sold under the Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds KITCH ENS and EZ Foil 
brands in the United States and selected international markets, under the ALCAN brand in Canada and under the Diamond 
brand outside of North America. With our flagship Reynolds Wrap products, we hold the # I market position in the U.S. 
consumer foil market measured by retail sales and volume. We also hold the #1 market position in the Canadian branded foil 
market under the ALCAN brand. We have no significant branded competitor in this market. Reynolds is one of the most 
recognized household brands in the United States, with 98% brand awareness, and has been the top trusted brand in the 
consumer foil market for over 75 years, with greater than 50% market share in most of its categories. We also offer more 
sustainable solutions, such as Reynolds Wrap I 00% recycled aluminum, unbleached parchment paper made with a chlorine-free 
process and coreless wax paper, which uses less packaging material than traditional wax paper rolls. 

Hefty Waste & Storage: Through our Hefty Waste & Storage segment, we produce both branded and store brand trash and food 
storage bags. Hefty is a well-recognized leader in the trash bag and food storage bag categories and our private label products 
offer value to our retail partners. Our branded products are sold under the Hefty Ultra Strong and Hefty Strong brands for trash 
bags, and as the Hefty and Baggies brands for our food storage bags. Hefty has 98% brand awareness and is most commonly 
identified with the Brand's famous " Hefty! Hefty! Hefty!" slogan. We have the # I branded market share in the U.S. large black 
trash bag segment, and the #2 branded market share in the slider bag and tall kitchen trash bag segments. Our robust product 
portfolio in this segment includes a full suite of products, including sustainable solutions such as blue and clear recycling bags, 
compostable bags, bags made from recycled materials and orange bags through the Hefty ReNew Program. 

Hefty Tableware: Through our Hefty Tableware segment, we se ll both branded and store brand disposable and compostable 
plates, bowls, platters, containers, cups and cutlery. Our Hefty branded products include dishes, party cups, cutlery and 
containers. Hefty branded party cups are the # 1 party cup in America measured by market share. Our branded products use our 
Hefty brand to represent both quality and value, and we bring this same quality and value promise to all of our store brands as 
well. We se ll across a broad range of materials and price points in all retail channels, allowing our consumers to select the 
product that best suits their price, function and aesthetic needs. These materials include sustainable solutions, such as Hefty 
ECOSA VE and Hefty Compostable Printed Paper Plates. In 2024, we increased the post-consumer recycled content in some of 
our cups and we added compostable party cups to our assortment. 

Presto Products: Through our Presto Products segment, we primarily se ll store brand products in four main categories: food 
storage bags, trash bags, reusable storage containers and plastic wrap. Presto Products is a market leader in food storage bags 
and differentiates itself by providing access to category management, consumer insights, marketing, merchandi sing and research 
and development ("R&D") resources. Presto Products was the first in the U.S. market to offer a store branded sandwich bag 
made with an approximately 20% proprietary blend of plant and ocean, renewable materials. Our Presto Products segment also 
includes our specialty business, which serves other consumer products companies by providing Fresh-Lock and Slide-Rite 
resealable closure systems. 

Our Products 

Our portfolio consists of three main product groups: waste and storage products, cooking products and tableware. Our consolidated net 
revenues by product line for fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 were as follows: 

(in millions) 

Waste and storage (I) 

Cooking products 

Tableware 

Unallocated 

Net revenues $ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2024 2023 

1,555 $ 1,535 $ 

1,247 1,273 

918 967 

(25) (19) 

3,695 =$===3=,7=56= $ 

(1) Waste and storage products are comprised of our Hefty Waste & Storage and Presto Products segments. 

2022 

1,550 

1,287 

1,000 

(20) 

3,817 

Customers 

Our customer base includes leading grocery stores, mass merchants, warehouse clubs, discount chains, dollar stores, drug stores, home 
improvement stores, military outlets and eCommerce retailers. We se ll both branded and store brand products across our customer 
base. We generally se ll our branded products pursuant to informal trading policies and our store brand products under one year or 
multi-year agreements. Walmart accounted for 31 %, 30% and 30% and Sam' s Club accounted for 17%, I 8% and I 8% ofour total net 
revenue in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Walmart and Sam 's Club are affiliated entities. Sales to Walmart are 
concentrated more heavil y in our Hefty Waste & Storage segment, and sales to Sam's Club are concentrated more heavil y in our Hefty 
Tableware segment. 

During fi scal year 2024, sales in North America and the United States represented 99% and 97% of our total sales, respectively. 

Sales and Distribution 

Through our sales and marketing organization, we are able to manage our relationships with customers at the national , regional and 
local levels, depending on their needs. We believe that our dedicated sales representatives, category management teams and our 
participation in both branded and store brand products create a significant competitive advantage. 

We have a direct sales force organized by customer type, including national accounts, regional accounts and eCommerce. Our sa les 
force is responsible for sales across each of our segments and our portfolio of branded and store brand products. We complement our 
internal sales platform by selectively utilizing third-party brokers for certain products and customers. In addition to sales professionals, 
each of our top 20 customers has a dedicated customer support team, including category management, production planning and 
transportation teams, as well as customer service representatives. 

We utilize two routes of di stribution to deliver our products to our customers. In many cases, we ship directl y from our manufacturing 
plants to the customer's distribution center. Given the breadth of our product offerings, we are also able to optimize truckloads and 
reduce inventory for our retail partners by shipping trucks from mixing centers filled with SK Us across all of our product categories. 

Competition 

The U.S. household consumer products market is mature and highly competitive. Our competitive set consists of consumer products 
companies, including large and well-established multinational companies as well as smaller regional and local companies. These 
competitors include The Clorox Company, S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., Poly-America, Handi-Foil Corporation, Republic Plastics, Ltd. , 
Trinidad Benham Corporation and lnteplast Group, Ltd. Within each product category, most of our products compete with other 
widely advertised brands and store brand products. 

Competition in our categories is based on a number of factors including brand recognition, price, quality and innovation. We benefit 
from the strength of our brands, a differentiated portfolio of quality branded and store brand products, as well as significant capital 
investment in our manufacturing facilities. We believe the strong recognition of the Reynolds brand and Hefty brand among U.S. 
consumers gives us a competitive advantage. In addition, our largest customers choose us for our customer service, category 
management services and commitment to "Made in the U.S.A." products. 

Seasonality 

Portions of our business have historicall y been moderately seasonal. Overall, our strongest sales are in our fourth quarter and our 
weakest sales are in our first quarter. This is driven by higher levels of sales of cooking products around major U.S. holidays in our 
fourth quarter, primarily due to the holiday use of Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds Oven Bags, Reynolds Parchment Paper and disposable 
aluminum pans. Our tableware products generally have higher sa les in the second and fourth quarters of the year, primarily due to 
outdoor summertime and holiday uses of disposable plates, cups, bowls and cutlery. 

Raw Materials and Suppliers 

We have a diverse supplier base and are not reliant on any single supplier for our primary raw materials, including polyethylene, 
polystyrene and aluminum. We also purchase raw material additives, secondary packaging materials and finished products for resale. 
We source a s ignificant majority of our resin requirements from domestic suppliers. 

Centralized purchasing enables us to leverage the purchasing power of our operations and reduces our dependence on any one 
supplier. We generally have one to two year contracts with res in and aluminum suppliers, which have historically provided us with a 
steady supply of raw materials. In certain instances, we purchase selected fini shed goods from third-party suppliers to supplement 
capacity and source specialty items. 



Intellectual Property 

We have a signi ficant number of registered patents and registered trademarks, including Reynolds and Hefty, as we ll as several 
copyrights, which, along with our trade secrets and manufacturing know-how, help support our ability to add value within the market 
and sustain our competitive advantages. We have invested a considerable amount of resources in developing proprietary products and 
manufacturing capabili ties, and we employ vari ous methods, including confidentiality and non-di sclosure agreements with third 
parties, employees and consultants, to protect our intellectua l property. While in the aggregate our patents are of materi al importance 
to us, we be li eve that we are not dependent upon any s ingle patent or group of patents. 

Other than licenses for commercially ava ilable software, we do not believe that any of our licenses from third parties are material to us 
taken as a whole. We do not believe that any of our li censes to in te llectual property ri ghts granted to third parties are material to us 
taken as a whole. 

Employees and Human Capital 

Our obj ectives related to an engaged team include successfully identifying, recruiting, onboarding, retaining and incentivizing both 
new and existing empl oyees. Our ta lent management and succession pl anning process includes the identification of primary 
succession roles based on current and future business strategies, the identi fication of potential successors, a list of action items and a 
plan for talent development. As of December 3 1, 2024, we employed approximately 6,400 people, most of whom are located in our 
U.S. and Canada manufacturing fac iliti es. Approx imate ly 20% ofour empl oyees are covered by collect ive bargaining agreements. We 
have not experienced any significant union-related work stoppages over the last ten years. We believe our relationships with our 
employees and labor unions are sati sfactory. 

Environmental, Health & Safety: We are committed to protecting the safety, health and security of our employees and that of the 
environments in which we operate. We are firm in our po li cy that we will not compromi se employee health and safety or the 
environment for profit or production. We are passionate about health and safety and pride ourselves on our strategy of prevention 
through proactive ri sk elimination and reduction. Our cross-funct ional leaders and team members work collaborative ly to identi fy 
ri sks and to develop and impl ement control measures leverag ing engineering solutions and new technology for mitigati on. Our safety 
performance continues to outperform the industry 's average safety performance by a significant margin, and we continue to progress 
toward our goal of zero incidents th rough increas ing awareness of opportunities for improvement and implementing effective solutions 
to reduce ri sks assoc iated with contact with equipment, slips, trips, and fa lls, as we ll as ergonomi c hazards. 

People & Culture: We have built a culture based on treating others with respect and working collaborative ly on shared goals. Our 
va lue of putting safety first promotes a cul ture of caring and watching out for the safety of each other. Treat ing others with di gni ty, 
empathy and respect is the foundation of our culture. We value our relationships with our colleagues, retail partners, consumers, 
shareholders and communities. We are committed to communicating our goals, offering tra ining and development opportunities and 
integrating an inclusive approach to talent management into our overall business strategy. We will continue to promote a culture that 
values inclusion and belonging and sees unique experiences and viewpoints as growing our understanding of how we can work better 
together. We will continue our efforts to build and retain a robust workforce that welcomes talent and capability to strengthen all 
aspects of our business. 

Talent Acquisition: We are committed to a workplace environment in which indi vidual differences are recogni zed, respected and 
appreciated. We prov ide job opportunities for individual growth in our exciting, dynamic and fas t-paced manufacturing plants and 
offi ces. Our management and Talent Acquisition teams use data from workforce planning and recruiting. In 2024, we updated our 
applicant track ing system to better enabl e us to source and recruit talent in today 's chall enging labor market, ass ist in a great candidate 
experience and provide a welcoming new-hire onboarding. To support our plants, we have also created a comprehensive hourl y 
employee recruiting strategy for a consistent and effi cient approach to identifying and onboarding diverse talent. 

Regulatory 

As many of our products are used in food packaging, our business is subject to regulati ons governing products that may contact food 
in all the countries in which we have operations. O ur business is also subject to regulations governing adverti sing claims related to our 
products and pract ices, including regulations concerning representations that products are environmentally-friendly, have less of an 
environmental impact, or are sustainabl e. Future regul atory and legislative change can affect the economics of our business acti vities, 
lead to changes in operating practices, affect our customers and influence the demand for and the cost of providing products and 
services to our customers. We have implemented compliance programs and procedures designed to achieve compli ance with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

We are subject to various national, state, local, foreign and in ternational environmenta l, health and safety laws, regulations and 
permi ts. Among other things, these requirements regulate the emission or discharge of materials into the environment, govern the use, 
storage, treatment, disposal and management of hazardous substances and wastes, protect the health and safety of our employees, 
regul ate the materials used in and the recycling of our products and impose li abili ty, whi ch can be strict, j oint and several, for the costs 
of investigating and remediating, and damages resulting from, present and past releases of hazardous substances related to our current 
and former s ites, as we ll as at third party sites where we or our predecessors have sent hazardous waste for disposal. Many of our 
manufacturing fac ilities require environmental permits, such as those limiting air emissions. 

In addition, a number of governmental authorities, at the federal, state and local level in the United States and abroad, have 
impl emented, considered, or are expected to consider, legislation aimed at reducing the amount of plasti c waste, regul ating product 
content and regulating environmental claims. Our business is subj ect to regulations that govern matters such as post-consumer 
recycled content, extended producer responsibility, compostability and recyclability claims, and use of Per- and Polyflu orinated 
Substances ("PFAS"). We have impl emented compliance programs and procedures designed to achieve compliance with appli cabl e 
laws and regulations. 

Moreover, as environmental issues, such as climate change, have become more prevalent, governments have responded, and are 
expected to continue to respond, with increased legislation and regulation, which could negative ly affect us. For example, the United 
States Congress has in the past considered legislati on to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases. In additi on, the Environmental 
Protection Agency is regulating certain greenhouse gas emissions under ex isting laws such as the Clean Air Act. A number of states 
and local governments in the United States have also implemented or announced their intentions to implement their own programs to 
reduce greenhouse gases. 

We are also subj ect to various laws and regulations related to data privacy and protection, including the Cali fornia Consumer Pri vacy 
Act of201 8 ("CCPA") and the European Union's General Data Protection Regul ation ("GDPR"). We have internal programs in pl ace 
to manage and monitor global compliance with these various requirements. 

Available Information 

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet 
s ite that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that fil e electronica lly with the 
SEC at http://www.sec.gov. 

We also make fin ancial informati on, news releases and other information ava il abl e on our corporate website at 
www.reynoldsconsumerproducts.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-
K, and any amendments to those reports filed or furni shed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(the "Exchange Act") are ava il abl e free of charge on this website as soon as reasonabl y practicable after we electroni ca ll y fil e these 
reports and amendments with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Our board has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that appli es to 
all of our employees, offi cers and directors, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offi cer and other executive and 
seni or fin ancial officers, the full text of whi ch is posted on the investor relations section of our website at 
www.reynoldsconsumerproducts.com. We intend to disclose future amendments to our code of business conduct and ethics, or any 
waivers of such code, on our website or in public filin gs. 

The information contained on or connected to our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K and 
should not be considered part of this or any other report filed with the SEC. 



ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

You should carefully consider the risks described below in addition to the other information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 
10-K, including the Management 's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section and the 
consolidated financial statements and related notes. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition and 
results of operations could be materially adversely affected. The risks discussed below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks 
or uncertainties not currently known lo us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also have a material adverse effect on our 
business,financial condition, prospects, results of operations, cash flows or price of our securities. 

Risks Related to Our Business, Growth and Profitability 

Our success depends on our ability to anticipate and respond to changes in consumer preferences. 

We are a consumer products company and believe that our success depends, in part, on our ability to leverage our ex isting brands and 
products to drive increased sales and profits. This depends on our ability to identify and offer products at attractive prices that appeal 
to consumer tastes and preferences, which are difficult to predict and evolve over time. Our ability to implement this strategy depends 
on, among other things, our ability to: 

continue to offer to our customers products that consumers want at competitive prices; 

introduce new and appealing products and innovate successfull y on our existing products; 

develop and maintain consumer interest in our brands; and 

increase our brand recognition and loya lty. 

We may not be able to implement this strategy successfully, which could materially and adversely affect our sales and business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

We are dependent on maintaining satb,factory relationships with our major customers, and significant consolidation among our 
customers, or the loss of a significant customer, could decrease demand for our products or reduce our profitability. 

Many of our customers are large and possess significant market leverage, which results in significant downward pricing pressure and 
can constrain our ability to pass through price increases. We generally se ll our branded products pursuant to informal trading policies 
and our store brand products under one year or multi-year agreements. Our contracts generally do not obligate the customer to 
purchase any given amount of product. If our major customers reduce purchasing volumes or stop purchasing our products for any 
reason, our business and resul ts of operations would likely be materially and adversely affected. It is possible that we will lose 
customers, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We rely on a relatively small number of customers for a significant portion of our revenue. In 2024, sales to our top ten customers 
accounted for 72% of our total revenue, and our two largest customers, Walmart and Sam ' s Club, individually accounted for 31 % and 
17%, respectively, of our total revenue. Walmart and Sam 's Club are affiliated entities. Sales to Walmart are concentrated more 
heavily in our Hefty Waste & Storage segment, and sales to Sam' s Club are concentrated more heavily in our Hefty Tableware 
segment. The loss of any of our significant customers would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

In addition, over the last several years, there has been a trend toward consolidation among our customers in the retail industry and we 
expect that this trend will continue. Consolidation among our customers could increase their ability to apply pricing pressure, and 
thereby force us to reduce our selling prices or lose sales. In addition, following a consolidation, our customers may close stores, 
reduce inventory or switch suppliers. Any of these factors could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

We operate in competitive markets. 

We operate in competitive markets. Our main competitors include The Clorox Company, S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc. , Poly-America, 
Handi-Foil Corporation, Republic Plastics, Ltd., Trinidad Benham Corporation and lnteplast Group, Ltd. Although capital costs, 
intellectual property and technology may create barriers to entry, we face the threat of competition from new entrants to our markets as 
well as from ex isting competitors, including competitors outside the United States who may have lower production costs. Our 
customers continuously evaluate their suppliers, often resulting in downward pricing pressure and increased pressure to continuously 
introduce and commercialize itu1ovative new products, improve customer service, maintain strong relationships with our customers 
and, where applicable, develop and maintain brands that are meaningful to consumers. If our products fail to compete successfully 
with other branded or private label offerings, demand for our products and our sales and profitabili ty could be negatively impacted. 
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Loss of any of our key manufacturing facilities or of those of our key suppliers could have an adverse effect on our business. 

Some of our products are manufactured at a single location. For example, our Malvern, Arkansas plant is our sole producer of foil 
reroll for our Louisville, Kentucky and Wheeling, Illinois plants, which in turn are our sole producers of household foil. The loss of 
the use of all or a portion of any of our key manufacturing facilities, especially one that is a sole producer, or the loss of any key 
suppliers, due to any reason, including an accident, labor issues, weather conditions, natural di saster, a disease outbreak (including 
epidemics, pandemics or similar widespread public health concerns), cyber-attacks against our information systems (such as 
ransomware) or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our business has been and continues to be impacted by fluctuations in raw material, energy and freight costs, including the impact 
of tariffs and similar matters. 

Fluctuations in raw material and energy costs could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Raw 
material costs represent a significant portion of our cost of sales. The primary raw materials we use are plastic res ins, particularly 
pol yethylene and pol ystyrene, and aluminum. The prices of our raw materials have fluctuated significantly in recent years. Aluminum 
prices have been historically volatile as aluminum is a cyclical commodity with prices subject to global market fac tors. Resin prices 
have also historically fluctuated with changes in crude oil and natural gas prices as well as changes in refining capacity and the 
demand for other petroleum-based products . We experienced significant increases in material costs in 2022, particularly in resin and 
aluminum prices, which negatively impacted our results. Significant increases in material costs could also occur in future periods, 
which could negatively impact our future results. 

Raw material costs are also impacted by governmental actions, such as tariffs and trade sanctions. For example, the imposition by the 
U.S. government of tariffs on products imported from certain countries and trade sanctions against certain countries have introduced 
greater uncertainty with respect to policies affecting trade between the United States and other countries and have impacted the cost of 
certain raw materials, including aluminum and resin. Major developments in trade relations, including the imposition of new or 
increased tariffs by the United States and/or other countries, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

We typically do not enter into long-term fi xed price purchase contracts for our principal raw material s. The majority of sales contracts 
for our products generally do not contain contractual cost pass-through mechanisms for raw material costs. Where our contracts use 
such pass-through mechanisms, differences in timing between purchases of raw materials and sales to customers can create a " lead 
lag" effect during which margins are negatively impacted when raw material costs rise and positively impacted when raw material 
costs fall. We adjust prices, where possible, to attempt to mitigate the effect of production cost increases, including raw materials, but 
these increases are not always possible or may not cover the increased raw material costs. For example, we implemented multiple 
rounds of price increases in 2022, however those pricing actions typically lagged material cost increases. 

In addition, we distribute our products and receive raw materials primarily by rail and truck. Reduced availability of rail or trucking 
capacity has caused us, and may continue to cause us, to incur unanticipated expenses and impair our ability to distribute our products 
or receive our raw materials in a timely manner, which could disrupt our operations, strain our customer relations and adversely affect 
our operating profits. In particular, reduced trucking capacity, due to a shortage of drivers, the federal regulation requiring drivers to 
electronically log their driving hours and adverse weather conditions, among other reasons, have caused an increase in our cost of 
transportation. 

Any interruption in our supply of raw materials could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We are dependent on our suppliers for an uninterrupted suppl y of key raw materials in a timel y manner. The supply of these materials 
could be disrupted for a wide variety of reasons, including political and economic instability, the fin ancial stability of our suppliers, 
their ability to meet our standards, labor problems, the availability and prices of raw materials, currency exchange rates, transport 
availability and cost, transport security and inflation, and other factors beyond our control. We have written contracts with some but 
not all of our key suppliers, and where we have written contracts, they generally include force majeure clauses that excuse the 
supplier's failure to supply in certain circumstances. Any interruption in the supply of raw materials for an extended period of time 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Labor shortages and increased labor costs have had and could have a material adverse effect on our business and operations. 

Labor costs in the United States continue to ri se, and our industry has, and could again, experience a shortage of workers. Labor is one 
of the primary components in the cost of operating our business. If we face labor shortages and incur further increases to labor costs as 
a result of increased competition for employees, higher employee turnover rates, increases in the federal, state or local minimum wage 
or other employee benefit costs, our operating expenses could increase and our growth and resul ts of operations could be adversely 
impacted. 

II 



Our brands are critical to our success. 

Our ability to compete successfully depends on our ability to develop and maintain brands that are meaningful to consumers. The 
development and maintenance of such brands requires significant investment in product innovation, brand-building, advertising and 
marketing. We focus on developing innovative products to address consumers' unmet needs and introducing store brand products that 
emulate other popular branded consumer products, and, as a result, may increase our expenditures for advertising and other brand­
building or marketing initiatives. However, these initiatives may not deliver the desired results, which could adversely affect our 
business and the recoverability of the trade names recorded on our balance sheet, which could materially and adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our business could be impacted by changes in consumer lifestyle and environmental concerns, as well as current and future laws 
and regulations related to environmental matters. 

We are a consumer products company and any reduction in consumer demand for the types of products we offer as a result of changes 
in consumer lifestyle, environmental concerns or other considerations could have a significant impact on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. For example, there have been recent concerns about the environmental impact of single-use 
disposable products and products made from plastic, particularly polystyrene foam. These concerns, and the actions taken in response 
(including regulations banning the sale of certain polystyrene foam products in certain jurisdictions), impact several of our products, 
especially in our Hefty Tableware segment. Further, a number of governmental authorities, both at the fed eral, state and local level in 
the United States and abroad, have implemented, considered, or are expected to consider, additional legislation aimed at reducing the 
amount of plastic waste, regulating product content and regulating environmental claims. Our business is subject to regulations that 
govern matters such as post-consumer recycled content, extended producer responsibility, compostability and recyclability claims, and 
use of PFAS. Future regulatory and legislative change could affect the economics of our business activities, lead to changes in 
operating practices, affect our customers and influence the demand for and the cost of providing products and services to our 
customers. Sustainability concerns, including the recycling of products, have received increased focu s in recent years and are expected 
to play an increasing role in brand management and consumer purchasing decisions. These changes in consumer lifestyle, 
environmental concerns or other considerations may result in a decrease in the demand for certain of our current products, an increase 
in expenditures to attempt to adapt and respond to these concerns, and an inability to respond through innovation or acquisition of 
assets we do not currently own, any of which could materiall y and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Our business is affected by economic downturns in the markets that we serve and in the regions that supply our raw materials. 

Our business is impacted by market conditions in the retail industry and consumer demand for our products, which in turn are affected 
by general economic conditions. Downturns or periods of economic weakness or increased prices in these consumer markets have 
resulted in the past, and could result in the future, in decreased demand for our products. For example, uncertainty about future 
economic conditions globally, and in the United States in particular, could lead to declines in consumer spending and consumption and 
cause our customers to purchase fewer of our products. 

Market conditions could also impact our ability to manage our inventory levels to meet customers' demand for our products. Our 
production levels and inventory management goal s for our products are based on estimates of demand, taking into account production 
capacity, timing of shipments and inventory levels. If market conditions change, resulting in us overestimating or underestimating 
demand for any of our products during a given season, we may not maintain appropriate inventory levels, which could materially and 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Global supply chain issues and other macroeconomic factors in the past have resulted in an inflationary environment that led to 
increased raw material costs and other input costs. The additional costs resulting from this inflationary environment and its constraints 
to our supply chain and distribution networks may again unfavorably impact our gross margin and operating results in future periods. 

The estimates and assumptions on which our financial projections are based may prove to be inaccurate, which may cause our 
actual results to materially differ from such projections, which may adversely affect our future profitability, cash flows and stock 
price. 

Our financial projections, including any sales and earnings guidance or outlook we may provide from time to time, are dependent on 
certain estimates and assumptions. Our financial projections are based on historical experience, various other estimates and 
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances and at the time they are made, but our actual results may differ 
materially from our financial projections. Any material variation between the Company's financial projections and its actual results 
may adversely affect the Company's future profitability, cash flows and stock price. 
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Our profitability and cash flows could suffer if we are unable to generate cost savings in our manufacturing and distribution 
processes. 

While we continue to work on various incremental cost savings programs, if we cannot successfull y develop and implement cost 
savings plans, or if the cost of making these changes increases, we will not realize all anticipated benefits, which could materially and 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Sales growth objectives may be difficult to achieve, we may not be able to achieve our innovation goals, develop and introduce new 
products and line extensions or expand into adjacent categories and countries, and we may not be able to successfully implement 
price increases; further, changes to our product mix may adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations. 

We operate in mature markets that are subject to high levels of competition. Our future performance and growth depend on innovation 
and our ability to successfully develop or license capabilities to introduce new products, brands, line extensions and product 
innovations or enter into or expand into adjacent product categories, sales channels or countries. Our ability to quickly innovate in 
order to adapt our products to meet changing consumer demands is essential , especially in light of eCommerce and direct-to-consumer 
channels significantly reducing the barriers for even small competitors to quickly introduce new brands and products directly to 
consumers. The development and introduction of new products require substantial and effective research and development and 
demand creation expenditures, which we may be unable to recoup if the new products do not gain widespread market acceptance. If 
we are unable to increase market share in existing product lines, develop product innovations, undertake sales, marketing and 
advertising initiatives that grow our product categories, effectively adopt new technologies, and/or develop, acquire or successfully 
launch new products or brands, we may not achieve our sales growth objectives. 

In addition, effective and integrated systems are required for us to gather and use consumer data and information to successfully 
market our products. New product development and marketing efforts, including efforts to enter markets or product categories in 
which we have limited or no prior experience, have inherent risks, including product development or launch delays. These could result 
in us not being the first to market and the failure of new products, brands or line extensions to achieve anticipated levels of market 
acceptance. If product introductions or new or expanded adjacencies are not successful, costs associated with these efforts may not be 
fully recouped and our results of operations could be adversely affected. In addition, if sales generated by new products cause a 
decline in sales of our existing products, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. Even 
if we are successful in increasing market share within particular product categories, a decline in the markets for such product 
categories could have a negative impact on our financial results. In addition, in the future, our growth strategy may include expanding 
our international operations, which would be subject to foreign market ri sks, including, among others, foreign currency fluctuation s, 
economic or political instability and the imposition of tariffs and trade restrictions, which could adversely affect our financial results. 

In addition, we have implemented price increases and may implement additional price increases in the future, which may slow sales 
growth or create volume declines in the short term as customers and consumers adjust to these price increases. Competitors may or 
may not take competitive actions, which may lead to sales declines and loss of market share for us. In addition, changes to the mix of 
products that we sell or product portfolio optimization efforts may adversely impact our net sales, profitability and cash flow. 

We may incur liabilities, experience harm to our reputation and brands, or be forced to recall products as a result of real or 
perceived product quality or other product-related issues. 

Although we have quality control measures and systems in place that are designed to ensure that the safety and quality of our products 
are maintained, the consequences of not being able to do so could be severe, including adverse effects on consumer health, our 
reputation, the loss of customers and market share, financial costs and loss of revenue. If any of our products are found to be defective, 
we could be required to or may voluntarily recall such products, which could result in adverse publicity, significant expenses and a 
disruption in sales and could affect our reputation and that of our products. In addition, if any of our competitors or customers supply 
faulty or contaminated products to the market, our industry could be negatively impacted, which in turn could have adverse effects on 
our business. 

The widespread use of social media and networking sites by consumers has greatly increased the speed and accessibility of 
infonnation dissemination. Negative publicity, posts or comments on social media or networking sites about us or our brands, whether 
accurate or inaccurate, or disclosure of non-public sensitive information about us, could be widely disseminated through the use of 
social media. Such events, if they were to occur, could harm our image and adversely affect our business, as well as require resources 
to rebuild our reputation. 
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We are affected by seasonality. 

Portions of our business have historicall y been moderately seasonal. Overall, our strongest sa les are in our fourth quarter and our 
weakest sales are in our first quarter. This is driven by higher levels of sales of cooking products around major U.S. holidays in our 
fourth quarter, primarily due to the holiday use of Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds Oven Bags, Reynolds Parchment Paper and disposable 
aluminum pans. Our tableware products generally have higher sa les in the second and fourth quarters of the year, primarily due to 
outdoor summertime and holiday uses of disposable plates, cups, bowls and cutlery. As a result of this seasonality, any factors 
negatively affecting us during these periods of any year, including unfavorable economic conditions, could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results of operations for the entire year. Because of quarterly fluctuation s caused by these and 
other factors, comparisons of our operating results across different fiscal quarters may not be accurate indicators of our future 
performance. 

Loss of our key management and other personnel, or an inability to attract new management and other personnel, could negatively 
impact our business,financial condition and results of operations. 

We depend on our senior executive officers and other key personnel to operate our businesses, develop new products and technologies 
and service our customers. The loss of any of these key personnel could adversely affect our operations. Effect ive January I, 2025, our 
long-term President, Chief Executive Officer and member of our Board of Directors, Lance Mitchell, stepped down from such 
positions due to his voluntary retirement. Scott Huckins, previously our Chief Financial Officer, was appointed as Pres ident and Chief 
Executive Officer and as a member of our Board of Directors, and Nathan Lowe, previously our Senior Vice President of Financial 
Planning & Analysis, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer. Any s ignificant leadership change or senior management transition 
involves inherent ri sks, and any failure to successfully transition key roles could impact our ability to execute on our strategic plans, 
make it difficult to meet our performance objectives and be disruptive to our business. Lance Mitchell will remain with the Company 
as an employee in an advisory capacity through his vo luntary retirement on July 31 , 2025. 

Competition is intense for qualified personnel and the loss of them or an inability to attract, retain and motivate additional highly 
skilled personnel required for the operation and expansion of our business could hinder our ability to successfully conduct research 
and development activities or develop and support marketable products. Additionally, the high U.S. employment levels in our industry 
in recent years have increased turnover as compared to prior periods at some of our facilities and made hiring and retaining hourly 
employees more difficult. Any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

We may have difficulty acquiring or integrating product lines or businesses, which could impact our business,financial condition 
and results of operations. 

We may continue to pursue acquisitions of brands, businesses, assets or technologies from third parties. Acquisitions and their pursuits 
can involve numerous risks, including, among other things: 

difficulties reali zing the full extent of the expected benefits or synergies as a result of a transaction, within the anticipated time 
frame, or at all; 

difficulties integrating the operations, technologies, services, products and systems of the acquired brands, assets or businesses 
in an effective, timely and cost-efficient manner; 

diversion of management' s attention from other business priorities; 

difficulties operating in new lines of business, channels of distribution or markets; 

loss of key employees, partners, suppliers and customers of the acquired business; 

difficulties conforming standards, controls, procedures and policies of the acquired business with our own; 

incurring unforeseen risks and liabilities associated with acquired businesses; 

difficulties developing or launching products with acquired technologies; and 

other unanticipated problems or liabilities. 

Acquisitions could result in the assumption of contingent liabilities. In addition, to the extent that the economic benefits associated 
with an acquisition or investment diminish in the future or the performance of an acquired company or business is less robust than 
expected, we may be required to record impairments of any acquired intangible assets, including goodwill. 

We may not he successful in obtaining, maintaining and enforcing sufficient intellectual property rights to protect our busineliis, or 
in avoiding claims that we infringe on the intellectual property rights of others. 

We rel y on intellectual property rights such as patents, trademarks and copyrights, as well as unpatented proprietary knowledge and 
trade secrets, to protect our business. However, these rights do not afford complete protection against third parties. For example, 
patents, trademarks and copyrights are territorial ; thus, our business will only be protected by these rights in those jurisdictions in 
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which we have been issued patents or have trademarks or copyrights, or have obtained licenses to use such patents, trademarks or 
copyrights. Even so, the laws of certain countries may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of 
the United States. Additionally, there can be no assurance that others will not independentl y develop knowledge and trade secrets that 
are similar to ours, or develop products or brands that compete effectively with our products and brands without infringing, misusing 
or otherwise violating any of our intellectual property rights. 

We cannot be certain that any of our current or pending patents, trademarks and copyrights will provide us with sufficient protection 
from competitors, or that any intellectual property rights we do hold will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged in the future. 
There is also a ri sk that we will not be able to obtain and perfect or, where appropriate, license, the intellectual property rights 
necessary to support new product introductions and product innovations. Additionally, we have licensed, and may license in the 
future, patents, trademarks, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights to third parties. While we attempt to ensure that our 
intellectual property rights are protected when entering into business relationships, third parties may take actions that could materially 
and adversely affect our rights or the value of our intellectual property rights. 

Third parties may copy or otherwise obtain and use our proprietary knowledge or trade secrets without authorization or infringe, 
misuse or otherwise violate our other intellectual property rights. For example, our brand names, especially Reynolds, Hefty, Diamond 
and Presto, are well-established in the market and have attracted infringers in the past. Additionally, we may not be able to prevent 
current and former employees, contractors and other parties from misappropriating our confidential and proprietary knowledge. 
Infringement, misuse or other violation of any of our intellectual property rights may dilute or diminish the value of our brands and 
products in the marketplace, which could adversely affect our results of operations and make it more difficult for us to maintain a 
strong market position. 

Although we believe that our intellectual property rights are sufficient to allow us to conduct our business without incurring liability to 
third parties, our products and brands may infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, and in the past we have been, and in 
the future we may be, subject to claims asserting infringement, misuse or other violation of intellectual property rights and seeking 
damages, the payment of royalties or licensing fees, and/or injunctions against the sales of our products. If we are found to have 
infringed, misused or otherwise violated the intellectual property rights of others, we could be forced to pay damages, cease use of 
such intellectual property or, ifwe are given the opportunity to continue to use the intellectual property rights of others, we could be 
required to pay a substantial amount for continued use of those rights. In any case, such claims could be protracted and costly and 
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations regardless of their outcome. 

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are a material component of our balance sheet and impairments of these assets 
could have a significant impact on our results. 

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, representing our Reynolds and Hefty trade 
names, on our balance sheet. We test the carrying values of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least 
annually and whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The estimates and assumptions 
about future results of operations and cash flows made in connection with impairment testing could differ from future actual results of 
operations and cash flows. While we concluded that our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets were not impaired during our 
annual impairment review performed during the fourth quarter of 2024, future events could cause us to conclude that the goodwill 
associated with a given reporting unit, or one of our indefinite-lived intangible assets, may have become impaired. Any resulting 
impairment charge, although non-cash, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

Some of our workforce is covered by collective bargaining agreements, and our business could be harmed in the event of a 
prolonged work stoppage. 

Approximately 20% of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements. While we believe we have good relationships 
with our unionized employees and we have not experienced a s ignificant union-related work stoppage over the last ten years, if we 
encounter difficulties with renegotiations or renewals of collective bargaining arrangements or are unsuccessful in those efforts, we 
could incur additional costs and experience work stoppages. We cannot predict how stable our union relationships will be or whether 
we will be able to successfully negotiate successor collective bargaining agreements without impacting our financial condition. In 
addition, the presence of unions may limit our flexibility in dealing with our workforce. Work stoppages could negatively impact our 
ability to manufacture our products on a timely basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and 
financial condition. 

Tax legislation initiatives or challenges to our tax positions could adversely affect our operations and financial condition. 

We are subject to the tax laws and regulations of the U.S. federal , state and local governments. From time to time, legis lative measures 
may be enacted that could adversely affect our overall tax positions regarding income or other taxes. There can be no assurance that 
our effective tax rate or tax payments will not be adversely affected by these legislative measures. 
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In addition, U.S. federal, state and local tax laws and regulations are extremely complex and subject to varying interpretations. There 
can be no assurance that our tax positions will be sustained if challenged by relevant tax authorities and if not susta ined, there could be 
a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Impacts associated with a future pandemic and associated responses could adversely impact our business and results of operations. 

A future pandemic or health epidemic could adversely impact our business and results of operations in a number of ways, including 
but not limited to: 

a shutdown, disruption or less than full utilization of one or more of our manufacturing, warehousing or distribution facilities, or 
disruption in our supply chain or customer base, including but not limited to, as a result of illness, government restrictions or 
other workforce disruptions; 

the failure of third parties on which we rely, including but not limited to those that supply our raw materials and other necessary 
operating materials, co-manufacturers and independent contractors, to meet their obligations to us, or significant disruptions in 
their ability to do so; 

government or regulatory responses in markets where we manufacture, se ll or distribute our products, or in the markets of third 
parties on which we rely, preventing or disrupting our business operations; 

higher costs in certain areas such as front-line employee compensation, as well as incremental costs associated with newly added 
health screenings, temperature checks and enhanced cleaning and sanitation protocols to protect our employees; 

significant reductions or volatility in demand for one or more of our products, which may be caused by, among other things: the 
temporary inability of consumers to purchase our products due to illness, quarantine or other travel restrictions, or financial 
hardship; or other pandemic related restrictions impacting consumer behavior; 

an inability to respond to or capitalize on increased demand, including challenges and increased costs associated with adding 
capacity and related staffing issues; 

a change in demand for or availability of our products as a result of retailers, distributors or carriers modifying their inventory, 
fulfillment or shipping practices; and 

the unknown duration and magnitude of a pandemic and all of its related impacts. 

These and other impacts of a pandemic could have the effect of heightening many of the other ri sk factors disclosed in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. The ultimate impact depends on the severity and duration of the pandemic and actions taken by governmental 
authorities and other third parties in response, each of which is uncertain and difficult to predict. Any of these disruptions could 
adversely impact our business and results of operations. 

Risks Related to Liquidity and Indebtedness 

We have significant debt, which could adversely affect our financial condition and ability to operate our business. 

As of December 31 , 2024, we had $1,695 million ofoutstanding indebtedness under our senior secured term loan facility ("Term Loan 
Facility") maturing in 2027 and $694 million of borrowing capacity under our senior secured revolving credit facility ("Revolving 
Facility") maturing in 2029 (the Term Loan Facility and the Revolving Facility, the "External Debt Facilities"). Our debt level and 
related debt service obligations: 

require us to dedicate significant cash flow to the payment of principal of, and interest on, our debt, which reduces the fund s we 
have available for other purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes; 

may limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and market conditions or in funding our strategic 
growth plan; 

impose on us financial and operational restrictions; and 

expose us to interest rate ri sk on our debt obligations bearing interest at variable rates. 

These restrictions could adversely affect our financial condition and limit our ability to successfully implement our growth strategy. 

In addition, we may need additional financing to support our business and pursue our growth strategy, including for strategic 
acquisitions. Our ability to obtain additional financing, if and when required, will depend on investor demand, our operating 
performance, the condition of the capital markets and other factors. We cannot assure you that additional financing will be available to 
us on favorable terms when required, or at all. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity, equity-linked or debt 
securities, those securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of our common stock, and, in the case of equity 
and equity-linked securities, our existing stockholders may experience dilution. 

16 

Market interest rates have increased and could continue to increase our interest costs. 

Our debt bears interest at variable rates, and we may incur additional variable interest rate indebtedness in the future. This exposes us 
to interest rate ri sk, and while we have entered into a series of interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of variable rate debt, any interest 
rate swaps we enter into in order to reduce interest rate volatility may not fully mitigate our interest rate ri sk. As of December 3 1, 
2024, the unhedged portion of our Term Loan Facility was approximately $545 million, and any borrowings under our Revolving 
Facility are subject to interest rate volatility. 

Higher interest rates during the year ended December 31 , 2023 , increased our debt service obligations on the unhedged variable rate 
indebtedness, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, had correspondingly 
decreased. Further increases in interest rates on unhedged debt could further reduce our net income and cash flows, including cash 
available for servicing our indebtedness. 

Legal, Regulatory and Compliance Risks 

We are subject to governmental regulation and we may incur material liabilities under, or costs in order to comply with, existing or 
future laws and regulations. 

Many of our products come into contact wi th food when used, and the manufacture, packaging, labeling, storage, distribution, 
advertising and sale of such products are subject to various laws designed to protect human health and the environment. For example, 
in the United States, many of our products are regulated by the Food and Drug Administration (including applicable current good 
manufacturing practice regulations) and/or the Consumer Product Safety Commission, and our product claims and advertising are 
regulated by the Federal Trade Commission. Most states have agencies that regulate in parallel to these federal agencies. Liabilities 
under, and/or costs of compliance, and the impact on us of any non-compliance with any such laws and regulations could materially 
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, changes in the laws and regulations which 
we are subject to could impose significant limitations and require changes to our business, which in turn may increase our compliance 
expenses, make our business more costly and less efficient to conduct, and compromise our growth strategy. 

We could incur significant liabilities related to, and significant costs in complying with, environmental, health and safety laws, 
regulations and permits. 

Our operations are subject to various national, state, local, foreign and international environmental, health and safety laws, regulations 
and permits that govern, among other things, the emission or discharge of materials into the environment; the use, storage, treatment, 
disposal, management and release of hazardous substances and wastes; the health and safety of our employees and the end-users of our 
products; and the materials used in, and the recycling of, our products. These laws and regulations impose liability, which can be strict, 
joint and several, for the costs of investigating and remediating, and damages resulting from, present and past releases of hazardous 
substances related to our current and former sites, as well as at third party sites where we or our predecessors have sent waste for 
disposal. Non-compliance with, or liability related to, these laws, regulations and permits, which tend to become more stringent over 
time, could result in substantial fines or penalties, injunctive relief, requirements to install pollution control devices or other controls or 
equipment, civil or criminal sanctions, permit revocations or modifications and/or facility shutdowns, and could expose us to costs of 
investigation or remediation, as well as tort claims for property damage or personal injury, and could limit production. 

In addition, a number of governmental authorities, both in the United States and abroad, have considered, and are expected to 
consider, legislation aimed at reducing the amount of plastic waste. Programs have included banning certain types of products, 
mandating certain rates of recycling and/or the use of recycled materials, imposing deposits or taxes on plastic bags and packaging 
material, imposing extended producer responsibility and requiring retailers or manufacturers to take back packaging used for their 
products. Such legislation, as well as voluntary initiatives, aimed at reducing the level of plastic waste could reduce the demand for 
certain plastic products, result in greater costs for manufacturers of plastic products or otherwise impact our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. Additional regulatory efforts addressing other environmental or safety concerns in the future could 
similarl y impact our operations and financial results. 

ESG mutters, including those related to climate change and sustainability, may have an adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations and impact our reputation. 

There has been an increased focus from stakeholders and regulators related to environmental, social and governance ("ESG") matters 
across all industries in recent years. This increased focus and activism related to ESG may hinder our access to capital, as investors 
may reconsider their capital investment as a result of their assessment of the Company's ESG practices. In particular, customers, 
consumers, investors and other stakeholders are increasingl y focusing on environmental issues, including climate change, water use, 
deforestation, plastic waste and other sustainability concerns. Changing consumer preferences may also result in decreased demand for 
plastics and packaging materials, including single-use and non-recyclable plastic products and packaging, and other components of our 
products and their environmental impact on sustainability. These demands could impact the profitability of our products, cause us to 
incur additional costs, to make changes to our operations, or to make additional commitments, set targets or establish additional goals 
and take actions to meet them, which could expose us to market, operational and execution costs and risks. 
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Concern over climate change or plastics and packaging materials, in particular, may result in new or increased legal and regulatory 
requirements to reduce or mitigate impacts to the environment. Increased regulatory requirements, including in relation to various 
aspects of ESG, such as California's recent enactment of climate-related disclosure laws, or environmental causes may result in 
increased compliance costs or input costs of energy, raw materials or compliance with emissions standards, which may cause 
disruptions in the manufacture of our products or an increase in operating costs. We may incur additional costs to control, assess and 
report on ESG metrics as the nature, scope and complexity of ESG reporting, diligence and di sclosure requirements expand. Our 
ability to achieve any stated goal, target, or objective is subject to numerous factors and conditions, many of which are outside of our 
control. Any failure to achieve our ESG goals or a perception (whether or not valid) of our failure to act responsibly with respect to the 
environment or to effectively respond to new, or changes in, legal or regulatory requirements concerning environmental or other ESG 
matters, or increased operating or manufacturing costs due to increased regulation or environmental causes could adversely affect our 
business and reputation. 

If we do not adapt to or comply with new regulations, or fail to meet the ESG goals under our ESG framework or evolving investor, 
industry or stakeholder expectations and standards, or if we are perceived to have not responded appropriately to the growing concern 
for ESG issues, customers and consumers may choose to stop purchasing our products or purchase products from another company or 
a competitor, and our reputation, business or financial condition may be adversely affected. 

We depend on intellectual property rights licensed from third parties, and disputes regarding, or termination of, these licenses 
could result in loss of rights, which could harm our business. 

We are dependent in part on intellectual property rights licensed from third parties. Our licenses of such intellectual property rights 
may not provide exclusive or unrestricted rights in all fi elds of use and in all territories in which we may wish to develop or 
commercialize our products in the future and may restrict our rights to offer certain products in certain markets or impose other 
obligations on us in exchange for our rights to the licensed intellectual property. In addition, we may not have full control over the 
maintenance, protection or use of in-licensed intellectual property rights, and therefore we may be reliant on our licensors to conduct 
such activities. 

Disputes may arise between us and our licensors regarding the scope of rights or obligations under our intellectual property license 
agreements, including the scope of our rights to use the licensed intellectual property, our rights with respect to third parties, our and 
our licensors' obligations with respect to the maintenance and protection of the licensed intellectual property, and other interpretation­
related issues. The agreements under which we license intellectual property rights from others are complex, and the provisions of such 
agreements may be susceptible to multiple interpretations. The resolution of any contract interpretation di sagreement that may arise 
could narrow what we believe to be the scope of our rights to the intellectual property being licensed or increase what we believe to be 
our financial or other obligations under the relevant agreement. Termination of or disputes over such licenses could result in the loss of 
significant rights. 

We are generally also subject to all of the same risks with respect to protection of intellectual property that we license as we are for 
intellectual property that we own. Any failure on our part or the part of our licensors to adequately protect this intellectual property 
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. 

A cyber-attack or failure of one or more key information technology systems, operational technology systems, networks, processes, 
associated sites or service providers could have a material adverse impact on our business and reputation. 

We rely extensively on information technology ("IT") and operational technology ("OT") systems, networks and services, including 
Internet sites, data host ing and processing facilities and tools and other hardware, software and technological applications and 
platforms, some of which are managed, hosted, provided and/or used by third parties or their vendors, to assist in conducting business. 
The various uses of these systems, networks and services include, but are not limited to: 

ordering and managing materials from suppliers; 

converting materials to fini shed products; 

managing our supply chain network; 

shipping products to customers; 

marketing and selling products to consumers; 

processing transactions; 

summarizing and reporting results of operations; 

hosting, processing and sharing confidential and proprietary research, business plans and financial information; 

complying with regulatory, legal or tax requirements; 

providing data security; and 
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handling other processes necessary to manage our business. 

Increased cyber-security threats and cyber-crime, including advanced persistent threats, computer viruses, ransomware, other types of 
malicious code, hacking, phishing and social engineering schemes designed to provide access to our networks or data, pose a potential 
ri sk to the security of our IT and OT systems, networks and services, as well as the confidentiality, availability and integrity of our 
data. Cyber threats are becoming more sophisticated, are constantly evolving and are being made by groups and individuals with a 
wide range of expertise and motives, increasing the difficulty of preventing, detecting and successfully defending against them. 
Furthermore, our relationships with, and access provided to, third parties and their vendors may create difficulties in anticipating and 
implementing adequate preventative measures or fully mitigating harms after an attack or breach occurs. 

We cannot guarantee that our security efforts will prevent attacks and resulting breaches or breakdowns of our, or our third-party 
service providers' , databases or systems. If the IT or OT systems, networks or service providers relied upon fail to function properly, 
or if we suffer a loss or disclosure of customers' and consumers' data, business or stakeholder information, due to any number of 
causes, ranging from catastrophic events to power outages to security breaches, or the inability to effectively address these failures on 
a timely basis, we may suffer interruptions in our ability to manage operations, a ri sk of government enforcement action, litigation and 
possible liability, and reputational , competitive and/or business harm, which may adversely impact our resul ts of operations and/or 
financial condition. In addition, if our service providers, suppliers or customers experience a breach or unauthorized disclosure or 
system failure, their business could be disrupted or otherwise negativel y affected, which may result in a disruption in our suppl y chain 
or reduced customer orders or other business operations, which would adversely affect us. 

legal claims and proceedings could adversely impact our business. 

We may be subject to a wide variety of legal claims and proceedings. Regardless of their merit, these claims can require significant 
time and expense to investigate and defend. Since litigation is inherently uncertain, there is no guarantee that we will be successful in 
defending ourselves against such claims or proceedings, or that our assessment of the materiality of these matters, including any 
reserves taken in connection therewith, will be consistent with the ultimate outcome of such matters. The resolution of, or increase in 
the reserves taken in cotmection with, one or more of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against business and operating risks. 

We maintain insurance for some, but not all, of the potential risks and liabilities associated with our business. For some risks, we may 
not obtain insurance if we believe the cost of available insurance is excessive in relation to the ri sks presented. As a result of market 
conditions, premiums and deductibles for certain insurance policies can increase substantially, and in some instances, certain insurance 
policies are economically unavailable or available only for reduced amounts of coverage. For example, we will not be full y insured 
against all risks associated with pollution and other environmental incidents or impacts. Moreover, we may face losses and liabilities 
that are uninsurable by their nature, or that are not covered, fully or at all, under our ex isting insurance policies. Any significant 
uninsured liability may require us to pay substantial amounts, which would adversely affect our cash position and results of 
operations. 

Risks Related to Stockholder Influence, Related Party Transactions and Governance 

Substantial future sales by Packaging Finance Limited or others of our common stock, or the perception that such sales may 
occur, could depress the price of our common stock. 

Packaging Finance Limited ("PFL") owns the majority of our outstanding common stock. We do not know whether or when PFL will 
se ll shares of our common stock. The sale by PFL or others of a substantial number of shares of our common stock, or a perception 
that such sales could occur, could significantly reduce the market price of our common stock. The perception of a potential sell-down 
by PFL could depress the market price of our common stock and make it more difficult for us to se ll equity securities in the future at a 
time and at a price that we deem appropriate. 

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company more 
difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the market price of our 
common stock. 

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control or changes 
in our management. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws include provisions that: 

provide for a staggered board ; 

require at least 66-2/3% of the votes that all of our stockholders would be entitled to cast in an annual election of directors in 
order to amend our certificate of incorporation and bylaws after the date on which PFL and all other entities beneficially owned 
by Mr. Graeme Richard Hart or his estate, heirs, executor, administrator or other personal representative, or any of his 
immediate family members or any trust, fund or other entity which is controlled by his estate, heirs, any of his immediate family 
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members or any of their respective affiliates (PFL and all of the foregoing, collectively, the "Hart Entities") and any other 
transferee of all of the outstanding shares of common stock held at any time by the Hart Entities which are transferred other than 
pursuant to a widely distributed public sale ("Permitted Assigns") beneficially own less than 50% of the outstanding shares of 
our common stock; 

eliminate the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders after the date on which the Hart Entities or 
Permitted Assigns beneficially own less than 50% of the outstanding shares of our common stock; 

prohibit stockholder action by written consent, instead requiring stockholder actions to be taken solel y at a duly convened 
meeting of our stockholders, after the date on which the Hart Entities or Permitted Assigns beneficially own less than 50% of 
the outstanding shares of our common stock; 

permit our board of directors, without further action by our stockholders, to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions 
of preferred stock, the rights of which may be greater than the rights of our common stock; 

restrict the forum for certain litigation against us to the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware; and 

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be 
acted upon by stockholders at annual stockholder meetings. 

These provisions may fru strate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it 
more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is responsible for appointing the members of our 
management. As a result, these provisions may adversely affect the market price and market for our common stock if they are viewed 
as limiting the liquidity of our stock. These provisions may also make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us in the future, and, 
as a result, our stockholders may be limited in their ability to obtain a premium for their shares of common stock. 

Furthermore, we have entered into a stockholders agreement with PFL which, among other matters, provides PFL with the right to 
nominate a certain number of directors to our board of directors so long as the Hart Entities beneficially own at least I 0% of the 
outstanding shares of our common stock. 

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the exclusive 
forum for substantially all db,putes between us and our stockholders. 

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the exclusive 
forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf; any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty; any action 
asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law, our amended and restated certificate of 
incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws; or any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal affairs 
doctrine. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the exclusive forum provision will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty 
created by the Exchange Act, the Securities Act of 1933, or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. 
The choice of forum provision may limit a stockholder' s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes 
with us or our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and 
other employees. Alternatively, ifa court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our amended and restated certificate 
of incorporation to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action 
in other jurisdictions, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We intend to continue to pay regular dividends on our common stock, but our ability to do so may be limited. 

We intend to continue to pay cash dividends on our common stock on a quarterly basis, subject to the discretion of our board of 
directors and our compliance with applicable law, and depending on our results of operations, capital requirements, financial 
condition, business prospects, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable laws and other factors that our board of 
directors deems relevant. Our ability to pay dividends is restricted by the terms of our External Debt Facilities and may be restricted 
by the terms of any future debt or preferred equity securities. Our dividend policy entails certain risks and limitations, particularly with 
respect to our liquidity. By paying cash dividends rather than investing that cash in our business or repaying any outstanding debt, we 
ri sk, among other things, slowing the expansion of our business, having insufficient cash to fund our operations or make capital 
expenditures or limiting our ability to incur borrowings. Our board of directors will periodically review the cash generated from our 
business and the capital expenditures required to finance our growth plans and determine whether to modify the amount of regular 
dividends, cease paying dividends, and/or declare any periodic special dividends. There can be no assurance that our board of directors 
will not reduce the amount of regular cash dividends or cause us to cease paying dividends altogether. 
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We could incur significant liability if our separation from PEI Group fails to qualify us a tlL-r-free transaction for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes. 

We historically operated as part of Pactiv Evergreen Inc. ("PEI") and its subsidiaries (together with PEI, "PEI Group"). In preparation 
for our IPO, PEI Group effected certain distributions pursuant to the Corporate Reorganization to transfer its interests in us to PFL in a 
manner that was intended to qualify as tax-free to PFL and PEI Group under Sections 368(a)( I )(D) and 355 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). PEI received a tax opinion as to the tax treatment of these distributions, which relied on certain 
facts, assumptions, representations and undertakings from Mr. Graeme Hart, PEI Group and us regarding the past and future conduct 
of the companies' respective businesses and other matters. If any of these facts, assumptions, representations or undertakings are 
incorrect or not otherwise satisfied, PEI may not be able to rely on the opinion of tax counsel and could be subject to s ignificant tax 
liabilities. Notwithstanding the opinion of tax counsel, the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") could determine on audit that these 
distributions are taxable if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations or undertakings are not correct or have 
been violated or if it disagrees with the conclusions in the opinion, or for other reasons. If the distributions are determined to be 
taxable for U.S. federal income tax purposes, PFL, PEI and Pactiv Evergreen Group Holdings Inc. could incur s ignificant U.S. federal 
income tax liabilities, and we could also incur s ignificant liabilities. Under the tax matters agreement between PEI and us ("Tax 
Matters Agreement"), we are required to indemnify PEI Group against taxes incurred by them that arise as a result of, among other 
things, a breach of any representation made by us, including those provided in connection with the opinion of tax counsel or us taking 
or failing to take, as the case may be, certain actions, in each case, that result in any of the distributions failing to meet the 
requirements ofa tax-free distribution under Sections 355 and 368(a)(l)(D) of the Code. 

PFL controls the direction of our business and PFL 's concentrated ownership of our common stock may prevent our stockholders 
from influencing significant decisions. 

PFL owns and controls the voting power of approximately 74% of our outstanding shares of common stock. Under our stockholders 
agreement with PFL, PFL is entitled to nominate all of our board of directors so long as it owns at least 50% of our shares, and a 
majority of our board of directors so long as it owns at least 40% of our shares. Additionally, as long as PFL continues to control a 
majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock, it is generally able to determine the outcome of all corporate actions 
requiring stockholder approval. 

PFL and its affiliates engage in a broad spectrum of activities. In the ordinary course of their business activities, PFL and its affiliates 
may engage in activities where their interests may not be the same as, or may conflict with, the interests of our other stockholders. 
Other stockholders will not be able to affect the outcome of any stockholder vote while PFL controls the majority of the voting power 
of our outstanding common stock. As a result, PFL controls, directly or indirectly and subject to applicable law, the composition of 
our board of directors, which in turn will be able to control all matters affecting us, including, among others: 

any determination with respect to our business direction and policies, including the appointment and removal of officers and 
directors; 

the adoption of amendments to our certificate of incorporation; 

any determinations with respect to mergers, business combinations or disposition of assets; 

compensation and benefit programs and other human resources policy decisions; 

the payment of dividends on our common stock; and 

determinations with respect to tax matters. 

In addition, the concentration of PFL ' s ownership could also discourage others from making tender offers, which could prevent 
holders from receiving a premium for their common stock. 

Because PFL 's interests may differ from ours or from those of our other stockholders, actions that PFL takes with respect to us, as our 
controlling stockholder, may not be favorable to us or our other stockholders, including holders of our common stock. 

If we are no longer affiliated with PEI Group, we may be unable to continue to benefit from that relationship, wlticlt may adversely 
affect our operations and have a material adverse effect on us. 

Our affiliation with PEI Group has provided us with increased scale and reach. We have leveraged our combined scale to coordinate 
purchases across our operations to reduce costs. In December 2024, the PEI Group announced it has entered into a definitive 
agreement to be acquired by an unrelated third party (the "PEI Group Acquisition"), pending regulatory approval. If the PEI Group 
Acquisition is completed, we will no longer be affiliated with PEI Group. If we no longer benefit from the relationship with PEI 
Group, whether because we are no longer affiliated with PEI Group or otherwise, it may result in increased costs for us and higher 
prices to our customers because we may be unable to obtain goods, services and technology from unaffiliated third parties on terms as 
favorable as those previously obtained. As a result of any of the above factors, we may be precluded from pursuing certain 
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opportunities that we would otherwise pursue, including growth opportunities, which in turn may adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

We have entered, and may continue to enter, into certain related party transactions. There can be no assurance that we could not 
have achieved more favorable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with related parties, or that we will he able to 
maintain existing terms in the future. 

We have entered into various transactions with Rank Group Limited ("Rank") and other related parties that are members of PEI 
Group, including, among others: 

the lease for our corporate headquarters in Lake Forest, Illinois; 

the lease for a facility used for certain research and development activities in Canandaigua, New York; 

supply agreements where we sell certain products (primarily aluminum foil containers and roll foil) to, and purchase certain 
products (primarily foam-related tableware) from Pactiv LLC ("Pactiv"), a member of PEI Group; 

a warehousing and freight services agreement whereby Pactiv provides certain logistics services to us; and 

insurance participation in a broader affiliated program. 

While we believe that all such transactions have been negotiated on an arm's length basis and contain commercially reasonable terms, 
we may have been able to achieve more favorable terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties. In addition, 
while these services are being provided to us by related parties, our operational fl exibility to modify or implement changes with 
respect to such services or the amounts we pay for them may be limited. Such related party transactions may also potentiall y involve 
conflicts of interest; for example, in the event of a dispute under any of these related party agreements, PEI Group could decide the 
matter in a way adverse to us, and our ability to enforce our contractual rights may be limited. 

It is also possible that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. Although material related party transactions that we 
may enter into will be subj ect to approval or ratification by the Audit Committee, there can be no assurance that such transactions, 
individuall y or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations, or that we could 
not have achieved more favorable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with related parties. 

If PFL sells a controlling interest in our company to a third party in a private transaction, investors may not realize any cltunge-of­
control premium on shares of our common stock and we may become subject to the control of a presently unknown third party. 

PFL owns and controls the voting power of approximately 74% of our outstanding shares of common stock. PFL has the ability, 
should it choose to do so, to sell some or all of its shares of our common stock in a privately negotiated transaction, which, if suffici ent 
in size, could result in a change of control of our company. 

The ability of PFL to privately sell its shares of our common stock, with no requirement for a concurrent offer to be made to acquire 
all of the shares of our common stock that are publicly traded, could prevent investors from realizing any change-of-control premium 
on shares of our common stock that may otherwise accrue to PFL on its private sale of our common stock. Additionally, if PFL 
privately sells its significant equity interest in our company, we may become subj ect to the control ofa presently unknown third party. 
Such third party may have conflicts of interest with those of other stockholders. In addition, if PFL sells a controlling interest in our 
company to a third party, our liquidity could be impaired, our outstanding indebtedness may be subject to acceleration and our 
commercial agreements and relationships could be impacted, all of which may adversely affect our ability to run our business as 
described herein and may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

We are a "controlled company" within the meaning of the rules of Nasdaq and, us a result, rely on exemptions from certain 
corporate governance requirements. 

PFL controls a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock. As a result, we are a "controlled company" within the 
meaning of the corporate governance standards of Nasdaq. Under these rules, a listed company of which more than 50% of the voting 
power is held by an individual, group or another company is a "controlled company" and may elect not to comply with certain 
corporate governance requirements, including: 

the requirement that a majority of the board of directors consist of independent directors; 

the requirement that our compensation, nominating and corporate governance committee be composed entirely of independent 
directors; and 

the requirement for an annual performance evaluation of our compensation, nominating and corporate governance committee. 

While PFL controls a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock, we intend to rely on these exemptions and, as a 
result, will not have a majority of independent directors on our board of directors or a compensation, nominating and corporate 
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governance committee consisting entirely of independent directors. Accordingly, you will not have the same protections afforded to 
stockholders of companies that are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of Nasdaq. 

PEI Group may compete with us, and its competitive position in certain markets may constrain our ability to build and maintain 
partnerships. 

We may face competition from a variety of sources, including Pactiv and other members of PEI Group, both today and in the future. 
For example, while we have supply agreements in place with Pactiv, Pactiv may still compete with us in certain products and/or in 
certain channels. In addition, while none of the other members of PEI Group currently manufacture or sell products that compete with 
our products, they may do so in the future, including as a result of acquiring a company that operates as a manufacturer of consumer 
products. Due to the significant resources of PEI Group, including financial resources and know-how resulting from the previous 
management of our business, PEI Group could have a significant competitive advantage should it decide to engage in the type of 
business we conduct, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Although 
Pactiv has historicall y sold the products (primarily tableware and cups) that we purchase from it in the foodservice business-to­
business channel, after the termination of our supply agreement with Pactiv it could seek to se ll such products in the retail channel or 
otherwise compete with us, especially where we sell private label or store brand products. As our fonner supplier, Pactiv would have 
information about products, including pricing, that could give it a competitive advantage. 

In addition, we may partner with companies that compete with PEI Group in certain markets. Our affiliation with PEI Group may 
affect our ability to effectively partner with these companies. These companies may favor our competitors because of our relationship 
with PEI Group. 

Conflicts of interest may arise because certain of our directors may hold a board position with PEI Group entities. 

From time to time, certain of our directors may also be directors of PEI or other PEI Group entities. The interests of any such director 
in PEI, other PEI Group entities and us could create, or appear to create, conflicts of interest with respect to decisions involving both 
us and PEI or PEI Group entities that could have different implications for PEI and us. These decisions could, for example, relate to: 

disagreement over corporate opportunities; 

competition between us and PEI Group; 

employee retention or recruiting; 

our dividend policy; and 

the services and arrangements from which we benefit as a result of our relationship with PEI Group. 

Conflicts of interest could also arise ifwe enter into any new commercial arrangements with PEI Group in the future. The presence of 
directors of entities affiliated with PEI on our board of directors could create, or appear to create, conflicts of interest and conflicts in 
allocating their time with respect to matters involving both us and any one of them, or involving us and PEI, that could have different 
implications for any of these entities than they do for us. Provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and 
amended and restated bylaws address corporate opportunities that are presented to any of our directors who, from time to time, are 
also directors of PEI and certain of its subsidiaries. We cannot assure you that our amended and restated certificate of incorporation 
will adequately address potential conflicts of interest or that potential conflicts of interest will be resolved in our favor or that we will 
be able to take advantage of corporate opportunities presented to any such individual who is a director of both us and PEI. As a result, 
we may be precluded from pursuing certain advantageous transactions or growth initiatives. 

Our inability to resolve in a manner favorable to us any potential conflicts or db,putes that arise between us and PEI Group, PFL 
or Runk with respect to our past and ongoing relationships may adversely affect our business and prospects. 

Potential conflicts or disputes may arise between PEI Group, PFL or Rank and us in a number of areas relating to our past or ongoing 
relationships, including: 

tax, employee benefit, indemnification and other matters arising from our relationship with PEI Group, PFL or Rank; 

business combinations involving us; 

the nature, quality and pricing of services PEI Group and Rank have agreed to provide us; 

business opportunities that may be attractive to us and PEI Group; 

intellectual property or other proprietary rights; and 

joint sales and marketing activities with PEI Group. 
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The resolution of any potential conflicts or disputes between us, PEI Group, PFL or Rank or their subsidiaries over these or other 
matters may be less favorable to us than the resolution we might achieve ifwe were dealing with an unaffiliated third party. 

The agreements we have entered into with PEI Group and Rank are of varying durations and may be amended upon agreement of the 
parties. So long as it has the ability to nominate a majority of our board of directors, PFL will be able to determine the outcome of all 
matters requiring stockholder approval and will be able to cause or prevent a change of control of our company or a change in the 
composition of our board of directors, and could preclude any acquisition of our company. For so long as we are controlled by PFL, 
we may be unable to negotiate renewal s or amendments to these agreements, if required, on terms as favorable to us as those we 
would be able to negotiate with an unaffiliated third party. 
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ITEM 18. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

ITEM JC. CYBERSECURITY 

Governance 

Our information security program is managed by a Chief Information Security Officer ("CISO"), whose team is responsible for 
leading enterprise-wide cybersecurity strategy, policy, standards, architecture and processes, including assessing and managing our 
material risks from cybersecurity threats. The CISO is a Certified Information Systems Security Professional ("CISSP"), and has over 
20 years of experience holding various roles in information technology and cybersecurity. The Audit Committee of our Board of 
Directors is charged with oversight ofcybersecurity matters, including oversight of risks from cybersecurity threats. 

The CISO provides quarterly reports to the Audit Committee, as well as more frequent reports to our Cyber Security Steering 
Committee, which includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other members of our senior management. These 
reports include updates on our cyber ri sks and threats, the status of projects to strengthen our information security systems, 
assessments of our information security program, and the emerging threat landscape. Our cybersecurity program is periodicall y 
evaluated by internal and external experts, with the results of those rev iews reported to senior management and the Audit Committee. 
We also activel y engage with key vendors and industry participants as part of our continuing efforts to evaluate and enhance the 
effectiveness of our information security policies and procedures. 

Risk Management and Strategy 

We have a comprehensive cybersecurity and information security framework that includes risk assessment and mitigation. We 
leverage the National Institute of Standards and Technology Cyber Security Framework 2.0 for measuring overall readiness to respond 
to cyber threats and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for assessment in internal controls. Our cybersecurity processes are integrated into our 
overall ri sk management program, and include a comprehensive cyber crisis management program that would apply if a cybersecurity 
related incident were to occur. 

We perform response simulations, tabletop exercises and recovery tests on a quarterly basis. In addition, we engage external 
consultants to perform penetration testing at least annually. Our cyber crisis management program includes a documented plan that 
provides overall coordination of our response to a major cyber incident as well as a resource engagement plan. As part of our crisis 
management plan, our cyber crisis communication plan accounts for timely and accurate dissemination of information to stakeholders 
during the crisis. Other components of our crisis management plan are our business continuity plan, that documents the application of 
specific strategies and measures to enable core business activities to continue during a cyber event, and our disaster recovery plan, that 
is designed to restore data and systems to their operational state. The ongoing development and maturity of our cyber crisis 
management program is reported to senior management quarterly. 

With respect to third-party service providers, we perform assessments of their information security capabilities prior to entering into a 
contractual agreement. We also perform periodic information security capabilities reviews for existing third-party serv ice providers 
based on the risks identified in the initial review, or if events and circumstances necessitate a review. 

Refer to "A cyber-attack or failure of one or more key information technology systems, operational technology systems, networks, 
processes, associated sites or service providers could have a material adverse impact on our business and reputation" in Item I A. "Risk 
Factors" for information regarding material ri sks from cybersecurity threats that affect us. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Our corporate headquarters are located in Lake Forest, Illinois. In addition, as of December 31 , 2024, our production and distribution 
network consisted of 27 manufacturing and warehouse facilities in 12 states and one manufacturing facility and one warehouse in 
Canada, which are used to produce and store the products sold in all four of our business segments. We own the majority of our 
physical properties. We believe that all of our properties are in good operating condition and are suitable to adequately meet our 
current needs. 
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

From time to time, we are a party to various claims, charges and litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of business. 
Management and legal counsel regularly review the probable outcome of such proceedings. We have established reserves for legal 
matters that are probable and estimable, and at December 31 , 2024, these reserves were not s ignificant. While we cannot feasibly 
predict the outcome of these matters with certainty, we believe, based on examination of these matters, experience to date and 
discussions wi th counsel, that the ultimate liability, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

Not applicable. 
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PART II 

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECUR ITI ES 

Principal Market 

Our common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the "REYN" symbol and began "regular way" trading on The 
Nasdaq Stock Market LLC on January 31, 2020. Prior to that date, there was no public trading market for our common stock. 

Stockholders 

As of January 31 , 2025 , there were three holders of record of our common stock. The actual number of our stockholders is greater than 
this number, and includes beneficial owners whose shares are held in "street name" by banks, brokers and other nominees. 

Dividends 

We expect that our practice of paying quarterly cash dividends on our common stock will continue, although the payment of future 
dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our earnings, capital requirements, financial condition, 
contractual restrictions (including under our External Debt Facilities) and other factors. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

The information required by this Item concerning our equity compensation plan is incorporated herein by reference to Part lll, Item 12 
of this report. 
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Performance Graph 

The follow ing graph compares our cumulative total stockholder return from January 31 , 2020 to December 31 , 2024 to that of the 
S&P 500 Index, the Russell MidCap Index and a peer group. The graph assumes that the value for the investment in our common 
stock, each index and the peer group was $ I 00 on January 31, 2020, and that all dividends were reinvested. The complete list of our 
peer group comprises: Church & Dwight Co., Inc., The Clorox Company, Colgate-Palmolive Company, Energizer Holdings, Inc. , 
Kimberly-Clark Corporation, Newell Brands Inc., The Procter & Gamble Company, The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company, Spectrum 
Brands Holdings, Inc. and WD-40 Company. 

Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns. 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

Our management ' s discussion and analysis is intended to help the reader understand our results of operations and financial condition 
and is provided as an addition to, and should be read in connection with, our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying 
notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form I 0-K. 

Description of the Company and its Business Segments 

We are a market-leading consumer products company with a presence in 95% of households across the United States. We produce and 
se ll products that people use in their homes for cooking, serving, cleanup and storage. We sell our products under iconic brands such 
as Reynolds and Hefty and also under store brands that are strategically important to our retail partners. Overall, across both our 
branded and store brand offerings, we hold the # I or #2 U.S. market share position in the majority of product categories in which we 
participate. Over 50% of our revenue comes from products that are #1 in their respective categories. We have developed our market­
leading position by invest ing in our product categories and consistently developing innovative products that meet the evolving needs 
and preferences of the modern consumer. 

Our mix of branded and store brand products is a key competitive advantage that aligns our goal of growing the overall product 
categories where we have offerings. Our retail partners also measure their success in category growth, which positions us as a trusted 
strategic partner. Our Reynolds and Hefty brands have preeminent positions in their categories and carry strong brand recognition in 
household aisles. 

We manage our operations in four operating and reportable segments: Reynolds Cooking & Baking, Hefty Waste & Storage, Hefty 
Tableware and Presto Products: 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking: Through our Reynolds Cooking & Baking segment, we se ll both branded and store brand 
aluminum foil , disposable aluminum pans, parchment paper, freezer paper, wax paper, butcher paper, plast ic wrap, baking cups, 
oven bags and slow cooker liners. Our branded products are sold under the Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds KITCHENS and EZ Foil 
brands in the United States and selected international markets, under the ALCAN brand in Canada and under the Diamond 
brand outside of North America. With our flagship Reynolds Wrap products, we hold the # 1 market position in the U.S. 
consumer foil market measured by retail sales and volume. We also hold the #1 market position in the Canadian branded foil 
market under the ALCAN brand. We have no significant branded competitor in this market. Reynolds is one of the most 
recognized household brands in the United States, with 98% brand awareness, and has been the top trusted brand in the 
consumer foil market for over 75 years, with greater than 50% market share in most of its categories. We also offer more 
sustainable solutions, such as Reynolds Wrap I 00% recycled aluminum, unbleached parchment paper made with a chlorine-free 
process and coreless wax paper, which uses less packaging material than traditional wax paper rolls. 

Hefty Waste & Storage: Through our Hefty Waste & Storage segment, we produce both branded and store brand trash and food 
storage bags. Hefty is a well-recognized leader in the trash bag and food storage bag categories and our private label products 
offer va lue to our retail partners. Our branded products are sold under the Hefty Ultra Strong and Hefty Strong brands for trash 
bags, and as the Hefty and Baggies brands for our food storage bags. Hefty has 98% brand awareness and is most commonly 
identified with the Brand's famous "Hefty! Hefty! Hefty!" slogan. We have the # I branded market share in the U.S. large black 
trash bag segment, and the #2 branded market share in the slider bag and tall kitchen trash bag segments. Our robust product 
portfolio in this segment includes a full suite of products, including sustainable solutions such as blue and clear recycling bags, 
compostable bags, bags made from recycled materials and orange bags through the Hefty ReNew Program. 

Hefty Tableware: Through our Hefty Tableware segment, we sell both branded and store brand disposable and compostable 
plates, bowls, platters, containers, cups and cutlery. Our Hefty branded products include dishes, party cups, cutlery and 
containers. Hefty branded party cups are the # 1 party cup in America measured by market share. Our branded products use our 
Hefty brand to represent both quality and value, and we bring this same quality and value promise to all of our store brands as 
well. We se ll across a broad range of materials and price points in all retail channels, allowing our consumers to select the 
product that best suits their price, function and aesthetic needs. These materials include sustainable solutions, such as Hefty 
ECOSA VE and Hefty Compostable Printed Paper Plates. In 2024, we increased the post-consumer recycled content in some of 
our cups and we added compostable party cups to our assortment. 

Presto Products: Through our Presto Products segment, we primarily sell store brand products in four main categories: food 
storage bags, trash bags, reusable storage containers and plastic wrap. Presto Products is a market leader in food storage bags 
and differentiates itself by providing access to category management, consumer insights, marketing, merchandising and research 
and development ("R&D") resources. Presto Products was the first in the U.S. market to offer a store branded sandwich bag 
made with an approximately 20% proprietary blend of plant and ocean, renewable materials. Our Presto Products segment also 
includes our specialty business, which serves other consumer products companies by providing Fresh-Lock and Slide-Rite 
resealable closure systems. 

30 

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations 

We believe that our performance and future success depend on a number of factors that present significant opportunities for us but also 
pose risks and challenges, including those discussed below and in the section of this Annual Report on Form I 0-K titled "Risk 
Factors." 

Consumer Demand for our Products 

Our business is largely impacted by the demands of our customers, and our success depends on our ability to anticipate and respond to 
changes in consumer preferences. Our products are household staples with a presence in 95% of households across the United States. 

We also expect that consumers' desire for convenience will continue to sustain demand for our products. Today' s consumers are 
focused on convenience, which extends into household products that improve ease of use and provide time sav ings, and they are 
willing to pay a higher price for innovative features and functionality. While advanced features are already prevalent in many of our 
products, we intend to continue investing in product development to accommodate the convenience-oriented lifestyles of today' s 
consumers. Consumer demand is also impacted by changes in consumer lifestyle, environmental concerns and other considerations. In 
addition, customers' sensitivity to price points contributes to fluctuations in demand in portions of our business. 

Branded products and store brand products accounted for 62% and 38% of our revenue, excluding business-to-business revenue, 
respectivel y, in the year ended December 31 , 2024. We intend to continue invest ing in both our branded and store brand products to 
grow the entire product category. Our scale across household aisles and ability to offer both branded and store brand products enable 
us to grow the overall category. Through our category captain level advisorship roles with our reta il partners, we offer market ing and 
consumer shopping strategies, both in store and on line, which expand usage occasions and stimulate consumption for our categories. 

Costs/or Raw Materials, Energy, labor and Freight 

Our business is impacted by fluctuation s in the prices of the raw materials, energy and freight costs incurred in manufacturing and 
distributing our products, as well as fluctuation s in labor costs. The primary raw materials used to manufacture our products are plastic 
res ins and aluminum, and we also use commodity chemicals and energy. We are exposed to commodity and other price risk 
principally from the purchase of resin, aluminum, natural gas, electricity, carton board and diese l. We distribute our products and 
receive raw materials primarily by rail and truck, which exposes us to fluctuation s in labor, freight and handling costs caused by 
reduced rail and trucking capacity. Sales contracts for our products typically do not contain pass-through mechanisms for raw material, 
energy, labor and freight cost changes, but we adjust prices, where possible, in response to such price fluctuations. 

Resin prices have historically fluctuated with supply and demand, changes in the prices of crude oil and natural gas, changes in 
refining capacity and the demand for other petroleum-based products. Aluminum prices have also historically fluctuated , as aluminum 
is a cyclical commodity with prices subject to global market factors. Raw material costs have also been impacted by governmental 
actions, such as tariffs and trade sanctions. 

Purchases of most of our raw materials are based on negotiated rates with suppliers, which are linked to published indices. Typically, 
we do not enter into long-term purchase contracts that provide for fixed quantities or prices for our principal raw materials. 

We use various strategies to manage our cost exposures on certain raw material purchases, including managing these costs through 
supplier negotiations and entering into contracts of varying durations, and we use naturally established forecast cycles to influence the 
timing of purchases of raw materials. 

Furthermore, since we distribute our products and receive raw materials primarily by rail and truck, reduced availability of rail or 
trucking capacity and fluctuation s in labor, freight and handling costs have caused us to incur increased expenses in certain periods. 
Where possible, we also adjust the prices of our products in response to fluctuations in production and distribution costs. 

Our operating results are also impacted by energy-related cost movements, including those impacting both our manufacturing 
operations and transportation and utility costs. 

Competitive Environment 

We operate in a marketplace influenced by large retailers with strong negotiating power over their suppliers. Current trends among 
these large retailers include increased demand for innovative new products from suppliers, requiring suppliers to maintain or reduce 
product prices and to deliver products within shorter lead times. We also face the threat of competition from new entrants to our 
markets as well as from existing competitors, including those overseas who may have lower production costs. In addition, the timing 
and amount in which our competitors invest in advertising and promotional spending may vary from quarter to quarter and impact our 
sales volumes and financial results. See "Business - Competition" for more detail on our competitors. 
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Seasonality 

Portions of our business historically have been moderately seasonal. Overall, our strongest sales are in our fourth quarter and our 
weakest sales are in our first quarter. This is driven by higher levels of sales of cooking products around major U.S. holidays in our 
fourth quarter, primarily due to the holiday use of Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds Oven Bags, Reynolds Parchment Paper and disposable 
aluminum pans. Our tableware products generally have higher sa les in the second and fourth quarters of the year, primaril y due to 
outdoor summertime and holiday uses of disposable plates, cups, bowls and cutlery. 

Sustainability 

Interest in environmental sustainability has increased over the past decade, and it has played, and we expect it will continue to play, an 
increasing role in consumer purchasing decisions. For instance, there have been recent concerns about the environmental impact of 
single-use disposable products and products made from plastic, particularly polystyrene foam, affecting our products, especially our 
Hefty Tableware segment. While there is a focus on environmentally friendly products, survey results indicate that in most of our 
product categories, consumers continue to rank performance-related purchase criteria, such as durability and ease of use, followed by 
price, as top considerations, rather than sustainability. As our consumers may shift towards purchasing more sustainable products, we 
have focused much of our innovation efforts around sustainability. We offer a broad line of products made with recycled, renewable, 
recyclable and compostable materials. We intend to continue sustainability innovation in our efforts to be at the leading edge of 
recyclability, renewability and compostability in order to offer our customers environmentally sustainable choices. Our 2023 
acquisition of privately held Atacama Manufacturing Inc. enhanced our innovation pipeline with sustainable products from plant­
based resins. 

Non-GAAP Measures 

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K we use the non-GAAP financial measures "Adjusted EB ITDA", "Adjusted Net Income" and 
"Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share" ("Adjusted EPS"), which are measures adjusted for the impact of specified items and are not in 
accordance with GAAP. 

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income calculated in accordance with GAAP, plus the sum of income tax expense, net interest 
expense, depreciation and amortization and as may be further adjusted to exclude IPO and separation-related costs, as well as other 
non-recurring items, if applicable. We define Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS as Net Income and Earnings Per Share ("EPS") 
calculated in accordance with GAAP, plus IPO and separation-related costs and other non-recurring costs. 

We present Adjusted EB ITDA because it is a key measure used by our management team to evaluate our operating performance, 
generate future operating plans and make strategic decisions. ln addition, our chief operating decision maker uses Adjusted EB ITDA 
of each reportable segment to evaluate the operating performance of such segments. We use Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS 
as supplemental measures to evaluate our business' performance in a way that also considers our ability to generate profit without the 
impact of certain items. Accordingly, we believe presenting these measures provides useful information to investors and others in 
understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management team and board of directors. 

Non-GAAP information should be considered as supplemental in nature and is not meant to be considered in isolation or as a 
subst itute for the related financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. In addition, our non-GAAP financial measures 
may not be the same as or comparable to similar non-GAAP financial measures presented by other companies. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of our net income, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, to Adjusted 
EBITDA: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2024 2023 2022 

(in millions) 

Net income - GAAP $ 352 $ 298 $ 258 

Income tax expense 99 95 80 

Interest expense, net 98 119 76 

Depreciation and amortization 129 124 117 

IPO and separation-related costs llJ 12 

Other 3 

Adjusted EBITDA (Non-GAAP) $ 678 $ 636 $ 546 

(1) Reflects costs during the year ended December 31 , 2022 related to our separation to operate as a stand-alone public company 
as well as costs related to the IPO process. No such costs were incurred during the years ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023. 

32 

The following table presents a reconciliation of our net income and diluted EPS, the most directly comparable GAAP financial 
measures, to Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS : 

(in millions, except for per share data) 

As Reported - GAAP 

Adjustments: 

IPO and separation-related costs (I) 

Othert1> 

Adjusted (Non-GAAP) 

Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023 Year Ended December31,2022 

Net 
Income 

$ 352 

Diluted 
Shares 

Diluted 
[PS 

Net 
Income 

210.4 $ 1.67 $ 298 

Diluted 
Shares 

Diluted 
[PS 

Net 
Income 

210.0 $ 1.42 $ 258 

Diluted 
Shares 

Diluted 
EPS 

209.9 $ 1.23 

209.9 

209.9 

0.04 

0.01 

( 1) Amounts are after tax, calculated using a tax rate of 23.6% for the year ended December 31, 2022, which is our effective tax 
rate for that period. 
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Results of Operations 

The following di scussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual 
Report on Form I 0-K. Detailed comparisons of revenue and results are presented in the discussions of the operating segments, which 
follow our consolidated results discussion. 

Certain discussions in this section provide a breakdown of net revenues between our retail business and non-retail business. Our retail 
business net revenues consist of sales to grocery stores, mass merchants, warehouse clubs, discount chains, dollar stores, drug stores, 
home improvement stores, military outlets and eCommerce retailers. Our non-retail business net revenues consist of aluminum sales to 
food service customers, which are classified as related party revenues, and industrial customers. 

Discussions of the year ended December 31 , 2023 items and comparisons between the year ended December 31 , 2023 and the year 
ended December 31, 2022 can be found in "Management' s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations" 
in our Annual Report on Fonn 10-K fi led on February 7, 2024. 

Aggregation of Segment Revenue and Adjusted EB ITDA 

Reynolds Hefty 

(i n millions) 

Net revenues 

2024 

2023 

Cooking & Waste & Hefty Presto 
_.;..B.;..ak_;o_,g'-- Stora~e ~ ~ Unallocated(i) 

Total 
Reynolds 

Cons um er 
Products 

Adjusted EB ITDA (tJ 

2024 

2023 

1,247 $ 

1,273 

222 $ 

184 

959 $ 

942 

272 $ 

26 1 

918 $ 

967 

147 $ 

174 

596 $ 

593 

130 $ 

11 2 

(25) $ 3,695 

(19) 

(93) $ 

(95) 

3,756 

678 

636 

(!) Adjusted EB ITDA is a non-GAAP measure. See "Non-GAAP Measures" for details, including a reconciliation between net 
income and Adjusted EBITDA. 

(2) The unallocated net revenues include elimination of intersegment revenues and other revenue adjustments. The unallocated 
Adjusted EB ITDA represents the combination of corporate expenses which are not allocated to our segments and other 
unallocated revenue adjustments. 

Year Ended December 31, 2024 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Total Reynolds Consumer Products 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

%of %of 
(i n millions,exceptfor¾) 2024 Revenue 2023 Revenue Cha n~e ¾C han~e 

Net revenues $ 3,618 98 %$ 3,673 98 %$ (55) ( I) % 

Related party net revenues 77 2 % 83 2 % (6) (7) % 

Total net revenues 3,695 JOO % 3,756 JOO % (61) (2) % 

Cost of sales (2,7 17) (74) % (2,8 14) (75) % 97 % 

Gross profit 978 26 % 942 25 % 36 4 % 

Selling, general and administrative expenses (429) (12) % (430) ( 11 )% % 

Other expense, net - % - % % 

Income from operations 549 15 % 512 14 % 37 7 % 

In terest expense, net (98) (3) % ( 11 9) (3) % 21 18 % 

Income before income taxes 451 12 % 393 JO % 58 15 % 

Income tax expense (99) (3) % (95) (3) % (4) (4) % 

Net income $ 352 10 %$ 298 8 %$ 54 18 % 

Adjusted EBITDA 111 $ 678 18 %$ 636 17 % $ 42 7 % 

(!) Adjusted EB ITDA is a non-GAAP measure. See "Non-GAAP Measures" for details, including a reconciliation between net 
income and Adjusted EBITDA. 
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Components of Change in Net Revenues for the Year Ended December 31, 2024 vs. the Year Ended December 31 , 2023 

Price Volume/Mix Total 

Retail Non-Retail 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking -% (!)% (!)% (2) % 

Hefty Waste & Storage 1 % 1 % - % 2 % 

Hefty Tableware (2) % (3) % -% (5) % 

Presto Products 1 % - % - % I % 

Total RCP (1)% (1)% -% (2) % 

Total Net Revenues. Total net revenues decreased by $61 million, or 2%, to $3,695 million. The 2% decrease was driven by lower 
volume and lower pricing. 

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales decreased by $97 million, or 3%, to $2,717 million. The decrease was primari ly driven by lower material 
and manufacturing costs, as well as lower volume, partially offset by higher logistics costs. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") decreased by $1 million to 
$429 million. 

Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net was zero in each of the twelve months ended December 31 , 2024 and 2023. 

interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net decreased by $2 1 million, or 18%, to $98 million. The decrease was primarily due to a 
lower outstanding principal balance on our external debt faci li ties as a result of voluntary principal payments made on our term loan 
facility. 

Income Tax Expense. Our effective tax rate declined by 2.2%, from 24.1% for the year ended December 31 , 2023, to 21.9% for the 
year ended December 3 1, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to the recognition of a discrete tax benefit for the remeasurement of 
deferred tax liabi liti es. 

Adjusted EBJTDA. Adjusted EB ITDA increased by $42 million, or 7%, to $678 million. The increase in Adjusted EB ITDA was 
primaril y due to lower material and manufacturing costs, partially offset by higher logistics costs and the impact of lower net revenues. 

Segment Information 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking 

For the Years Ended December 3 1, 

(in millions, except for%) 2024 2023 Change % Cha nge 

Retai l net revenues $ 1,070 $ 1,076 $ (6) (!)% 

Non-retail net revenues 177 197 (20) (10) % 

Total segment net revenues $ 1,247 $ 1,273 $ (26) !2! % 
Segment Adjusted EB ITDA $ 222 $ 184 $ 38 21 % 

Segment Adjusted EB ITDA Margin 18 % 14 % 

Total Segment Net Revenues. Reynolds Cooking & Baking tota l segment net revenues decreased by $26 million, or 2%, to $ 1,247 
million. The decrease in net revenues was primari ly due to lower non-retail volume. 

Adjusted EBJTDA. Reynolds Cooking & Baking Adjusted EB ITDA increased by $38 million, or 21 %, to $222 million. The increase in 
Adjusted EB ITDA was primari ly driven by lower material and manufacturing costs. 

35 



Hefty Waste & Storage 

(in millions, except for%) 

Total segment net revenues 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin 

2024 

959 $ 

272 

28 % 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 

942 $ 

261 

28 % 

Change 

17 

11 

%Change 

2 % 

4 % 

Total Segment Net Revenues. Hefty Waste & Storage total segment net revenues increased by $17 million, to $959 million. The 
increase in net revenues was primarily due to higher volume and timing of promotional activities. 

Adjusted EB!TDA. Hefty Waste & Storage Adjusted EB ITDA increased by $11 million, or 4%, to $272 million. The increase in 
Adjusted EB ITDA was primarily driven by lower material and manufacturing costs and the benefit of higher net revenues, partially 
offset by higher logistics costs. 

Hefty Tableware 

(in millions, except for%) 

Total segment net revenues 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin 

2024 

918 

147 

16 % 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 

967 

174 

18 % 

Change 

(49) 

(27) 

¾Change 

(5) % 

(16) % 

Total Segment Net Revenues. Hefty Tableware total segment net revenues decreased by $49 million, or 5%, to $918 million. The 
decrease in net revenues was primarily due to lower foam volume driven by foam-related consumer behavior and regulatory pressure, 
as well as lower pricing. 

Adjusted EBITDA. Hefty Tableware Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $27 million, or 16%, to $147 million. The decrease in Adjusted 
EB ITDA was primarily driven by the impact of lower net revenues. 

Presto Products 

(in millions,exceptfor¾) 

Total segment net revenues 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin 

2024 

596 $ 

130 

22 % 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 

593 $ 

112 

19 % 

Change 

18 

% Change 

1% 

16 % 

Total Segment Net Revenues. Presto Products total segment net revenues increased by $3 million, or 1 %, to $596 million. The increase 
in net revenues was primaril y due to the timing of the pass through of higher commodity costs. 

Adjusted EBITDA. Presto Products Adjusted EBITDA increased by $18 million, or 16%, to $130 million. The increase in Adjusted 
EBITDA was primarily driven by lower material and manufacturing costs and the benefit of product portfolio optimization. 

Seasonality 

Portions of our business historically have been moderately seasonal. Overall, our strongest sales are in our fourth quarter and our 
weakest sales are in our first quarter. This is driven by higher levels of sales of cooking products around major U.S. holidays in our 
fourth quarter, primarily due to the holiday use of Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds Oven Bags, Reynolds Parchment Paper and di sposable 
aluminum pans. Our tableware products generally have higher sales in the second and fourth quarters of the year, primarily due to 
outdoor summertime and holiday uses of disposable plates, cups, bowls and cutlery. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Our principal sources of liquidity are existing cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operating activities, including proceeds 
from factored receivables, and available borrowings under the Revolving Facility. 

The following table discloses our cash flows for the years presented: 

(in millions) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash provided by operating activities 

$ 

$ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2024 2023 

489 $ 644 

(120) (110) 

(346) (457) 

(!) 

22 $ 77 

Net cash from operating activities decreased by $155 million, or 24%, to $489 million. The decrease was primarily driven by the 
normalization of inventory levels following significant reductions implemented in the year ended December 31 , 2023. This was 
partially offset by other working capital optimization initiatives and improved earnings. 

Cash used in investing activities 

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $10 million, or 9%, to $120 million due to an increase in capital spend. 

Cash used in financing activities 

Net cash used in financing activities decreased by $111 million, or 24%, to $346 million. We made voluntarily principal payments of 
$150 million during the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to voluntary principal payments of $250 million during the year 
ended December 31 , 2023. 

External Debt Facilities 

In February 2020, we entered into the External Debt Facilities which consists ofa $2,475 million Term Loan Facility and a Revolving 
Facility that provided for additional borrowing capacity of up to $250 million, reduced by amounts used for letters of credit. In 
February 2023, we amended the External Debt Facilities ("Amendment No. I") which replaced the benchmark from the London 
Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"). Additionally, in November 2023, we further 
amended the External Debt Facilities ("Amendment No. 2") to extend the maturity date of the Revolving Facility by one year. In 
October 2024, we further amended our External Debt Facilities ("Amendment No. 3") to replace the undrawn $250 million revolving 
facility maturing in February 2026 with an undrawn $700 million revolving facility maturing in October 2029. Other than the 
foregoing, the material terms of the External Debt Facilities, as amended by Amendment No. 1, Amendment No. 2 and Amendment 
No. 3 ("Amended External Debt Facilities") remain unchanged. 

As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding balance under the Term Loan Facility was $1,695 million. As of December 31, 2024, we 
had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Facility, and we had $6 million of letters of credit outstanding, which reduces the 
borrowing capacity under the Revolving Facility. 

The borrower under the Amended External Debt Facilities is Reynolds Consumer Products LLC (the "Borrower"). The Revolving 
Facility includes a sub-facility for letters of credit. In addition, the Amended External Debt Facilities provide that the Borrower has the 
right at any time, subject to customary conditions, to request incremental term loans or incremental revolving credit commitments in 
amounts and on terms set forth therein. The lenders under the Amended External Debt Facilities are not under any obligation to 
provide any such incremental loans or commitments, and any such addition of or increase in loans is subject to certain customary 
conditions precedent and other provisions. 
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interest rate and fees 

Borrowings under the Amended External Debt Facilities bear interest at a rate per annum equal to, at our option, either a base rate plus 
an applicable margin of0.75% or a SOFR rate plus an applicable margin of 1.75%. 

During 2020 and 2022, we entered into a series of interest rate swaps to fix the LIBOR of our External Debt Facilities. In February 
2023, we amended our interest rate swaps to replace the interest rate benchmark from LIBOR to SOFR. Other than the foregoing, the 
material terms of the interest rate swap agreements remained unchanged, and our election to use practical expedients under 
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate 
Reform on Financial Reporting, and ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope, resulted in no material impacts on the 
consolidated financial statements. The aggregate notional amount of our interest rate swaps still in effect as of December 3 I, 2024 was 
$ I, 150 million, and the SOFR is fixed at an annual rate of 0.40% to 3.40% (for an annual effective interest rate of 2.15% to 5.15%, 
including margin). These interest rate swaps hedge a portion of the interest rate exposure resulting from our Term Loan Facility for 
periods ranging from one to two years. 

Prepayments 

The Term Loan Facility contains customary mandatory prepayments, including with respect to excess cash flow, asset sale proceeds 
and proceeds from certain incurrences of indebtedness. 

The Borrower may voluntarily repay outstanding loans under the Term Loan Facility at any time without premium or penalty, other 
than customary breakage costs with respect to SOFR based loans. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, we made 
voluntary principal payments of $150 million and $250 million, respectively, related to the Term Loan Facility, which were not 
subject to a prepayment premium. Subsequent to December 31 , 2024, we made a voluntary principal payment of $50 million related to 
our Term Loan Facility. 

Amortization and maturity 

The Term Loan Facility matures in February 2027. As a result of previous voluntary principal repayments, we have no further 
quarterly amortization payments due on the Term Loan Facility. 

As amended, the Revolving Facility matures in October 2029. 

Guarantee and security 

All obligations under the Amended External Debt Facilities and certain hedge agreements and cash management arrangements 
provided by any lender party to the Amended External Debt Facilities or any of its affiliates and certain other persons are 
unconditionall y guaranteed by Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. ("RCPI"), the Borrower (with respect to hedge agreements and cash 
management arrangements not entered into by the Borrower) and certain of RCPl 's existing and subsequently acquired or organized 
direct or indirect material wholly-owned U.S. restricted subsidiaries, with customary exceptions including, among other things, where 
providing such guarantees is not permitted by law, regulation or contract or would result in material adverse tax consequences. 

All obligations under the Amended External Debt Facilities and certain hedge agreements and cash management arrangements 
provided by any lender party to the Amended External Debt Facilities or any of its affiliates and certain other persons, and the 
guarantees of such obligations, are secured, subject to permitted liens and other exceptions, by: (i) a perfected first-priority pledge of 
all the equity interests of each wholly-owned material restricted subsidiary of RCPI, the Borrower or a subsidiary guarantor, including 
the equity interests of the Borrower (limited to 65% of voting stock in the case of first-tier non-U.S. subsidiaries of RCPI, the 
Borrower or any subsidiary guarantor) and (ii) perfected first-priority security interests in substantially all tangible and intangible 
personal property ofRCPI, the Borrower and the subsidiary guarantors (subject to certain other exclusions). 

38 

Certain covenants and events of default 

The Amended External Debt Facilities contain a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, 
our ability and the ability of the restricted subsidiaries of RCPI to: 

incur additional indebtedness and guarantee indebtedness; 

create or incur liens; 

engage in mergers or consolidations; 

sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of assets; 

pay dividends and distributions or repurchase capital stock; 

prepay, redeem or repurchase certain indebtedness; 

make investments, loans and advances; 

enter into certain transactions with affiliates; 

enter into agreements which limit the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to incur restrictions on their ability to make 
distributions; and 

enter into amendments to certain indebtedness in a manner materially adverse to the lenders. 

The Amended External Debt Facilities contain a springing financial covenant requiring compliance with a ratio of first lien net 
indebtedness to consolidated EB ITDA, applicable solel y to the Revolving Facility. The financial covenant is tested on the last day of 
any fiscal quarter only if the aggregate principal amount of borrowings under the Revolving Facility and drawn but unreimbursed 
letters of credit exceed 35% of the total amount of commitments under the Revolving Facility on such day. 

If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the Amended External Debt Facilities are entitled to take various actions, including the 
acceleration of amounts due under the Amended External Debt Facilities and all actions permitted to be taken by secured creditors. 

We are currently in compliance with the covenants contained in our Amended External Debt Facilities. 

Accounts Receivable Factoring 

We are party to a factoring agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. to se ll certain accounts receivable up to $95 million. We had 
no outstanding balance owed under the factoring arrangement as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023. Transactions under this agreement 
are accounted for as sales of accounts receivable, and the receivables sold are removed from the consolidated balance sheet at the time 
of the sales transaction. We classify proceeds received from the sales of accounts receivable as an operating cash flow in the 
consolidated statement of cash flows. We record the discount as other expense, net in the consolidated statement of income. 

Supply Chain Financing 

During the year ended December 3 I , 2023, we initiated a voluntary Supply Chain Finance program (the "SCF'') with a global financial 
institution (the "SCF Bank"). Under the SCF, qualifying suppliers may elect to se ll their receivables from us to the SCF Bank. These 
participating suppliers negotiate their receivables sales arrangements directly with the SCF Bank. We are not party to those 
agreements, nor do we provide any security or other forms of guarantees to the SCF Bank. The participation in the program is at the 
sole discretion of the supplier, we have no economic interest in a supplier's decision to enter into the agreement and have no direct 
financial relationship with the SCF Bank, as it relates to the SCF. Once a qualifying supplier elects to participate in the SCF and 
reaches an agreement with the SCF Bank, they elect which individual invoices they sell to the SCF Bank. 

The terms of our payment obligations are not impacted by a supplier's participation in the SCF and as such, the SCF has no impact on 
our balance sheets, cash flows or liquidity. Our payment terms with our suppliers for similar services and materials within individual 
markets are consistent between suppliers that elect to participate in the SCF and those that do not participate. 

All outstanding amounts related to suppliers participating in the SCF are recorded within accounts payable in the consolidated balance 
sheet and associated payments are included as an operating cash flow in the consolidated statement of cash flows. As of December 31, 
2024 and 2023, the amount of obligations outstanding that we have confirmed as valid under the SCF were $12 million and $19 
million, respectively. 
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Dividends 

During the year ended December 31 , 2024, cash dividends totaling $0.92 per share were declared and paid. On January 30, 2025, a 
quarterly cash dividend of $0.23 per share was declared and is to be paid on February 28, 2025. We expect to continue paying cash 
dividends on a quarterly basis; however, future dividends are at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our 
earnings, capital requirements, financial condition, contractual limitations (including under the Amended External Debt Facilities) and 
other factors. 

We believe that our projected cash position, cash flows from operations, including proceeds from factored receivables, and available 
borrowings under the Revolving Facility are sufficient to meet debt service, capital expenditures and working capital needs for the 
foreseeable future. However, we cannot ensure that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future 
borrowings will be available under our borrowing agreements in amounts sufficient to pay indebtedness or fund other liquidity needs. 
Actual results of operations will depend on numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control as further discussed in "Item IA. 
Risk Factors". 

Contractual Obligations 

The following table summarizes our material contractual obligations as of December 31 , 2024: 

Less than One to three Three to five Greater tha n 
(i n mill ions) Total one year years years five years 

Long-term debt tI> $ 1,918 $ 107 $ 1,81 I $ $ 

Operating lease liabilities <2> 123 27 47 32 17 

Finance lease liabilities 20 2 4 4 10 

Unconditional capital expenditure obligations 51 51 

Postretirement benefit plan obligations 15 2 2 8 

Total contractua l obligations $ 2,127 $ 189 $ 1,865 $ 38 $ 35 

(I) Total obligations for long-term debt consist of the principal amounts and interest obligations. The interest rate on the floating 
rate debt balances has been assumed to be the same as the rate in effect as of December 31 , 2024. 

(2) Total operating lease liabilities include $ I 7 million in commitments related to operating leases executed that have not yet 
commenced. 

As of December 31, 2024, our liabilities for uncertain tax positions and defined benefit pension obligations totaled $ 12 million. The 
ultimate timing of these liabilities cannot be determined; therefore, we have excluded these amounts from the contractual obligations 
table above. 

Off-Ba lance Sheet Arrangements 

We have no material off-balance sheet obligations. 
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Critical Accounting Estimates 

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our most critical accounting policies have a significant impact on the results 
we report in our consolidated financial statements. Critical accounting estimates are those that involve a significant level of estimation 
uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations. 
Specific areas requiring the application of management 's estimates and judgments include, among others, assumptions pertaining to 
valuation assumptions of goodwill and intangible assets, useful lives of long-lived assets and sales incentives. Accordingly, a different 
financial presentation could result depending on the judgments, estimates or assumptions that are used. A summary of our significant 
accounting policies and use of estimates is contained in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of our consolidated 
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

We believe that the accounting estimates and assumptions described below involve significant subjectivity and judgment, and changes 
to such estimates or assumptions could have a material impact on our financial condition or operating results. Therefore, we consider 
an understanding of the variability and judgment required in making these estimates and assumptions to be critical in fully 
understanding and evaluating our reported financial results. 

Revenue Recognition-Sales incentives 

We routinely commit to one-time or ongoing trade-promotion programs with our customers. Programs include discounts, allowances, 
shelf-price reductions, end-of-aisle or in-store displays of our products and graphics and other trade-promotion activities conducted by 
the customer, such as coupons. Collectively, we refer to these as sales incentives or trade promotions. Costs related to these programs 
are recorded as a reduction to revenue. Our trade promotion accruals are primarily based on estimated volume and incorporate 
historical sales and spending trends by customer and category. The determination of these estimated accruals requires judgment and 
may change in the future as a result of changes in customer promotion participation, particularly for new programs and for programs 
related to the introduction of new products. Final determination of the total cost ofa promotion is dependent upon customers providing 
information about proof of performance and other information related to the promotional event. This process of analyzing and settling 
trade-promotion programs with customers could impact our results of operations and trade promotion accruals depending on how 
actual results of the programs compare to original estimates. Sales incentives represented 5%, 5%, and 4% of total net revenues for the 
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, we had accruals of$36 million and 
$40 million, respectively, reflected on our consolidated balance sheets in Accrued and other current liabilities related to sales incentive 
programs. 

Goodwill, Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets and long-lived Assets 

We test our goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment mmually in the fi scal fourth quarter unless there are 
indications during a different interim period that these assets may have become impaired. No impairments were identified as a result 
ofour impairment review performed annually during the fourth quarter of fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022. 

Goodwill 

Our reporting units for goodwill impairment testing purposes are Reynolds Cooking & Baking, Hefty Waste & Storage, Hefty 
Tableware and Presto Products. No instances of impairment were identified during the fiscal year 2024 annual impairment review. All 
of our reporting units had fair va lues that s ignificantly exceeded recorded carrying values. However, future changes in the judgments, 
assumptions and estimates that are used in the impairment testing for goodwill as described below could result in s ignificantly 
different estimates of the fair values. 

In our evaluation of goodwill impairment, we have the option to first assess qualitative factors such as the maturity and stability of the 
reporting unit, the magnitude of the excess fair value over carrying value from the prior year' s impairment testing, other reporting unit 
operating results as well as new events and circumstances impacting the operations at the reporting unit leve l. If the result of a 
qualitative test indicates a potential for impairment, or ifwe voluntarily elect, a quantitative test is performed, wherein we compare the 
estimated fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. In all instances where a quantitative test was performed, the estimated 
fair value exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit and none of our reporting units were at a ri sk of failing the quantitative 
test. If the estimated fair value of any reporting unit had been less than its carrying value, an impairment charge would have been 
recorded for the amount by which the reporting unit' s carrying amount exceeds its fair value. 

To determine the fair value of a reporting unit as part of our quantitative test, we use a capitalization of earnings method under the 
income approach. Under this approach, we estimate the forecasted Adjusted EB ITDA of each reporting unit and capitalize this amount 
using a multiple. The Adjusted EBITDA amounts are consistent with those we use in our internal planning, which gives consideration 
to actual business trends experienced and the long-term business strategy. The selection of a capitalization multiple incorporates 
consideration of comparable entity trading multiples within the same industry and recent sale and purchase transactions. Changes in 
such estimates or the application of alternative assumptions could produce different results. 

41 



Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets 

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of certain trade names. We test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an 
annual basis in the fourth quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets 
may not be recoverable. We have the option to first assess qualitative factors such as the maturity of the trade name, the magnitude of 
the excess fair value over carrying value from the prior year's impairment testing, as well as new events and circumstances impacting 
the trade name. If the result of a qualitative test indicates a potential for impairment, or if we voluntarily elect, a quantitative test is 
performed. If the carrying amount of such asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recorded for the difference 
between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value. When a quantitative test is performed we use a relief from royalty 
computation under the income approach to estimate the fair va lue of our trade names. This approach requires significant judgments in 
determining (i) the estimated future branded revenue from the use of the asset; (ii) the relevant royalty rate to be applied to these 
estimated future cash flows; and (iii) the appropriate discount rates applied to those cash flows to detennine fair value. Changes in 
such estimates or the use of alternative assumptions could produce different results. No instances of impairment were identified during 
the fiscal year 2024 annual impairment review. Each of our indefinite-lived intangible assets had fair values that significantly 
exceeded recorded carrying values. 

Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets, including finite-lived intangible assets, are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying amount ofan asset (or asset group) may not be recoverable. Our impairment review 
requires significant management judgment, including estimating the future success of product lines, future sales volumes, revenue and 
expense growth rates, alternative uses for the assets and estimated proceeds from the disposal of the assets. We rev iew business plans 
for possible impairment indicators. Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of the asset (or asset group) exceeds its estimated 
future undiscounted cash flows. When impairment is indicated, an impairment charge is recorded for the difference between the 
asset' s carrying value and its estimated fair value. Depending on the asset, estimated fair value may be determined either by use of a 
discounted cash flow model or by reference to estimated selling values of assets in similar condition. The use of different assumptions 
would increase or decrease the estimated fair va lue of assets and would increase or decrease any impairment measurement. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

New accounting guidance that we have recently adopted, as well as accounting guidance that has been recently issued but not yet 
adopted by us, is included in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of our consolidated financial statements included 
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

In the normal course of business, we are subject to ri sks from adverse fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. Our 
objective in managing our exposure to market ri sk is to limit the impact on earnings and cash flow. 

interest Rate Risk 

We had significant variable rate debt commitments outstanding as of December 31 , 2024, which accrue interest at the SOFR rate plus 
an applicable margin of 1.75%. These on-balance sheet financial instruments expose us to interest rate risk. 

During 2020 and 2022, we entered into a series of interest rate swaps which fi xed the LIBOR of our External Debt Facilities. In 
February 2023 , we amended our interest rate swaps to replace the interest rate benchmark from the LIBOR to SOFR. Other than the 
foregoing, the material terms of the interest rate swap agreements remained unchanged, and our election to use practical expedients 
under AS Us 2020-04 and 2021-0 I resulted in no material impacts on the consolidated financial statements. The aggregate notional 
amount of our interest rate swaps still in effect as of December 31, 2024 was $1,150 million, and the SOFR is fixed at an annual rate 
of 0.40% to 3.40% (for an annual effective interest rate of 2.15% to 5.15%, including margin). These interest rate swaps hedge a 
portion of the interest rate exposure resulting from our Term Loan Facility for periods ranging from one to two years. We classify 
these instruments as cash flow hedges. Our average variable rate for the remaining notional amount of$1,150 million is a one-month 
SOFR plus an applicable margin of I. 75%. The fair value of our interest rate swaps included on our consolidated balance sheets as of 
December 31 , 2024 was $16 million. Refer to Note 8 - Financial Instruments for further detail. 

Maturity date 

2025 

2026 

Total 

(!) Includes 1.75% applicable margin on the one-month SOFR. 

Pay fixed / receive 
variable notional 

(in millions) Average pay rate <•J 

$ 

150 

1,000 
1,150 

2.2 % 

4.7 % 

Based on the unhedged outstanding borrowings under the Term Loan Facility as of December 31 , 2024, a 100-basis point increase 
(decrease) in the interest rates under the Term Loan Facility would result in a $5 million increase (decrease) in interest expense, per 
annum, on our borrowings. 

Commodity Risk 

We are exposed to commodity and other price ri sk principally from the purchase of resin, aluminum, natural gas, electricity, carton 
board and diesel. In some instances, we use contracts of varying durations along with strategic pricing mechanisms to manage 
volatility for a portion of our commodity costs, but derivative instruments are not currently being used to manage these risks. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and its subsidiaries (the 
"Company") as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of 
stockholders' equity and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 , 2024, including the related notes 
(collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements"). We also have audited the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi zations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Company as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023 , and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31 , 2024 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in 
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 , 
2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO. 

Basis for Opinions 
The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management 's 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We 
are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are 
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules 
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to 
error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. 

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the ri sks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud , and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such 
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and di sclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the ri sk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail , accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Critical Audit Matters 

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements 
that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are 
material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The 
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a 
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or 
on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. 

Revenue Recognition for Certain Contracts with Customers 
As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recorded total net revenues of $3,695 million for the 
year ended December 31 , 2024, of which a portion relates to certain contracts with customers, recorded net of di scounts, allowances 
and trade promotions (collectively referred to as "sales incentives") recogni zed throughout the year. Consideration in contracts with 
customers is variable due to anticipated reductions such as sales incentives. Accordingly, revenues are recorded net of estimated sales 
incentives recognized throughout the year and as of year-end. The transaction price is estimated based on the amount of consideration 
to which management believes the Company will be entitled, using an expected va lue method. 

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to revenue recognition for certain contracts 
with customers is a critical audit matter is a high degree of auditor effort in performing procedures related to revenue recognition for 
certain contracts with customers, recorded net of sales incentives recogni zed throughout the year. 

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit ev idence in connection with forming our overall opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to the revenue 
recognition process. These procedures also included, among others (i) evaluating certain revenue transactions by testing the issuance 
and settlement of invoices and credit memos, tracing transactions not settled to a detailed listing of accounts receivable, and testing the 
completeness and accuracy of data provided by management; (ii) evaluating and recalculating, on a sample basis, certain sales 
incentives recognized by obtaining and inspecting source documents, such as executed contracts and support for the amount; and (iii) 
evaluating, on a sample basis, outstanding customer invoice balances as of December 3 1, 2024 by obtaining and inspecting source 
documents, such as executed contracts, invoices, proof of shipment, and subsequent cash receipts. 

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chicago, lllinois 
February 5, 2025 

We have served as the Company's auditor s ince 2015. 
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Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
For the Years Ended December 31 

(in mil lions, except for per share data) 

2024 

Net revenues $ 3,618 

Related party net revenues 77 

Total net revenues 3,695 

Cost of sales (2,717) 

Gross profit 978 

Selling, general and administrative expenses (429) 

Other expense, net 

Income from operations 549 

Interest expense, net (98) 

Income before income taxes 451 

Income tax expense (99) 

Net income $ 352 

Earnings per share 

Basic $ 1.68 

Diluted $ 1.67 

Weighted average shares outstanding: 

Basic 210.1 

Diluted 210.4 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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2023 2022 

$ 3,673 $ 3,716 

83 101 

3,756 3,817 

(2,8 14) (3 ,041) 

942 776 

(430) (340) 

(22) 

512 414 

(119) (76) 

393 338 

(95) (80) 

$ 298 $ 258 

$ 1.42 $ 1.23 

$ 1.42 $ 1.23 

210.0 209.8 

210.0 209.9 



Net income 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the Years Ended December 31 
(in millions) 

2024 

$ 352 

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes: 

Currency translation adjustment (3) 

Employee benefit plans (3) 

Derivative instruments (9) 

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes (15) 

Comprehensive income $ 337 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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2023 2022 

$ 298 $ 258 

(1) 

11 11 

(13) 32 

(2) 42 

$ 296 $ 300 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

As of December 31 
(in millions, except for per share data) 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable, net 

Other receivables 

Related party receivables 

Inventories 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 

Goodwill 

Intangible assets, net 

Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Related party payables 

Current operating lease liabiliti es 

Income taxes payable 

Accrued and other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term debt 

Long-term operating lease liabilities 

Deferred income taxes 

Long-term postretirement benefit obligation 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13) 

Stockholders' eq uity 

Common stock, $0.00 1 par value; 2,000 shares authorized; 2 10.2 shares issued and 
outstanding 

Additional paid-in capital 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Retained earnings 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' eq uity 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2024 2023 

137 $ 115 

337 347 

6 

567 524 

47 41 

l,IOI 1,041 

758 732 

90 56 

1,895 1,895 

972 1,00 1 

57 55 
4,873 $ 4,780 

3 19 $ 2 19 

34 34 

20 16 

22 

161 187 

539 478 

1,686 1,832 

73 42 

342 357 

14 16 

77 72 

2,731 $ 2,797 

1,413 1,396 

35 50 

694 537 

2,142 1,983 

4,873 $ 4,780 
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Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31 
(in millions) 

Cash provided by operating activities 

Net income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to operating cash fl ows: 

Depreciation and amort izat ion 

Deferred income taxes 

Stock compensat ion expense 

Change in assets and liab ilities: 

Accounts rece ivable, net 

Other receivables 

Re lated party rece ivables 

Inventori es 

Accounts payable 

Related party payables 

Income taxes payable / receivable 

Accrued and other current li abiliti es 

Other assets and liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash used in investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

Acqui siti on of business 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash used in financing activities 

Repayment of long-term debt 

Dividends paid 

Other financing activities 

Net cash used in financin g activities 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equi valents 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equi valents 

Balance as of beginning of the year 

Balance as of end of the year 

Cash pa id: 

Interest - long-term debt, net of interest rate swaps 

Income taxes 

Significant non-cash investing and financing activities 

2024 

$ 

352 

129 

( 11 ) 

19 

11 

1 

I 

(42) 

95 

( 17) 

(26) 

(23) 

489 

(120) 

(120) 

(150) 

(192) 

(4) 

(346) 

(1) 

22 

11 5 

137 $ 

98 $ 

125 

2023 

298 

124 

(5) 

14 

198 

(3 I) 

( 12) 

9 
42 

644 

(104) 

(6) 

(110) 

(262) 

( 192) 

(3) 

(457) 

2022 

258 

11 7 

(3 1) 

(3) 

(139) 

( 14) 

8 

13 

219 

( 128) 

(128) 

(25) 

(1 92) 

(217) 

77 (126) 

38 164 

115 =$====38= 

11 4 $ 

90 

68 

64 

Refer to Note 7 - Leases for details of non-cash additions to lease right-of-use assets, net as a result of changes in lease liab ilities. 

See accOmJXinying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note J - Description of Business and Basis of Presentation 

Description of Business: 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and its subsidiaries ("we", "us" or "our") produce and se ll products that people use in their homes 
for cooking, serv ing, cleanup and storage. We sell our products under brands such as Reynolds and Hefty, and also under store brands. 
Our product portfolio includes aluminum foil, wraps, disposable bakeware, trash bags, food storage bags and disposable tableware. 
We report four business segments: Reynolds Cooking & Baking; Hefty Waste & Storage; Hefty Tableware; and Presto Products. 

Basis of Presentation: 
We have prepared the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted 
accounting principles ("GAAP"). 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Consolidation: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany 
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates: 

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, which requires us to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect a number of amounts in our consolidated financial statements. Significant accounting policy elections, estimates and 
assumptions include, among others, valuation assumptions of goodwill and intangible assets, useful lives of long-lived assets, sales 
incentives, income taxes and benefit plan assumptions. We base our estimates on historical experience and other assumptions that we 
believe are reasonable. If actual amounts differ from estimates, we include the revisions in our consolidated results of operations in the 
period the actual amounts become known. Historically, the aggregate differences, if any, between our estimates and actual amounts in 
any year have not had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. 

Currency Translation: 

Our consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, which is our reporting currency. We translate the results of 
operations of our subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar using average exchange rates during each period 
and translate balance sheet accounts using exchange rates at the end of each period. We record currency translation adjustments as a 
component of stockholders' equity within accumulated other comprehensive income and transaction gains and losses in other expense, 
net in our consolidated statements of income. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits with banks and all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less. We maintain our bank accounts with a relatively small number of high quality financial institutions. Cash balances 
held by non-U.S. entities as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023 were $10 million and $12 million, respectivel y. 

Accounts Receivable: 

Accounts receivable are recorded at face amounts less an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance is an estimate based on 
historical collection experience, current economic and market conditions and a review of the current status of each customer's trade 
accounts receivable balance. We evaluate the aging of the accounts receivable balances and the financial condition of our customers to 
estimate the amount of accounts receivable that may not be collected in the future and record the appropriate provision. The allowance 
for doubtful accounts was not material as of December 3 1, 2024 and 2023. 

We are party to a factoring agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. to se ll certain accounts receivable up to $95 million. We had 
no outstanding balance owed under the factoring arrangement as of December 31 , 2024 and 2023. Transactions under thi s agreement 
are accounted for as sales of accounts receivable, and the receivables sold are removed from the consolidated balance sheet at the time 
of the sales transaction. We classify proceeds received from the sales of accounts receivable as an operating cash flow in the 
consolidated statement of cash flows. We record the discount as other expense, net in the consolidated statement of income. 
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Inventories: 

We value our inventories using the first-in , first-out method. Inventory is valued at actual cost, which includes raw materials, supplies, 
direct labor and manufacturing overhead associated with production. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, 
which includes any costs to sell or dispose. In addition, appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive inventory levels, 
product deterioration and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. 

long-lived Assets: 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, which is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. Machinery and equipment are depreciated over periods ranging from 5 to 20 years and buildings 
and building improvements over periods ranging from 15 to 40 years. Finite-lived intangible assets, which primarily consist of 
customer relationships, are stated at historical cost and amortized using the straight-line method (which reflects the pattern of how the 
assets' economic benefits are consumed) over the assets' estimated useful lives which range from 18 to 20 years. 

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. When property, plant or equipment is sold or otherwise disposed 
of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the respective accounts and any gain or loss realized on disposition 
is reflected in other expense, net in our consolidated statements of income. 

We review long-lived assets, including finite-lived intangible assets, for recoverability on an ongoing basis. Changes in depreciation or 
amortization are recorded prospectively when estimates of the remaining useful lives or residual values of long-lived assets change. 
We also review our long-lived assets for impairment when conditions exist that indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be 
full y recoverable. In those circumstances, we perform undi scounted cash flow analysis to determine if an impairment exists. When 
testing for asset impairment, we group assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which cash flows are separately identifiable. If an 
impairment loss is recorded, it is calculated as the excess of the asset ' s carrying value over its estimated fair value as determined by an 
estimate of di scounted future cash flows. Depending on the nature of the asset, impairment losses are recorded in either cost of sales or 
selling, general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statements of income. There were no impairments of long-lived assets 
in any of the years presented. 

Leases: 

We determine whether a contract is or contains a lease at contract inception. Right-of-use ("ROU") assets represent our right to use an 
underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. ROU 
assets are recognized at the commencement date at the value of the lease liability, adjusted for any prepayments, lease incentives 
received and initial direct costs incurred. Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the present value of 
remaining lease payments over the lease term. For operating leases, following initial recognition, lease liability balances are amortized 
using the effective interest method, while the related operating lease ROU assets are adjusted by the difference between the fixed lease 
expense recognized under a straight-line method and the interest expense associated with the effective interest method in the period. 

Some of our leases contain non-lease components, for example common area or other maintenance costs, that relate to the lease 
components of the agreement. Non-lease components and the lease components to which they relate are accounted for as a single lease 
component as we have elected to combine lease and non-lease components for all classes of underlying assets. All operating lease cash 
payments are recorded within cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Principal cash 
payments on finance leases are recorded within cash flows from financing activities, while interest payments associated with finance 
leases are recorded within cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Our lease agreements do 
not include significant restrictions, covenants or residual value guarantees. 
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Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets: 

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. We test goodwill for impairment on an 
annual basis in the fourth quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwi 11 may 
not be recoverable. We assess goodwill impairment risk by performing a qualitative review of entity-specific, industry, market and 
general economic factors affecting our goodwill reporting units. Depending on factors such as prior-year test results, current year 
developments, current risk evaluations and other practical considerations, we may elect to perform quantitative testing instead. In our 
quantitative testing, we compare a report ing unit ' s estimated fair value with its carrying value. Estimating the fair value of individual 
reporting units requires us to make assumptions and estimates regarding our future plans and industry and economic conditions. The 
key assumptions associated with determining the estimated fair value are forecasted Adjusted EB ITDA and a relevant earnings 
multiple. Our actual results and conditions may differ over time. If the carrying value of a reporting unit ' s net assets exceeds its fair 
value, we would recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the reporting unit' s fair value. 

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of certain trade names. We test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an 
annual basis in the fourth quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets 
may not be recoverable. Depending on factors such as prior-year test results, current year developments, current risk evaluations and 
other practical considerations, we may elect to perform quantitative testing instead. If potential impairment risk exists for a specific 
asset, we quantitatively test it for impairment by comparing its estimated fair value with its carrying value. We determine estimated 
fair value using the relief-from-royalty method, using key assumptions including planned revenue growth rates, market-based discount 
rates and estimates of royalty rates. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value, we consider the asset impaired and reduce 
its carrying value to the estimated fair value. 

Supply Chain Financing: 

During the year ended December 31, 2023, we initiated a voluntary Supply Chain Finance program (the "SCF") with a global financial 
institution (the "SCF Bank"). Under the SCF, qualifying suppliers may elect to sell their receivables from us to the SCF Bank. These 
participating suppliers negotiate their receivables sales arrangements directly with the SCF Bank. We are not party to those 
agreements, nor do we provide any security or other forms of guarantees to the SCF Bank. The participation in the program is at the 
sole discretion of the supplier, we have no economic interest in a supplier' s decision to enter into the agreement and have no direct 
financial relationship with the SCF Bank, as it relates to the SCF. Once a qualifying supplier elects to participate in the SCF and 
reaches an agreement with the SCF Bank, they elect which individual invoices they se ll to the SCF Bank. 

The terms of our payment obligations are not impacted by a supplier' s participation in the SCF and as such, the SCF has no impact on 
our balance sheets, cash flows or liquidity. Our payment terms with our suppliers for similar services and material s within individual 
markets are consistent between suppliers that elect to participate in the SCF and those that do not participate. 

All outstanding amounts related to suppliers participating in the SCF are recorded within accounts payable in the consolidated balance 
sheet and associated payments are included as an operating cash flow in the consolidated statement of cash flows. 

Our outstanding obligations confirmed as valid under our SCF forthe year ended December 31 , 2024 is as follows: 

Confirmed obligations outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Invoices confirmed during the year 

Confirmed invoices paid during the year 

Confirmed obligations outstanding at the end of the year 
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As of December 31, 

2024 

(in millions) 

$ 19 

60 

(67) 

$ 12 
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Revenue Recognition: 

After assessing our customers' creditworthiness, we recognize revenue when control over products transfers to our customers, which 
generally occurs upon delivery or shipment of the products. We account for product shipping, handling and insurance as fulfillment 
activities, with revenues for these activities recorded in net revenues and costs recorded in cost of sales. Any taxes collected on behalf 
of government authorities are excluded from net revenues. 

Consideration in our contracts with customers is variable due to anticipated reductions such as discounts, allowances and trade 
promotions, collectively referred to as "sales incentives". Accordingly, revenues are recorded net of estimated sales incentives, 
recognized throughout the year and as of year-end. The transaction price reflects our estimate of the amount of consideration to which 
we will be entitled, using an expected value method. We base these estimates principally on historical utilization and redemption rates, 
anticipated performance and our best judgment at the time to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue 
recognized will not occur. Estimates of sales incentives are monitored and adjusted each period until the sales incentives are reali zed. 

We consider purchase orders, which in some cases are governed by master supply agreements, to be the contracts with a customer. 
Key sales terms, such as pricing and quantities ordered, are established frequently, so most customer arrangements and related sales 
incentives have a duration of one year or shorter. We generally do not have any unbilled receivables at the end of a period. Deferred 
revenues are not material and primarily include customer advance payments typically collected a few days before product delivery, at 
which time deferred revenues are reclassified and recorded as net revenues. We generally do not receive non-cash consideration for 
the sale of goods nor do we grant payment financing terms greater than one year. We do not incur any significant costs to obtain a 
contract. 

Marketing, Advertising and Research and Development: 

We promote our products with marketing and advertising programs. These programs include, but are not limited to, cooperative 
advertising, in-store di splays and consumer marketing promotions. The costs of end-consumer marketing programs that are conducted 
in conjunction with our customers, such as coupons, are recorded as a reduction to revenue. We do not defer these costs on our 
consolidated balance sheets and all marketing and advertising costs are recorded as an expense in the year incurred. Advertising 
expense was $78 million, $79 million and $59 million in the years ended December 31 , 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. We 
expense product research and development costs as incurred. Research and development expense was $45 million, $44 million and 
$38 million in the years ended December 31 , 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectivel y. We record marketing and advertising as well as 
research and development expenses in selling, general and administrative expenses. 

Stock-based Compensation: 

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense 
over the period in which the award vests in accordance with applicable guidance under Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 
718, Compensation- Stock Compensation. We have granted restricted stock units ("RS Us") to certain members of management and 
to certain members of our Board of Directors that have a service-based vesting condition. In addition, we have granted performance 
stock units ("PSUs") to certain members of management that have a performance-based vesting condition. We account for forfeitures 
of outstanding but unvested grants in the period they occur. 

Interest Rate Derivatives: 

We manage interest rate risk by using interest rate derivative instruments. Interest rate swaps (pay fixed, receive variable) are entered 
into as cash flow hedges to manage a portion of the interest rate ri sk associated with our floating-rate borrowings. 

We record interest rate derivative instruments at fair value (Level 2) and on a net basis by counterparty based on our master netting 
arrangements. The fair value of our interest rate derivatives is determined using a di scounted cash flow method based on market-based 
swap yield curves, taking into account current interest rates. The instruments are classified in our consolidated balance sheets in other 
assets or other liabilities, as applicable. Cash flows from interest rate derivative instruments are classified as operating activities in our 
consolidated statements of cash flows based on the nature of the derivative instrument. We have elected to use hedge accounting for 
our interest rate derivative instruments. Accordingly, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the open hedging instrument is 
recorded in other comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings as interest expense, net when settled. We terminate 
derivative instruments if the underlying asset or liability matures or is repaid, or ifwe determine the underlying forecasted transaction 
is no longer probable of occurring. 
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income Taxes: 

Our income tax expense includes amounts payable or refundable for the current year, the effects of deferred taxes and impacts from 
uncertain tax positions. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary 
differences between the financial statement and tax basis of our assets and liabilities, operating loss carryforwards and tax credit 
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to appl y in the years in which those 
differences are expected to reverse. 

The reali zation of certain deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income in the appropriate juri sdiction prior 
to the expiration of the carryforward periods. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that 
some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. When assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider 
any carryback potential , future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences (including liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits), 
future taxable income and tax planning strategies. 

We recognize the tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained based 
on the technical merits of the position. The amount we recognize is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 
percent likely of being reali zed upon resolution. Future changes related to the expected resolution of uncertain tax positions could 
affect tax expense in the period when the change occurs. 

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures: 

GAAP establishes a hierarchy for measuring fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within the hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following three levels of inputs may be used to measure fair 
value: 

Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs include inputs other than Level 1 that are observable. either directly or indirectly. such as quoted prices in active 
markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantiall y the full term of assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists. therefore requiring an entity to develop its own 
assumptions. 

Our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are presented in Note 8 - Financial Instruments. We had no assets 
or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in any of the years presented. 

In addition to fair value disclosure requirements related to financial instruments carried at fair value. accounting standards require 
disclosures regarding the fair value of all of our financial instruments. The carrying values of cash equivalents. accounts receivables, 
other receivables, related party receivables, accounts payable, related party payables and accrued and other current liabilities are 
reasonable estimates of their fair values as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 
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Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance: 

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2020-04, 
Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) : Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, and subsequently in 
January 2021 , the FASB issued ASU 2021-0 I, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope, both of which provide optional expedients 
to applying the guidance on contract modifications, hedge accounting, and other transactions. to simplify the accounting for 
transitioning from the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), and other interbank offered rates expected to be discontinued, to 
alternative reference rates. Each of these AS Us were effective upon its issuance and could be applied prospectivel y through December 
31 , 2022. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Ref erence Rate Reform (Topic 848) : Def erral of the Sunset Date of 
Topic 848, which amended the sunset date of the guidance in Topic 848 to December 31 , 2024 from December 3 I, 2022. We adopted 
the standards as of January I, 2023. As a result of the planned phase out of the LIBOR as a reference rate and adoption of ASU 
2020-04 and ASU 2021 -0 I, in February 2023 we amended our external debt facilities and related interest rate swaps to replace the 
interest rate benchmark from LIBOR to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), and applied practical expedients under the 
guidance. The adoption of these AS Us did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

In September 2022, FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilities - Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50): Disclosure of Supplier 
Finance Program Obligations. These amendments require disclosure of the key terms of outstanding supplier finance programs and a 
roll forward of the related obligations. These amendments were effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2022, except 
for the amendment on rollforward information, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 3 I, 2023. We adopted the 
standard as of January I, 2023. The adoption relates to disclosure only and does not have an impact on the amounts recogni zed in our 
consolidated financial statements. 

In November 2023 , FASB issued ASU 2023 -07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280) , which enhances disclosures about significant 
segment expenses by requiring disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. This ASU is effective 
for fi scal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fi scal years beginning after December 15 , 2024, with 
early adoption permitted. We adopted the standard as of January t. 2024. with no material impact on our consolidated financial 
statements. 

Recently issued Accounting Guidance: 

In December 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740) , which enhances disclosures within the income tax rate 
reconciliation and information disclosed related to income taxes paid, and requires disaggregation of certain financial statement 
captions between domestic, foreign, federal and state. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, 
with early adoption permitted. We are currently assessing the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2024, the SEC adopted final rules under SEC Release No. 33-1 I 275, The Enhancement and Standardization of Climate­
Related Disclosures for Investors. which will require public companies to include climate-related disclosures in their annual reports 
and registration statements. The final rules will require. among other matters. information about climate-related risks that have 
materiall y impacted, or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on, a registrant. including on its strategy. results of operations. 
or financial condition. In addition. under the final rules, certain disclosures related to severe weather events and other natural 
conditions will be required in the audited financial statements. The disclosure requirements related to financial statements are expected 
to be effective for our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 , 2025. We are currentl y assessing the 
impact of these rules on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

In November 2024, FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation 
Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40) , which will require additional disclosure about specific expense categories included in the income 
statement. Annual disclosure requirements will be effective for us in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fi scal year ending 
December 31 , 2026, and quarterly disclosure requirements will be effective for us in the first quarter of 2027, with early adoption 
permitted. We are currently assessing the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 
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Note 3 - Inventories 

Inventories consisted of the following: 

Raw materials 

Work in progress 

Finished goods 

Spare parts 

Inventories 
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Note 4 - Property, Plant and Eq uipment, Net 

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following : 

Land and land improvements 

Buildings and building improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Construction in progress 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

$ 

$ 

As of December 31, 

2024 

(in millions) 

129 $ 

60 

3 18 

60 

2023 

153 

60 

260 

51 

524 567 =$===== 

As of December 31, 

2024 2023 

(in million s) 

47 $ 46 

230 220 

1,355 1,279 

87 84 

1,7 19 1,629 

(961) (897) 

758 =$===73=2= 

Depreciation expense was $98 million, $93 million and $86 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively, of which $89 million, $82 million and $76 million, respectively, was recognized in cost of sales and $9 million, $1 1 
million and $10 million, respectivel y, was recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses. 

Note 5 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill by reportable segment was as follows: 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 

Acquisition of business (I) 

Balance as of December 31 , 2023 

Movements 

Balance as of December 31, 2024 

$ 

$ 

Reynolds 
Cooki ng& Hefty Waste 

Baking & Storage 

794 $ 505 

794 505 

794 $ 505 

Hefty Presto 
Tableware Products Total 

(in millions) 

$ 282 $ 298 $ 1,879 

16 16 

298 298 1,895 

$ 298 $ 298 $ 1,895 

(I) During the year ended December 31, 2023, we recognized $16 million of goodwill associated with the acquisition of Atacama 
Manufacturing Inc. The acquisition did not have a material impact on our financial statements. 
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Intangible assets, net consisted of the following: 

As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023 

Gross Gross 
carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated 
amount amortization Net amount amortization Net 

(in millions) 

Finite-lived intangible assets 

Customer relationships $ 580 $ (458) $ 122 $ 580 $ (429) $ 15 1 

Trade names 25 (25) 25 (25) 

Total finite-lived intangible assets 605 (483) 122 605 (454) 151 

Indefinite-lived intangible assets 

Trade names 850 850 85 0 850 

Total intangible assets $ 1,455 $ !483! $ 972 $ 1,455 $ !454! $ 1,001 

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $29 million, $30 million and $3 1 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 
and 2022, respectivel y, and has been recogni zed in selling, general and administrative expenses. 

Estimated annual amorti zation for intangible assets over the next five calendar years are as follows: 

(in millions) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 

Estimated am1ual amortization $ (29) $ (22) $ (21) $ (18) $ (17) 
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Note 6 - Debt 

long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consisted of the following: 

Term Loan Facility 

Deferred financing transaction costs 

Original issue discounts 

Long-term debt 

External Debt Facilities 

$ 

$ 

As of December 31, 

2024 2023 

(in million s) 

1,695 $ 1,845 

(8) (12) 

(]) (I) 

I 686 $ 1,832 

In February 2020, we entered into new external debt faci lities ("External Debt Facilities"), which consisted of (i) a $2,475 million 
senior secured term loan facility ("Term Loan Facility"); and (ii) a $250 million senior secured revolving credit facility ("Revolving 
Facility"). In February 2023, we amended the External Debt Facilities ("Amendment No. I " ) which replaced the interest rate 
benchmark from LIBOR to the SOFR. Additionally, in November 2023, we further amended the External Debt Facilities 
("Amendment No. 2") to extend the maturity of the Revolving Facility by one year. In October 2024, we further amended our External 
Debt Facilities ("Amendment No. 3") to replace the undrawn $250 million revolving facility maturing in February 2026 with an 
undrawn $700 million revolving facility maturing in October 2029. Other than the foregoing, the material terms of the External Debt 
Facilities, as amended by Amendment No. 1, Amendment No. 2 and Amendment No. 3 ("Amended External Debt Facilities") 
remained unchanged, and our election to use practical expedients under ASU 2020-04 and ASU 202 1-01 , as described in Note 2 -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, resulted in no material impacts on our consolidated financial statements. 

Borrowings under the Amended External Debt Facilities bear interest at a rate per annum equal to, at our option, either a base rate plus 
an applicable margin of0.75% or a SOFR plus an applicable margin of 1.75%. We have entered into a series of interest rate swaps to 
hedge a portion of the interest rate exposure resulting from these borrowings. Refer to Note 8 - Financial Instruments for further 
details. 

The Amended External Debt Facilities contain a springing financial covenant requiring compliance with a ratio of first lien net 
indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA, app licable solely to the Revolving Facility. The financial covenant is tested on the last day of 
any fi scal quarter only if the aggregate principal amount of borrowings under the Revolving Faci lity and drawn but unreimbursed 
letters of credit exceed 35% of the total amount of commitments under the Revolving Facility on such day. We are currently in 
compliance with the covenants contained in our External Debt Facilities. 

If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the Amended External Debt Facilities are entitled to take various actions, including the 
acceleration of amounts due under the Amended External Debt Facilities and all actions permitted to be taken by secured creditors. 

Term Loan Facility 

The Term Loan Facility matures in February 2027. As a result of voluntary principal repayments, the Term Loan Faci lity has no 
remaining quarterly amortization payments due. During the years ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023 , we made voluntary principal 
repayments of$150 million and $250 million, respectively. 

Revolving Facility 

In November 2023 , we amended the External Debt Facilities to extend the maturity date of the Revolving Facility by one year. In 
October 2024, we furth er amended the External Debt Facilities to replace the undrawn $250 million revolving facility maturing in 
February 2026 with an undrawn $700 million revolving facility maturing in October 2029. The Revolving Faci li ty includes a sub­
faci lity for letters of credit. As of December 31 , 2024, we had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Faci lity, and we had $6 
million of letters of credit outstanding, which reduces the borrowing capacity under the Revolving Facility. 
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Fair Value of Our long-Term Debt 

The fair value of our long-term debt as of December 31 , 2024, which is a Level 2 fair value measurement, approximates the carrying 
value due to the variable market interest rate and the stability of our credit profile. 

Interest expense, net: 

Interest expense, net consisted of the following: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

Interest expense, Term Loan Facility 

Amortization of deferred financing transaction costs 

Interest rate swaps (benefit) expense 

Other 

Interest expense, net 

Scheduled Maturities 

2024 

$ 

127 $ 

4 

(3 I) 

(2) 

98 $ 

Below is a schedule of required future repayments on our debt outstanding as of December 31 , 2024: 

2025 

2026 

2027 

Total long-term debt 
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2023 2022 

(in millions) 

142 $ 74 

4 4 

(29) (6) 

2 4 

119 $ 76 

(in millions) 

1,695 

$ 1,695 
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Note 7 - Leases 

We lease certain buildings and plant and equipment. Our leases have reasonably assured remaining lease terms of up to 12 years. 
Certain leases include options to renew for up to 15 years. At lease inception, we determine the lease term by assuming the exercise of 
those renewal options that are reasonably certain. Some leases have variable payments, however, because they are not based on an 
index or rate, they are not included in the measurement of ROU assets and lease liabilities. Variable payments for real estate leases 
relate primarily to common area maintenance, insurance, taxes and utilities associated with the properties. Variable payments for 
equipment leases relate primarily to hours, miles, or other quantifiable usage factors, which are not determinable at the time of lease 
inception. These variable payments are expensed as incurred. The discount rate applied to our leases in determining the present va lue 
of lease payments is our incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement date. Leases with an 
initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded in our consolidated balance sheets and we recognize lease expense for these leases on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Operating lease costs consisted of the following: 

As of Decem ber 31 , 

2024 2023 2022 

(in millions) 

Operating lease costs $ 23 $ 18 $ 17 

Variable lease costs I 

Short-term lease costs 4 4 4 

Total operating lease costs $ 27 $ 23 $ 22 

Lease costs related to the amortization of finance lease assets and interest on finance lease liabilities were not material for the years 
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. 

Future lease payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows: 

As of December 31, 2024 

Operating Leases Finance Leases Total 

(in millions) 

2025 $ 25 $ 2 $ 

2026 22 2 

2027 19 2 

2028 14 2 

2029 11 2 

Thereafter 15 10 

Total undiscounted lease payments 106 20 

Less : imputed interest (13) (5) 

Present value of lease liabilities $ 93 $ 15 $ 

As of December 31, 2024, we had an additional $17 million in commitments related to operating leases executed that have not yet 
commenced. The leases are expected to commence during 2025. 
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Lease liabilities and ROU assets included in our consolidated balance sheets were as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2024 2023 

(in millions) 

Operating leases Balance Sheet Classification 

Right-of-use assets Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 90 $ 56 

Current lease liabilities Current operating lease liabilities $ 20 $ 16 

Non-current lease liabi lities Long-term operating lease liabilities 73 42 

Total operating lease liabilities $ 93 $ 58 

Finance leases Balance Sheet Classification 

Right-of-use assets Other assets $ 15 $ 16 

Current lease liabilities Accrued and other current liabi lities $ I $ I 

Non-current lease liabilities Other liabiliti es 14 15 

Total finance lease liabi lities $ 15 $ 16 

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 , new leases and lease modifications resulted in the recognition of operating ROU 
assets and corresponding operating lease liabilities totaling $53 million and $6 million, respectively. During the year ended December 
3 1, 2023, new leases resulted in the recognition of finance lease ROU assets and corresponding finance lease liabi lities totaling 
$6 million. New leases and lease modifications resulting in the recognition of finance lease ROU assets and corresponding finance 
lease liabilities were not material during the year ended December 3 1, 2024. 

During the years ended December 31 , 2024, 2023 and 2022, cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of 
cash flows reflected $21 million, $18 million and $17 million, respectively, of payments for operating lease liabilities. Payments for 
finance lease liabi lities in the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were not material. 

The weighted average remaining lease term and weighted average discount rates were as follows: 

As of December 31, 2024 

Operating Leases Finance Leases 

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) 

Weighted-average discount rate 

Note 8 - Financial Instruments 

Interest Rate Derivatives 

5.06 

4.95 % 

10.69 

5.53 % 

During 2020 and 2022, we entered into a series of interest rate swaps to fix the LIBOR of our External Debt Faci liti es. In February 
2023, we amended our interest rate swaps to replace the interest rate benchmark from LIBOR to SOFR. Other than the foregoing, the 
material terms of the interest rate swap agreements remain unchanged, and our election to use practical expedients under AS Us 
2020-04 and 2021-01 , as described in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, resulted in no material impacts on our 
consolidated financial statements. The aggregate notional amount of the interest rate swaps still in effect as of December 31 , 2024 was 
$1 , 150 million, and the SOFR is fixed at an annual rate of0.40% to 3.40% (for an annual effective interest rate of2.15% to 5. 15%, 
including margin). 

The interest rate swaps outstanding as of December 31, 2024 hedge a portion of the interest rate exposure resulting from our Term 
Loan Faci li ty for periods ranging from one to two years. We classified these instruments as cash flow hedges. 
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The following table provides the notional amounts, the annual rates, the weighted average annual effective rates, and the fair va lue of 
our interest rate derivatives: 

(In millions) 

As of December 31, 2024 

As of December 31, 2023 

Note 9 - Benefit Plans 

Defined Benefit Plan 

Notional Amoun t Annu al Rate 

I, 150 2.15% to 5.15% 

I , 150 2. 15% to 5. 15% 

Weighted Ave rage 
Ann ual Effective 

Rate 

4.38% 

4.38% 

Fair Va lu e - Ot her 
C urrent Assets 

15 $ 

23 $ 

Fair Value-Other 
Assets 

We have a defined benefit plan for certain of our employees, which is non-contributory and eligible employees are full y vested after 
five years of service. The impact of the liability of the defined benefit plan on our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 
2024 and 2023 was not material. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

We offer defined contribution plans to eligible employees in the United States as well as employees in certain other countries. Our 
expense relating to defined contribution plans was $32 million, $29 million and $27 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 
2023 and 2022, respectivel y. 

Postretirement Benefit Plan 

Certain of our employees in the United States participate in a postretirement benefit plan. Our postretirement benefit plan is not 
funded. The changes in and the amount of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation were as fo llows: 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of January I 

Service cost 

Interest cost 

Benefits paid 

Actuaria l gains 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31 

The accrued benefit ob li gation was included in our consolidated balance sheets as fo llows: 

Accrued and other current liabilities 

Long-tenn postretirement benefit obligation 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

As of December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(i n million s) 

16 $ 

(2) 

15 $ 

As of December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(in millions) 

2 $ 

13 

15 $ 

34 

2 

(2) 

( 18) 

16 

2 

14 

16 
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A portion of our accrued benefit obligation has been recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income as follows: 

Asof Asof Asof 
December 31, December 31, Dece mber 31, 

2022 Cha nges 2023 Cha nges 2024 

(i n million s) 

Net actuaria l gain $ 29 $ 15 $ 44 $ (4) $ 40 

Deferred income tax expense (6) (4) (10) I (9) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 23 $ II $ 34 $ !3! $ 31 

We used the fo llowing weighted-average assumptions to determine our postretirement benefit obligations: 

As of December 3 1, 

Discount rate 

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 

Ultimate trend rate 

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 

2024 

5.58 

8.50 

4.40 

2035 

2023 

% 4.95 % 

% 8.00 % 

% 4.50 % 

2033 

The year-end discount rate for our plan reflects a weighted-average rate from a high-quality corporate bond yield curve that matches 
the expected duration of the benefit payments. Changes in our discount rates were primarily the result of changes in bond yields year­
over-year. Our expected health care cost trend rate is based on historical costs and long-term expectations. We also review our 
participation rates based on historical actual and expected trends on an annual basis. 

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Costs: 

Our total net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost for each of the years ended December 31 , 2024, 2023 and 2022 was not 
material. 

We used the fo llowing weighted-average assumptions to determine our net periodic postretirement health care cost: 

For the Years Ended Dece mber 31, 

Discount rate 

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 

Ultimate trend rate 

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 

Future Benefit Payments: 

2024 

4.95 % 

8.00 % 

4.50 % 

2033 

Expected contributions for the next fi scal year equal the estimated benefit payments of$2 million. 

2023 

5. 18 % 

7.00 % 

4.50 % 

2032 

Our estimated future benefit payments for our postretirement benefit plan as of December 3 1, 2024 were as fo llows: 

2025 $ 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030-2034 
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2022 

2.90 % 

6.60 % 

4.50 % 

2029 

(i n millions) 

2 

2 

I 

6 
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Note JO - Stock-based Compensation 

Our equity incentive plan was establi shed in 2020 for purposes of granting stock-based compensation awards to certain members of 
our senior management, our non-executive directors and to certain employees. to incentivize their performance and align their interests 
with ours. We have granted RSUs to certain employees and non-employee directors that have a service-based vesting condition . In 
addition. we have granted PS Us to certain members of management that have a performance-based vesting condition. We account for 
forfeitures of outstanding but unvested grants in the period they occur. A max imum of 10.5 million shares of common stock were 
initially available for issuance under equity incentive awards granted pursuant to the plan. In the year ended December 3 1, 2024, 0.3 
million RS Us and 0.3 million PS Us were granted. 

A summary of act ivity for RS Us and PS Us for the year ended December 3 I, 2024 is as foll ows (in millions, except for per share data): 

Weighted-
Avera ge Grant-
Date Fair Valu e 

Shares Per Share 

Unvested, at December 31, 2023 0.8 $ 29.49 

Granted 0.6 27.80 

Forfeited 

Vested (0 .3 ) 29.33 

PS U performance adjustment 0.2 27.73 

Unvested, at December 31, 2024 1.3 $ 28.52 

Unrecogni zed compensation expense relating to unvested RS Us as of December 3 1, 2024, was $5 million, which is expected to be 
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.23 years. 

Unrecognized compensation expense relating to unvested PS Us as of December 31 , 2024. was $6 million. which is expected to be 
recognized over a weighted average period of I .63 years. 

There were stock-based compensation awards, representing 1.3 million shares and 0.8 million shares outstanding at December 3 I, 
2024 and 2023, respectively. Stock-based compensation expense was $19 million, $ 14 million and $5 million for the years ended 
December 3 1, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Note 11 - Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 

Accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the foll owing: 

As of December 31 , 

2024 2023 

(in millions) 

Accrued pers01mel costs $ 66 $ 76 

Trade promotion allowances 36 40 

Other 59 71 

Accrued and other current liabilities $ 161 $ 187 
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Note 12 - Other Expense, Net 

Other expense, net consisted of the following: 

IPO and separation-related costs (I) 

Other 

Other expense, net 

2024 

$ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 

(in millions) 

$ $ 

(I) Reflects costs related to our separation to operate as a stand-alone public company and the IPO process. 

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies 

legal Proceedings: 

2022 

12 

10 

22 

We are from time to time party to litigation, legal proceedings and tax examinations arising from our operations. Most of these matters 
involve allegations of damages against us related to employment matters. consumer complaints. advertising/ labeling claims, personal 
injury claims and commercial or contractual disputes. We record estimates for claims and proceedings that constitute a present 
obligation when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of such 
obligation can be made. While it is not possibl e to predict the outcome of any of these matters, based on our assessment of the facts 
and circumstances as of December 3 1, 2024. we do not believe any of these matters. individually or in the aggregate, will have a 
material adverse effect on our fin ancial position, results of operations or cash fl ows. However, actual outcomes may differ from those 
expected and could have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows in a future period. 

Note 14 - Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

The following table summarizes the changes in our balances of each component of accumulated other comprehensive income. 

Currency Accumulated Other 
Translation Employee Benefit Derivative Comprehensive 
Adju stments Plans Instruments Income 

(in millions) 

Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ (6) $ 12 $ 4 $ JO 

(Loss) gain arising during the period (I) 16 48 63 

Reclassification to earnings (2) (6) (8) 

Effect of deferred taxes (3) (IO) (1 3) 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ (7) $ 23 $ 36 $ 52 

Gain arising during the period 18 12 30 

Reclassification to earnings (3) (29) (32) 

Effect of deferred taxes (4) 4 

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ (7) $ 34 $ 23 $ so 
(Loss) gain arising during the period (3) 2 20 19 

Reclassification to earnings (6) (32) (38) 

Effect of deferred taxes 4 

Balance as of December 31, 2024 $ (10) $ 31 $ 14 $ 35 
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Note JS - Income Taxes 

The components of income before income tax were as follows: 

Income before income taxes: 

United States 

International 

Total income before income taxes 

Significant components of income tax expense were as follows : 

Current 

United States 

Federal 

State 

Foreign 

Total current income tax expense 

Deferred 

United States 

Federal 

State 

Foreign 

Total deferred income tax (benefit) expense 

Total income tax expense 

2024 

2024 

$ 

$ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 2022 

(in millions) 

438 $ 380 $ 332 

13 13 

451 393 338 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2023 2022 

(in million s) 

93 $ 83 $ 64 

13 16 14 

4 I 

110 l02 79 

(!) (4) 

( IO) (3) (3) 

(11) (7) 

99 $ 95 $ 80 

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate of 21 % for 2024, 2023 and 2022, to our 
income tax expense was as follows: 

U.S. Federal income tax expense at the statutory rate 

U.S. State income tax expense 

Change in tax rates<1> 

Non-deductible expenses 

Return to provision adjustments 

Total income tax expense 

2024 

For the Years Ended December 31 , 

95 

12 

(9) 

2 

2023 

(in millions) 

82 $ 

10 

2022 

71 

9 

(!) (!) 

=$===9=9= =$====95= =$===8=0= 

(1) Primarily due to a discrete tax benefit for the remeasurement of deferred tax liabi lities due to a change in our state tax rates 
after apportionment. 
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Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities 

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities recogni zed for financial 
reporting and tax purposes. The components of our net deferred income tax liability were as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2024 2023 

(in millions) 

Deferred tax assets 

Employee benefits $ 25 $ 20 

Lease obligations 24 18 

Inventory 8 6 

Reserves 

Tax losses 4 5 

Total deferred tax assets 66 54 

Valuation allowance (7) (5) 

Total deferred tax assets after va luation allowance 59 49 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Intangible assets (260) (279) 

Property, plant and equipment (IOI) (IOI) 

Lease right-of-use assets (23) (17) 

Prepaid expense (12) 

Financial instruments (4) (7) 

Other (!) (2) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (401) (406) 

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (342) $ (357) 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold of more-likely-than not to be sustained upon examination as it relates to the accounting for 
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise 's financial statements. Our policy is to include interest and penalties related to 
gross unrecogni zed tax benefits in income tax expense. 

The following table summarizes the activity related to our gross unrecognized tax benefits : 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2024 2023 2022 

(in millions) 

Balance as of beginning of the year $ 11 $ 8 $ 

Increase associated with tax positions taken during the current year I 2 2 

(Decrease) increase associated with tax positions taken in prior years (!) I I 

Ending unrecognized tax benefits $ 11 $ II $ 8 

Each year we file income tax returns in the various federal, state, local and foreign income taxing jurisdictions in which we operate. 
Canada is the only foreign jurisdiction in which we operate. Our income tax returns are subject to examination and possible challenge 
by the tax authorities. Although ultimate timing is uncertain, the net amount of tax liability for unrecognized tax benefits may change 
within the next twelve months due to changes in audit status, settlements of tax assessments and other events. 
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Note 16 - Segment Information 

Our Chief Executive Officer, who has been identified as our Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), has evaluated how he views 
and measures our performance. In applying the criteria set forth in the standards for reporting information about segments in financial 
statements, we have determined that we have four reportable segments - Reynolds Cooking & Baking, Hefty Waste & Storage, Hefty 
Tableware and Presto Products. The key factors used to identify these reportable segments are the organization and ali gnment of our 
internal operations and the nature of our products. This reflects how our CODM monitors performance, allocates capital and makes 
strategic and operational decisions. Our segments are described as follows: 

Reynolds Cooking & Baking 

Our Reynolds Cooking & Baking segment produces branded and store brand aluminum foil , di sposable alum inum pans, parchment 
paper, freezer paper, wax paper, butcher paper, plastic wrap, baking cups, oven bags and slow cooker liners. Our branded products are 
sold under the Reynolds Wrap, Reynolds KITCHENS and EZ Foi l brands in the United States and selected international markets, 
under the AL CAN brand in Canada and under the Diamond brand outside of North America. 

Hefty Waste & Storage 

Our Hefty Waste & Storage segment produces both branded and store brand trash and food storage bags. Our branded products are 
sold under the Hefty Ultra Strong and Hefty Strong brands for trash bags, and as the Hefty and Baggies brands for our food storage 
bags. 

Hefty Tableware 

Our Hefty Tableware segment sells both branded and store brand disposable and compostable plates, bowls, platters, cups and cutlery. 
Our Hefty branded products include dishes and party cups. 

Presto Products 

Our Presto Products segment primarily sells store brand products in four main categories: food storage bags, trash bags, reusable 
storage containers and plast ic wrap. Our Presto Products segment also includes our specialty business, which serves other consumer 
products companies by providing Fresh-Lock and Slide-Rite resealable closure systems. 

Information by Segment 

We present segment adjusted EB ITDA ("Adjusted EBITDA") as this is the financia l measure by which management and our CODM 
evaluates the performance of each segment and all ocates resources (including employees, property and financial or capital resources) 
for each segment, predominantly in the annual budgeting and forecasting process. The CODM considers budget-to-actual variances on 
a monthly basis when making decisions about allocating capital and personnel to the segments. 

Adjusted EB ITDA represents each segment 's earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization and may be further adjusted 
to exclude IPO and separation-related costs, as well as certain other non-recurring items, if applicable. 

Total assets by segment are those assets directly associated with the respective operating activities, comprising inventory, property, 
plant and equipment and operating lease right-of-use assets. Other assets, such as cash, accounts receivable and intangible assets, are 
monitored on an entity-wide basis and not included in segment information that is regularl y reviewed by our CODM. 
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The accounting policies applied by our segments are the same as those described in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies. Transactions between segments are at negotiated prices. 

2024 

Net revenues 

ln tersegment revenues 

Total segment net revenues 

Other segment items<') 

Adjusted EB ITDA 

Depreciation and amortization 

Capital expenditures 

Total assets 

2023 

Net revenues 

Intersegment revenues 

Total segment net revenues 

Other segment items<2> 

Adjusted EB ITDA 

Depreciation and amortization 

Capital expend itures 

Total assets 

2022 

Net revenues 

lntersegment revenues 

Total segment net revenues 

Other segment items<2> 

Adj usted EB ITDA 

Depreciation and amortization 

Capital expenditures 

Reynolds 
Cookin g 

& Baking 

1,247 $ 

Hefty 
Waste & Hefty Presto Segment 
Storage ~ ~ --'"-"';;..• I __ Unallocated11l Total 

(in millions) 

949 $ 9 I 8 $ 584 $ 3,698 $ (3) $ 3,695 

---- ___ 10_ ---- ___ 12 _ ____ 22 _ ___ _.(2_2-'-) ----

$ 

1,247 959 9 18 596 

(1,025) ~ ___.i22_!2. ~ 
3,720 (25) 

(2,949) 

222 

33 

so 
563 

Reynolds 
Cooki ng 

& Baking 

1,273 

272 

2 1 

19 

282 

Hefty 

147 

20 

36 

259 

130 

2 1 

12 

252 

771 

95 

117 

1,356 

Segment 
~ ~ ~ __ ,_.,_.1 __ 

(i n millions) 

Waste& Hefty Presto 

34 

3,517 

Una llocated111 

$ 93 I $ 967 $ 579 $ 3,750 $ 6 $ 

3,695 

129 

120 

4,873 

Total 

3,756 

I I 14 25 (25) ---- ---- ---- ---- ----- ---~~ ----
1,273 942 967 593 3,775 ( I 9) 

(1,089) 

184 

3 I 

46 

~ ~ ~ (3,044) 

556 

Reynolds 
Cooking 

& Baking 

1,287 $ 

261 

19 

II 

267 

Hefty 

174 

16 

28 

2 16 

11 2 

2 1 

8 

239 

731 

87 

93 

1,278 

Waste & Hefty Presto Segment 
Storage ~ ~ __ 1_01_a1 __ 

(in millions) 

37 

II 

3,502 

Unallocatcd11l 

934 $ 1,000 $ 

12 

597 

7 

$ 3,818 $ ( I) $ 

3,756 

124 

104 

4,780 

Total 

3,817 

19 (19) ---- ---- ---- ---- ----- ---~~ ----
I ,287 946 I ,000 604 

(I, 145) ~ ~ ~ 

142 

24 

51 

207 

19 

15 

134 

17 

36 

96 

22 

20 

3,837 (20) 

(3,258) 

579 

82 

122 

35 

6 

3,817 

117 

128 

(1) Una ll ocated includes the elimination of intersegment revenues, other revenue adjustments and certain corporate costs, 
depreciation and amortization and assets not allocated to segments. Unallocated assets are comprised of cash, accounts 
receivable, other receivables, entity-wide property, plant and equipment, entity-wide operating lease ROU assets, goodwill, 
intangible assets, related party receivables and other assets. 

(2) Other segment items included in Segment Adjusted EB ITDA primari ly include cost of sales (including material, manufacturing 
and logistics costs), salaries and benefits, advertising expenses and professional fees. The CODM allocates resources and 
assesses performance on a consolidated level for these other segment items. 
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The following table presents a reconciliation of segment Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated GAAP income before income taxes: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2024 2023 2022 

(i n millio ns) 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 77 1 $ 73 I $ 579 

Corporate I unallocated expenses (93 ) (95) (33) 

678 636 546 

Adjustments to reconcile to GAAP income before income taxes 

Depreciation and amortization (1 29) (124) (1 17) 

Interest expense. net (98) (119) (76) 

IPO and separation-related costs (12) 

Other (3) 

Consolida ted GAAP income before income taxes $ 451 $ 393 $ 338 

Information in Relation to Products 

Net revenues by product line are as fo llows: 

For the Years Ended Decembe r 3 1, 

2024 2023 2022 

(i n millio ns) 

Waste and storage products< 1> $ 1,555 $ 1,535 $ 1,550 

Cooking products 1,247 1,273 1,287 

Tableware products 9 18 967 1,000 

Unallocated (25 ) (19) (20) 

Net revenues $ 3,695 $ 3,756 $ 3,817 

( I) Waste and storage products are comprised of our Hefty Waste & Storage and Presto Products segments. 

Our different product lines are genera ll y sold to a common group of customers. For all product lines, there is a relati vely short time 
period between the receipt of the order and the transfer of control over the goods to the customer. 

Geographic Data 

Geographic data for net revenues (recognized based on location of our business operations) and long-l ived assets (representing 
property, plant and equipment) are as fo llows: 

Net revenues: 

United States 

Other 

Net revenues 

Long-l ived assets 

United States 

Other 

Long-lived assets 

$ 

$ 

72 

For the Years Ended Decem ber 31, 

2024 2023 2022 

(in millions) 

3,601 $ 3,66 1 $ 3,742 

94 95 75 

3,695 $ 3,756 $ 3,817 

As of December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(i n millions) 

$ 751 $ 725 

7 

$ 758 $ 732 
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Entity-wide Disclosures 

Net revenues from our largest customer and its affi liates were 48% of tota l net revenues for each of the years ended December 3 1, 
2024. 2023 and 2022. The net revenues from our largest customer were recognized across all of our segments. No other customers 
accounted for 10% or more of our total net revenues in any of the years presented. 

Note 17 - Related Party Transactions 

Packaging Finance Limited ("PFL") owns the majori ty of our outstanding common stock and owns the majority of the outstanding 
common stock of Pactiv Evergreen Inc. and its subsidiaries ("PEI Group"). We sell and purchase various goods and services with PEI 
Group under contractual arrangements that expire over a variety of periods through December 3 1, 2027. During the years ended 
December 3 1, 2024 and 2023 , we amended these contractual arrangements with PEI Group, which, among other things, extended the 
expiration date for certain arrangements. Transactions between us and PEI Group are described below. 

On-going Related Party Transactions 

For the years ended December 3 1, 2024, 2023 and 2022, revenues from products sold to PEI Group were $77 mi ll ion, $83 mill ion and 
$ 10 I mi ll ion, respectively. For the years ended December 3 1, 2024, 2023 and 2022, products purchased from PEI Group were $332 
mi ll ion, $38 1 mi ll ion and $399 mi ll ion, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, PEI Group charged us 
freight and warehousing costs of $28 mi ll ion, $37 mi ll ion and $54 mi ll ion, respecti vely, which were included in cost of sales. The 
resulting related party receivables and payables are settled regularly with PEI Group in the normal course of business. 

Furthermore, $ 143 mi ll ion of di vidends were paid to PFL during the years ended December 3 1, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Note 18 - Subsequent Events 

Quarterly Cash Dividend 

On January 30, 2025 , our Board of Directors approved a cash dividend of $0.23 per common share to be paid on February 28, 2025 to 
shareholders of record on February 14, 2025. 

Term loan Facility 

Subsequent to December 3 1, 2024, we made a voluntary principal payment of $50 mi ll ion related to our Term Loan Facility. 

Except as described above, there have been no events subsequent to December 31, 2024 which would require accrual or disclosure in 
these consolidated fin ancial statements. 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Management's Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5(e) and 15d-1 5(e)) are designed to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed by us in reports we fil e or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specifi ed in the SEC's rules and form s, and that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as 
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We, under the supervision of and with the participation of our 
management, including our Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure 
controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our 
disclosure control s and procedures were effective as of December 3 1, 2024. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financia l reporting, as defined in Rules 
13a- 15(f) and 15d- 15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over fin ancial reporting is a process designed under the 
supervision of the Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial Offi cer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles 
generall y accepted in the United States of America. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements under all potential 
conditions. Therefore, effective internal control over financial reporting provides onl y reasonable, and not absolute, assurance with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of financial statements . 

Management conducted an evaluation of the effecti veness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 3 1, 2024 
using the criteria set forth in the Internal Control Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission (COSO). As a result of that evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial 
reporting was effective as of December 3 1, 2024. 

Our independent registered public accounting firm , PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has audited the effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 3 1, 2024, as stated in its report which appears in Item 8 of this Annual Report on FollTl I 0-K. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2024 that has 
materiall y affected, or is reasonabl y likely to materiall y affect, our internal control over finan cial reporting. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

During the quarter ended December 3 1, 2024, none of our directors or officers (as defined in Rul e l 6a-l (f) of the Exchange Act) 
adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or written plan for the purchase or sale of our securities that was intended to sati sfy the 
affinn ative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-l(c) of the Exchange Act or any non-Rule 10b5-I trading arrangement (as identified in 
Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K). 

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS 

Not Applicable. 
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PART Ill 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EX ECUTIV E OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The infollTlati on required by Item 10 will appear in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the 
"2025 Proxy Statement") under the captions "Proposal 1: Election of Directors," "Executive Compensation - Executive Officers," and 
"Corporate Governance" and is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The infollTlation required by Item 11 will appear in the Company's 2025 Proxy Statement under the captions "Director 
Compensation," "Executive Compensation" and "Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions" and is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

The information required by Item 12 will appear in the Company's 2025 Proxy Statement under the captions "Executive 
Compensation" and "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" and is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

The information required by Item I 3 will appear in the Company's 2025 Proxy Statement under the captions "Certain Relationships 
and Related Person Transactions" and "Corporate Governance" and is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

The information required by Item 14 will appear in the Company's 2025 Proxy Statement under the caption " Proposal 3: Ratification 
of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIB ITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K: 

I. The following consolidated financial statements are fil ed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under Part II , Item 8 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 238) 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 3 I. 2024. 2023 and 2022 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31 2024 2023 and 2022 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2024 and 2023 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31 2024 2023 and 2022 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2024 2023 and 2022 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Exhibits: See " Index to Exhibi ts" immediately preceding the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY 

None. 
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INDEX TO EXHIB ITS 

Exhibit _____ D_e_se_d~pt_;o_n ___________________________________ _ 

3.1 

3.2 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

IO.It 

I0.2t 

I0.3t 

I0.4t 

IO.St 

10.6*t 

10.7*t 

I0.8*t 

10.9*t 

10. I0 *t 

10.11 *t 

10.12*t 

I0. I3t 

10.14t 

10.!St 

I0.16t 

I0. I 7t 

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation confonned version that includes all amendments through April 
25 2024 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form I 0-0 filed 
with the SEC on August 7 2024) 

Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company' s Current Report 
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-39205) filed with the SEC on February 4 2020) 

Description of Securities Registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (incorporated herein 
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company' s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 12 
W_l) 

Form of Indenture (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on 
Form S-3ASR {File No. 333-279197) filed with the SEC on May 8 2024) 

Form of Debt Security (included in Exhibit 4.2) 

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on November 15 2019) 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99 to the 
Company' s Registration Statement on Form S-8 {File No. 333-236204) filed with the SEC on January 31 2020) 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. Equity Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective January 27 2022 
{incorporate herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC 
on February 9 2022) 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference 
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company' s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 9 2022) 

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 9 2022) 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for full vesting on death, retirement or enhanced retirement 
situations) 

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (for full vesting on death retirement or enhanced retirement 
situations) 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for no continuous service requirement and full vesting on death 
situations) 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for double-trigger vesting in connection with a change in control 
situations) 

Form of Perfonnance Share Unit Award Agreement (for double-trigger vesting in connection with a change in 
control situations) 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement as amended November 2024 

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement as amended November 2024 

Employment Agreement dated July 8 2019 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Lance Mitchell 
(including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 
to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 {File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on November 15 
2_Q_J_2)_ 

Transition Letter dated as of October 24 2024 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and Lance 
Mitchell {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the Company' s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with 
the SEC on October 30 2024) 

Offer Letter dated as of September 15 2023 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Scott E. 
Huckins {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with 
the SEC on October 12 2023) 

Employment Agreement effective October 23 2023 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Scott 
E. Huckins (including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company' s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 12 2023) 

Offer Letter dated October 24 2024 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and Scott E. Huckins 
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.2 to the Company ' s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
SEC on October 30 2024) 

77 



I0.18t 
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I 0.33 

10.34 
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Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated effective January I 2025 by and between Reynolds 
Consumer Products Holdings LLC and Scott E. Huckins (including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached 
thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with 
the SEC on October 30 2024) 

Offer Letter dated October 24 2024 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. and Nathan D. Lowe 
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC 
on October 30 2024) 

Employment Agreement dated effective January I 2025 by and between Reynolds Consumer Products Holdings 
LLC and Nathan D. Lowe (including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 30 2024) 

Employment Agreement dated July 29 2019 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Rachel Bishop 
(including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.29 
to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on January 28 
W_Q)_ 

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated May 31 2022 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and 
Rachel Bishop (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K 
filed with the SEC on February 8 2023) 

Employment Agreement dated July 8 2019 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Judith Buckner 
(including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.14 
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 9 2022) 

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated May 31 2022 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and 
Judith Buckner (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company ' s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
filed with the SEC on February 8 2023) 

Employment Agreement dated February 28 2022 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Lisa Smith 
(including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 8 2023) 

Employment Agreement dated February I 2022 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC and Steve Estes 
(including the Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached thereto) 

Form of Assignment and Assumption Agreement for Employment Agreements and Form of Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement for Restrictive Covenant Agreement each by and among Reynolds Consumer Products 
LLC, Reynolds Consumer Products Holdings LLC, and Lance Mitchell Scott Huckins Rachel Bishop Judith 
Buckner Lisa Smith and Steve Estes (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit IO. I to the Company's Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-0 filed with the SEC on May 8 2024) 

Master Supply Agreement dated November I 2019 between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC as Seller and 
Pactiv LLC as Buyer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company's Registration Statement 
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on November 15 2019) 

Amendment No. I dated January 15 2022 and Amendment No. 2 dated March 31 2023 to the Master Supply 
Agreement between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC, as seller and Pactiv LLC, as buyer (incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company' s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed with the SEC on May 10 2023) 

Master Supply Agreement dated November I 2019 between Pactiv LLC, as Seller and Reynolds Consumer 
Products LLC, as Buyer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on November 15 2019) 

Amendment No. I dated January 15 2022 and Amendment No. 2 dated March 31 2023 to the Master Supply 
Agreement between Pactiv LLC as seller and Reynolds Consumer Products LLC as buyer (incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company' s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed with the SEC on May 10 2023) 

Amendment No. 3 dated December 3 2024 to the Master Supply Agreement between Pactiv LLC as seller and 
Reynolds Consumer Products LLC as buyer 

Warehousing and Freight Services Agreement dated November I 2019 between Pactiv LLC and Reynolds 
Consumer Products LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.20 to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-234731) filed with the SEC on November 15 2019) 

Amendment No. I dated November 16 2021 Amendment No. 2 dated May 12 2022 and Amendment No. 3 
dated April 18 2024 to the Warehousing and Freight Services Agreement between Pactiv LLC and Reynolds 
Consumer Products LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit IO. I to Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
I 0-0 filed with the SEC on August 7 2024) 

Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated January I 2020 between Pactiv LLC and Reynolds Consumer 
Products LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.23 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 
S-1 filed with the SEC on January 21 2020) 

Tax Matters Agreement dated February 4 2020 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company' s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 4 2020) 
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Registration Rights Agreement dated February 4 2020 between Packaging Finance Limited and Reynolds 
Consumer Products Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit IO. I to the Company's Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 4 2020) 

Stockholders Agreement dated February 4 2020 between Packaging Finance Limited and Reynolds Consumer 
Products Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on February 4 2020) 

Credit Agreement between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC, as borrower Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. as 
parent and certain lenders party thereto (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 4 2020) 

Amendment No. I dated February 28 2023 to the Credit Agreement between Reynolds Consumer Products LLC 
as borrower Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. as parent and certain lenders party thereto (incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed with the SEC on May 10 2023) 

Amendment No. 2 dated as of November 21 2023 to the Credit Agreement dated as of February 4 2020 between 
Reynolds Consumer Products LLC as borrower Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. as parent and certain lenders 
party thereto (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on November 21 2023) 

Amendment No. 3 dated as of October 17 2024 to the Credit Agreement dated as of February 4 2020 between 
Reynolds Consumer Products LLC as borrower Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. as parent and certain lenders 
party thereto (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on October 17 2024) 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. Insider Trading Policy as amended April 27 2023 

List of subsidiaries 

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Power of Attorney (see signature page to this Annual Report on Form 10-K) 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of the Company Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of the Company Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of the Company Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted 
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of the Company Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted 
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 

Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. Amended and Restated Compensation Recoupment Policy (incorporated herein 
by reference to Exhibit 97 to the Company' s Annual Report on Form 10-K fi led with the SEC on February 7 2024) 

lnline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because 
XBRL tags are embedded within the lnline XBRL document 

lnline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 

lnline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 

lnline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 

lnline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 

lnline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document 

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as lnline XBRL and contained in Exhibit IO!) 

Filed herewith. 

t Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual 
Report on Form I 0-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

REYNOLDS CONSUMER PRODUCTS INC. 

(Registrant) 

By: /s/ Scott Huckins 

Scott Huckins 

Chief Executive Officer 

February 5, 2025 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below does hereby make, constitute and 
appoint Scott Huckins and Nathan Lowe, and each of them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, 
with full power of substitution, for them and in their name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign the Annual Report on 
Form I 0-K. and any amendments thereto, and to file the same with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, 
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, full power and authority to do and 
perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith. as fully to all intents and purposes as 
he or she might or could do in person. hereby ratifying and confirming all that sa id attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfull y do or 
cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form I 0-K has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature Title Date 

/s/ Scott Huckins Chief Executive Officer and Director 

Scott Huckins (Principal Executive Officer) 
February 5, 2025 

/s/ Nathan Lowe Chieffinancial Officer 

Nathan Lowe (Principal Financial Officer) 
February 5, 2025 

/s/ Chris Mayrhofer Senior Vice President and Controller 
February 5, 2025 

Chris Mayrhofer (Principal Accounting Officer) 

/s/ Rolf Stangl Director and Chairman of 
February 5, 2025 

Rolf Stangl the Board of Directors 

/s/ Gregory Cole 
Director February 5, 2025 

Gregory Cole 

/s/ Helen Golding 
Director February 5, 2025 

Helen Golding 

/s/ Marla Gottschalk 
Director February 5, 2025 

Marla Gottschalk 

/s/ Allen Hugli 
Director February 5, 2025 

Allen Hugli 

/s/ Christine Montenegro McGrath 
Director February 5, 2025 

Christine Montenegro McGrath 

/s/ Ann Ziegler 
Director February 5, 2025 

Ann Ziegler 
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION 

HEADQUARTERS 
Reynolds Consumer Products Inc. 
1900 W. Field Court 
Lake Forest, Illinois 600LJ5 
800-879-5067 or 22~-295-6800 
ReynoldsConsumerProducts.com 

COMMON STOCK 
The company's common stock is traded 
on the Nasdaq stock market under 
the symbol "REYN." 

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers 
Chicago, Illinois 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

INVESTOR RELATIONS 
Inquiries from shareholders, 
analysts, or prospective investors 
should be directed to: 

Mark Swartzberg 
Vice President, Investor Relations 
lnvestors@ReynoldsBrands.com 
22~-295-6801 

TRANSFER AGENT 
Inquiries for stock transfer requirements, 
lost certificates, and changes to addresses 
should be directed to: 

Equiniti Trust Company, LLC ("EQ") 
~8 Wall Street. Floor 23 
New York, NY 10005 

~ TABLE OF CON TEN TS 

help AST@equ in iti .com 
https://equiniti .com/us/ast-access/individuals/ 

2025 ANNUAL MEETING 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Reynolds 
Consumer Products Inc. will be held on 
Wednesday, April 23, 2025, at 5:00 p.m., Central Time. 

The Annual Meeting will be completely virtual. You 
may attend the meeting, submit questions, and 
vote your shares electronically during the meeting 
via live webcast by visiting: 
www.virtualshareholdermeeting .com/REYN2025 

Instructions on how to attend and participate in the 
Annual Meeting via the webcast are posted on this site. 

This report contains statements reflecting our views about our future performance that constitute «forward-looking statements# within the 
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including our first quarter and fiscal year 2025 guidance. Jn some cases, you can 
identify these statements by forward-looking words such as «may,# «might,# «will,# «should,# «expects,# «intends,# «outlook,# «forecast.# «committed,# 
«plans,# «anticipates,# «believes,# «estimates,# «predicts,# «model,# «assumes,# «confident.# «look forward,# «potential,# «on track# or «continue,# the 
negative of these terms and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions about us, may include projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and recovery of profitability, 
management of costs and other disruptions and strategies, and anticipated trends in our business, including expected levels of commodity 
costs and volume. These statements are only predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events. There are 
important factors that could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results, level 
of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including but not limited to the risk factors 
set forth in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

For additional information on these and other factors that could cause our actual results to materially differ from those set forth herein, please 
see our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent filings. 
Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date they are made. The 
Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement. whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

Annual Report Design by Curran & Connors, Inc./ www.curran-connors.com 




